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U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
Office of International Corporate Finance
450 Fifth Street, N.W.

Judiciary Plaza

Washington, DC

20549 USA %
Dear Sirs:
Re: Canadian Oil Sands Trust - File No. 82-5189

Pursuant to the exemption granted under Rule 12g3-2(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, enclosed are the following documents of Canadian Oil Sands Trust:, all of
which have been filed with the regulatory authorities in Canada:

a) February 3, 2003 press releases regarding the acquisition of an additional 10% working
interest in Syncrude from EnCana Corporation (the “EnCana deal”);

b) Material Change Report filed February 3, 2003 regarding the EnCana deal;

c) Final prospectus filed February 13, 2003 regarding the issuance of Subscription
Receipts;

d) February 28, 2003 press release regarding the closing of the EnCana deal,

e) Material Change Report filed March 10, 2003 regarding the EnCana deal;

f)y Form of Proxy filed March 19, 2003

g) Proxy Circular dated March 10, 2003 filed March 19, 2003;

h)} Annual Report which contains the audited financial statements and managements’
discussion and analysis filed March 19, 2003; and

i) March 21, 2003 press release regarding DRIP.

If you have any questions or concerns, please contact me directly at (403) 218-6240.
Sincerely,

CANADIAN OIL SANDS LIMITED

g 00 6/4

General Counsel & Corporate Secretary
TMC/cej -

Encls.

Canadian Oil Sands Limited * 2500 First Canadian Centre 350 - 7th Avenue S.W. « Calgary, Alberta T2P 3N9 Canada * Bus: {403) 218-6222 Fax: (403) 218-6210
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@ Canadian Oil Sands NEWS RELEASE

For immediate release

Canadian Oil Sands Trust files preliminary prospectus for offering of
Subscription Receipts

Calgary, February 3, 2003 (TSX - COS.UN) — Canadian Oil Sands Trust (“Canadian
Oil Sands” or the “Trust™) today announced that it has filed a preliminary prospectus with
the securities regulators in Canada for an offering of subscription receipts. The proceeds
from the subscription receipts are intended to be used to refinance the acquisition by
Canadian Oil Sands Limited of a 10 per cent interest that EnCana Corporation holds
indirectly in the Syncrude Joint Venture.

Canadian Oil Sands Trust is an open-ended investment trust that generates income from
its 21.74 per cent working interest in the Syncrude Joint Venture. The Trust currently has
approximately 57.7 million units outstanding, which trade on the Toronto Stock

Exchange under the symbol COS.UN. The Trust is managed by Canadian Oil Sands
Limited.

The securities offered will not and have not been registered under the United States
Securities Act of 1933 and may not be offered or sold in the United States absent
registration or an applicable exemption from registration requirements.

- more -



&

Advisory: in the interest of providing Canadian Oil Sands Trust ("Canadian Oil Sands” or the “Trust”)
unitholders and potential investors with information regarding the Trust, including management’s
assessment of the Trust’s future plans and operations, certain statements throughout this release contain
“forward-looking statements”. Forward-looking statements in this release include, but are not limited to,
statements with respect to: the anticipated increase to production and reserves, the accretive nature of the
transaction, the expected economies of scale of the transaction, the ability to successfully hedge the
acquired production, the impact of the acquisition on distribution levels, the anticipated credit ratings and
financial ratios, and the closing date. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking
statements, as there can be no assurance that the plans, intentions or expectations upon which they are
based will occur. By their nature, forward-looking statements involve numerous assumptions, known and
unknown risks and uncertainties, both general and specific, that contribute to the possibility that the
predictions, forecasts, projections and other forward-looking statements will not occur. Although the Trust
believes that the expectations represented by such forward-looking statements are reasonable, there can be
no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct. Some of the risks and other factors which
could cause results to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements contained in
this release include, but are not limited to: general economic, business and market conditions; commodity
prices; competition;, the ability to obtain financing; imprecision in estimating future production capacity;,
the timing, costs and level of production; changes in regulation, including environmental; need to obtain
required approval from regulatory authorities; and such other risks and uncertainties described from time
to time in the reports and filings made with securities regulatory authorities by the Trust. You are
cautioned that the foregoing list of important factors is not exhaustive. Furthermore, the forward-looking
Statements contained in this release are made as of the date of this release, and the Trust does not
undertake any obligation to update publicly or to revise any of the included forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. The forward-looking statements
contained in this release are expressly qualified by this cautionary statement.

-30-

Canadian Oil Sands Limited For further information:
Marcel Coutu

President & Chief Executive Officer Siren Fisekei

Manager, Investor Relations:
(403) 218-6228
investor_relations{@cos-trust.com

Units Listed — Symbol: COS.UN
Toronto Stock Exchange

Web site: www.cos-trust.com




@ Canadian Oil Sands NEWS RELEASE

For immediate release

Canadian Oil Sands Trust agrees to acquire an additional 10 per cent
interest in Syncrude

Calgary, February 3, 2003 (TSX — COS.UN) — Canadian Oil Sands Trust (the “Trust™)
today announced that its wholly owned subsidiary, Canadian Oil Sands Limited,
(collectively, “Canadian Oil Sands™ ) has agreed to acquire a 10 per cent interest in the
Syncrude Joint Venture from EnCana Corporation (“EnCana”) for approximately Cdn
$1.07 billion cash. Following this transaction, Canadian Oil Sands will become the
largest owner of the Syncrude project with a 31.74 per cent interest.

Canadian Oil Sands also obtained an option to purchase, under similar terms and
conditions, EnCana’s remaining 3.75 per cent interest in Syncrude until December 31,
2003. Concurrent with the exercise of this purchase option, the Trust will purchase from
EnCana a six per cent gross overriding royalty on a 1.25 per cent indirect Syncrude
interest held by a third party independent oil and gas company for $16 million.

“We are very pleased with this opportunity to increase our interest in a project focused on
the expansion of Canada’s vast oil sands,” said Marcel Coutu, President and Chief
Executive Officer. “Canadian Oil Sands’ value as a pure play on one of the largest oil
deposits in the world now has been further enhanced by our demonstrated ability to grow
by acquisition as well as internally. This transaction positions us as the natural
consolidator of the Syncrude interests and immediately increases our production and
reserves, augmenting the Trust’s already strong growth profile. After this transaction and
following the completion of the Stage 3 expansion in 2005, we expect our production to
average approximately 111,000 barrels per day.”

The following are highlights of the transaction:
¢ On a pro forma basis, the acquisition is expected to be accretive to the Trust’s
unitholders on the basis of cash flow, earnings and net asset value per unit.
¢ The acquisition will boost the Trust’s production by 46 per cent to approximately
74,000 barrels per day, and proven reserves and undeveloped resource are
expected to increase commensurately to approximately 2.6 billion barrels.

- more -



¢ Economies of scale created through the transaction are anticipated to reduce the
Trust’s general and administrative costs per barrel, which are already among the
lowest in the trust sector at $0.72 per barrel, including insurance.

o Following the acquisition and related equity financing, the Trust’s market
capitalization will be approximately Cdn $3.0 billion with an enterprise value of
approximately Cdn $3.8 billion, making Canadian Oil Sands the largest income
trust in Canada by a significant margin and the fifth largest Canadian
independent, publicly-traded petroleum producer. The increase in the Trust’s size
should result in greater market liquidity and broader access to capital.

In accordance with the Trust’s risk management program, Canadian QOil Sands plans to
hedge virtually all of the acquired production through to the end of 2003. EnCana will
continue to market all of the Trust’s share of Syncrude Sweet Blend following the
transaction under the same arrangement that existed prior to the transaction.

Canadian Oil Sands plans to finance the acquisition with two-thirds equity and one-third
debt, which is consistent with the Trust’s capital structure prior to the transaction. A
significant portion of the equity financing, in the amount of approximately $300 million,
has been secured through a private placement with a large institutional investor, and the
balance will be raised through a combination of public and private equity financings. The
Trust also has secured bridge financing from Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce and
Merrill Lynch & Co.

Since the Trust plans to maintain pre-acquisition financial ratios, it expects that its
capacity to fund its share of Syncrude’s Stage 3 expansion will remain strong.
Correspondingly, distributions are anticipated to remain stable given the current
economic and commodity price environments.

The transaction is to be effective February 1, 2003, and subject to customary regulatory
approvals, is expected to close on or about February 28, 2003. The purchase price of

approximately Cdn $1.07 billion is subject to customary closing adjustments and
transaction costs.

CIBC World Markets Inc. and Merrill Lynch & Co. acted as financial advisors to
Canadian Oil Sands Trust with respect to this transaction.

- more -
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The Syncrude Project is a joint venture operated by Syncrude Canada Ltd. Syncrude is
the world’s largest producer of light sweet crude oil from oil sand and the largest single
source of oil in Canada. Located near Fort McMurray, Alberta, Syncrude operates large
oil sands mines, a utilities plant, bitumen extraction plants and an upgrading complex that
processes bitumen into light sweet crude oil called Syncrude Sweet Blend. In 2002,
Syncrude shipped 83.8 million barrels of Syncrude Sweet Blend from proven reserves of
3.5 billion barrels plus additional undeveloped resource of 4.8 billion barrels. Syncrude is
in the midst of a large expansion program designed to more than double production by
2015. Stage 3 of the program is currently underway and is expected to result in
productive capacity expanding from today’s level of 90 million barrels per year to
approximately 128 million barrels per year by 2005. Proven, developed reserves
represent more than a 35-year lifespan using today’s infrastructure with the potential to
extend reserve life beyond the year 2050 as the leases are developed.

Canadian Oil Sands Trust is an open-ended investment trust that generates income from
its 21.74 per cent working interest in the Syncrude Joint Venture. The Trust currently has
approximately 57.7 million units outstanding, which trade on the Toronto Stock
Exchange under the symbol COS.UN. The Trust is managed by Canadian Oil Sands
Limited.

Conference Call and Investor Presentation

Canadian Oil Sands Trust will host a conference call for investors, financial analysts and
the media on Monday, February 3, 2003 at 4:30 p.m. eastern standard time to discuss this
acquisition. To participate, please call 1-888-937-5823. Please register at least 10
minutes before the start of the conference call. The conference call will be recorded and

available for review by calling 1-800-558-5253 and entering 21120235 until February 17,
2003.

An investor presentation describing the proposed transaction will be available on
Canadian Oil Sands’ Website at www.cos-trust.com.

- more -






Advisory: in the interest of providing Canadian Oil Sands Trust (“Canadian Oil Sands” or the “Trust”)
unitholders and potential investors with Information regarding the Trust, including management’s
assessment of the Trust’s future plans and operations, certain statements throughout this release contain
“forward-looking statements”. Forward-looking statements in this release include, but are not limited to,
statements with respect to. the anticipated increase to production and reserves, the accretive nature of the
transaction, the expected economies of scale of the transaction, the ability to successfully hedge the
acquired production, the impact of the acquisition on distribution levels, the anticipated credit ratings and
financial ratios, and the closing date. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking
statements, as there can be no assurance that the plans, intentions or expectations upon which they are
based will occur. By their nature, forward-looking statements involve numerous assumptions, known and
unknown risks and uncertainties, both general and specific, that contribute to the possibility that the
predictions, forecasts, projections and other forward-looking statements will not occur. Although the Trust
believes that the expectations represented by such forward-looking statements are reasonable, there can be
no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct. Some of the risks and other factors which
could cause results to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements contained in
this release include, but are not limited to. general economic, business and market conditions; commodity
prices; competition;, the ability to obtain financing; imprecision in estimating future production capacity;
the timing, costs and level of production; changes in regulation, including environmental; need to obtain
required approval from regulatory authorities,; and such other risks and uncertainties described from time
to time in the reports and filings made with securities regulatory authorities by the Trust. You are
cautioned that the foregoing list of important factors is not exhaustive. Furthermore, the forward-looking
statements contained in this release are made as of the date of this release, and the Trust does not
undertake any obligation to update publicly or to revise any of the included forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. The forward-looking statements
contained in this release are expressly qualified by this cautionary statement.
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The Acquisition will be effective February 1, 2003 and is expected to close on or
about February 28, 2003. '

Item 5. Full Description of Material Change:

On February 3, 2003, Canadian Oil Sands agreed to purchase an indirect 10%
working interest in the Syncrude Joint Venture from EnCana for approximately $1.07
billion cash. Canadian Oil Sands will also acquire certain rights in relation to
EnCana’s remaining 3.75% working interest in the Syncrude Joint Venture that is
held by AEC Oil Sands Limited Partnership as well as a 6% gross overriding royalty
on another 1.25% interest in Syncrude (the “Remaining Interest”). Canadian Oil
Sands will have an option, exercisable at any time on or before December 31, 2003,
to purchase the Remaining Interest. In addition, EnCana has agreed that for a period
of 60 days immediately following the closing of the Acquisition, it will not do
anything in furtherance of the disposition of the Remaining Interest to a third party.
Following such 60-day period, Canadian Oil Sands will have, in addition to the
option, a right of first refusal which expires on December 31, 2003 in respect of the
Remaining Interest.

The Trust plans to finance the Acquisition with two-thirds equity and one-third debt.
A significant portion of the equity financing has been secured through a private
placement with a large institutional investor, and the Trust plans to raise the balance
in a public equity offering in Canada of subscription receipts. A preliminary
prospectus is being filed with the provincial securities regulators in Canada for the
public equity offering. Canadian Oil Sands has also secured bridge financing from a
Canadian chartered bank and Merrill Lynch & Co. Canadian Oil Sands expects
Moody’s and Standard & Poors to reconfirm their debt ratings, based on discussions
with the debt rating agencies.

The Acquisition will be effective February 1, 2003 and is expected to close on or
about February 28, 2003. It is subject to customary regulatory approvals. The
purchase price of approximately $1.07 billion is subject to customary closing
adjustments and transaction costs.

EnCana currently holds its interest in the Syncrude Joint Venture indirectly
through AEC Oil Sands, L.P. (the “Partnership”). Audited financial statements
for the Partnership for the financial years ending January 31, 2002, 2001, 2000
and unaudited financial statements of the Partnership for the nine-month
interim periods ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, are attached hereto as
Appendix A. The Partnership also owns, indirectly, a 3.75% working interest in
the Syncrude Joint Venture (subject to a 6% gross overriding royalty) in
addition to the 10% interest being acquired by Canadian Oil Sands pursuant to
the Acquisition. The attached financial statements reflect the inclusion of the
entire interest of the Partnership in the Syncrude Joint Venture.

On a pro forma basis, the Acquisition is expected to be accretive to the Trust’s
unitholders on the basis of cash flow, earnings and net asset value per unit.
Production is expected to rise 46 percent to approximately 74,000 barrels per day,
and proven and undeveloped reserves are expected to increase commensurately to

152623-316241
McCarthy Tétrault LLP CAL_DOCS #1338704 v. 3



Item 6.

Item 7.

Item 8.

Item 9.
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approximately 2.6 billion barrels. Economies of scale created through the transaction
also are anticipated to reduce the Trust’s administrative costs per barrel. Canadian
Oil Sands anticipates that the increase in the Trust’s capitalization and enterprise
value following the completion of the Acquisition will result in greater market
liquidity and broader access to capital for the Trust.

Canadian Oil Sands plans to hedge virtually all of the acquired production through
the end of 2003. EnCana will continue to market all of Canadian Oil Sands’ share of
Syncrude Sweet Blend (SSB) following the completion of the Acquisition under an
arrangement similar to what existed prior to the acquisition.

Since the Trust plans to maintain pre-acquisition financial ratios, it expects that its
capacity to fund its share of Syncrude’s Stage 3 expansion will remain strong.

Reliance on Confidentiality Provisions of the Acts:

Not applicable.

Omitted Information;

Not applicable.

Senior Officer knowledgeable about the Material Change and this Report:

For further information, please contact Marcel Coutu, President and Chief Executive
Officer of Canadian Oil Sands Limited, the manager of the Trust, at the above
mentioned address or at (403) 218-6200.

Statement of Senior Officer:

The foregoing accurately discloses the material change referred to herein.

DATED February 3, 2003, at Calgary, Alberta.

CANADIAN OIL SANDS TRUST, by its
manager, CANADIAN OIL SANDS LIMITED

By: (Signed) “Marcel Coutu”

Marcel Coutu
President and Chief Executive Officer

McCarthy Tétrault LLP CAL_DOCS #1338704 v. 3



APPENDIX A

Financial Statements of AEC Qil Sands, L.P.

NOTE: The attached financial statements have been provided by EnCana Corporation,
the Vendor in the Acquisition referred to in the Material Change Report of which this
Appendix forms a part, and Canadian Oil Sands makes no representation as to their
accuracy or completeness. EnCana currently holds its interest in the Syncrude Joint
Venture indirectly through AEC Oil Sands, L.P. (the “Partnership”). In addition to the
10% interest being acquired by Canadian Qil Sands pursuant to the Acquisition, the
Partnership also owns, indirectly, a 3.75% working interest in the Syncrude Joint Venture
(subject to a 6% gross overriding royalty). The attached financial statements reflect the
aggregate interest of the Partnership in the Syncrude Joint Venture, of which Canadian Oil
Sands has agreed to purchase only a portion pursuant to the Acquisition.

152623-316241
McCarthy Tétrault LLP CAL_DOCS #1338704 v. 3
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OCTOBER 31, 2002

(UNAUDITED)

NO.218

P.2



AEC OIL SANDS, LP..

STATEMENT.OF EARNINGS AND PARTNERS' EQUITY
(unaudited)

For the nine months ended October 31

{$ thousands) 2002 2001

Gross Revenues $ 488 348,843

Costs and Expenses )
Transportation 3912 . 5,084
Roysities 7,676 33,200
Operating costs 161,617 185,404
Indirect operating costs 140 638
Dspletion and raclamation 18,526 15,208
Interest, nat 149 (248)

192,020 219,382

Nst Eamings © S 182806 8 130,451

Statement of Partners' Equity

(unaudited)

As at October 31,

($ thousands) 2002 2001

Pariners’ equity, beginning of peried $ 0870644 S 673585

Eamings for the period . 152,806 130,451

Partners' equity, snd of period $ 1023448 § 804046

SN
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.

BALANCE SHEET
(unaudited)
As at As at
October 31 January 31
(8 thousands) 2002 2002
ASSETS
Currsnt
Cash and cash equivalents $ 16,716 $ 8.670
Accounts recsivable and accrued revenue 52,784 40,772
Prepaids - 635
Inventories 16,838 14,324
Due from pariners and afffliates 220,768
312,136 282,187
Capltal Assets 826,288 687,604
L0424 S 771
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' EQUITY
Current
Accounts paysble $ 20304 $ 7,373
Aocorued [iabllities 78,359 60,376
Other labiiitiss 835 2,087
‘ 87,408 50,836
Reclamation Provision 20477 18,291
117,676 79,127
Partners' Equity 1,028,448 870,644
$ 1141424 § NaAl




AEC OIL SANDS, L.P,

Cash (Bank Ovardraft), End of period

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Interast paid

.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS [
(unaudited)
For the nine months ended October 31,
($ thousands) 2002 2001
Operating Actlvities
Net samings $ 182,808 S 130,454
Depletion and reclamation 18,526 16,285
Other (1,282) (1,113
Cash Flow from Oparations 170,078 144,633
Net changs in non-cash working capital 26,083 18,438
186,132 183,071
Investing Activities .
Capital investment (178,357) (81,431)
' Reclamation payments (887) (296)
(178,024) (61.727) .
incressa |n Cash Before Financing Activities 17,108 101,344
Financing Activities
Inorease In due from partners (10,803) (91,186)
Deereqse in dus from afffliates 4,841 38
(6,062) (61,148)
increase In cash $ 11,048 § 10,196
Cash (Bank Overdraft), Beginning of psriod 5,670 (1,414)

§ _e78 8 8782
L N R ——
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AEC Oll Sands, L.P.
Finencial Statements
January 31, 2002
7
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FEB. 1.2083 4:37PM  ENCANA CORPORATION

@ COPEA NO.2i18 P.3

PRICEMVATERHOUSE(QOPERS

PricewsterhosseCoopers LLP
425 1i Stroct SW
Suirs 1200
Calgary, Albarls
Caeda TZPIV? 509 7500
Telephoos +1 (403
March 18, 2002 Facsimile +1 (t(m)m 1828
Auditors' Report
To the Partners of
AEC 0Oi] Sands, L.P.

Wo have audited the balance sheet of AEC Oil Sands, L.P. as at Jenuary 31, 2002 and the
swampntsofaaminssmdgmm' equity and cash flows for the year then ended. These
financial statements are responaibility of the Partmership's Management  Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Partnership as at January 31, 2002 and the results of its operations and the
changes in its cash position for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian Generally

Accepted Accounting Prinoiples. '

/mw-zz\.“aﬁrm cep

Chartersd Accountants

PricowntorhoussCoopery refers 1o the Canadisn firm of PricewntsthouseCoopers LLP and other members of tho worldwide
PricewnechouseCooners ormanieation
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. FEB. 1.2083 4:38PM___ ENCANA CORPORATION

AEC Oil Sands, L.P.
Balance Sheet

Ag at January 31,

(S thousands)

ASSETS

Current sstats
Cash znd cash squivalents
Amptlmdvuhhndlnmadm

Prepaida
Ioventaries
Dus from pariners and affilistes .

Capital assets, net

LIARILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Current Hiabilities

Sas accompanying notes (o the financlal stataments

Note

NO. 218

P.4

2002 2001

§ 5870 s .
40,112 48,631
&5 941
14,324 12,206
220,766 112,955
282,167 174,733
667,604 572,046
S 945,778 S 746,719
s . $ 1,414
7373 12,737
50,376 36,572
2,087 R
- 1,354
59,836 52.0M
- 3,617
19,291 17450
79,127 73,184
870,644 673,595
T 949,771 § 746,779




FEB. 1.2083 4:38PM ENCANA CORPORATION

AEC Oil Sands, L.P.

Statement of Barnings and Partners' Bquity
For the year ended January 31,

(§ thousands) '

Gross revenuss

Expenses
Royalties and other income
Operating costs
Indirect operating costs
Deplestion and reclamstion

Net earnings

Partuers’ equity, beginning of year
Distrfbution to partners

Partoers' squity, end of year

Ses accompanying notes to the financial statements

NO.218 P.5

2002 2001
§ 469,503 § 48,240
4,686 3,852
30,385 85,685
215,771 190,586
794 857
(399) (531)
21,217 16,833
197,049 164,958
673,595 588,637
—c— - BO </
$ 870,644 § 673,595



AEC Oil Sands, L.P.
Statement of Cagh Flows

For the year ended January 31,
(S thousands)

Operating activities
Net exmings
Depletion md reclsmation
Other
Net change in non-cash working cxpital
Investing activitiea
Crpital investment
Reclamation payments
Financing activities
Increass in due from partaers snd affiliatos
Distribution o partners
< Incresse (docrease) ta cash
(Bank overdraft) Cash, beginning of year

Cash (Bank overdraft), end of year

Supplementsl Information
Intersst paid '

See acoompanying notes to the financial statements

2002

$ 197,049
21217

(1,530)
216,736

14487
Bl@
(114,678)

—(296)
(L14974)

(109,165)

(108,165)
7,084

(1414)

$ 5610




FEB. 1.2083 4:38PM ENCANA CORPORATION No.218 P.7

AEC Oil Sands, L.P.

Notes to Financial Staternents

For the year ended January 31, 2002

(Tabular amounts in § thousands, unless otherwise stated)

1. Partnership information
AEC Ofl Sandy, L.P. {3 4 partnarship of ABC Oil Sands GP Ltd. and Alberta Energy Company Lid.,
which was formed om June 1, 1997, On formation, the original pertners contributed, at histarical

values, their respective interests in the Syncrude Canada Joint Venmre. The Partnership owns
® 13.75% intereat in the Syncrude Canada Joint Vexture.

2. Accounting policies

(A) Principles of Consolidation

Investments in unincorporated jomt ventures are accounted for nsing the proportionste
consolidation method, whereby ths Paytnership's share of revenues, expenses, assets and
liahilities are inchuded in the accounts.

(B) Measuresnent Uncertainty

" Amounts recorded for depletion are based on estimates of oil reserves and fisture costs required

o devalop those zeserves, The Parmership's reserve eatimates are reviewed anzually by an independent
engipeering firm. By thedr nature, these estimates of reserves and the related future cash fisws

are subject to measement uncertainty, and the impact on the financial statements of fistute
periods could be material,

(C) Revanue Recognition
Revennes astoviated with the sales of synthetic cruds oil owned by the Partnership are
recognired when tide passes from the Partership to its customer.

(D) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents inchide short-term investments with 2 maturity of three months or less
when purchased.

(B) Inventeries
Inventoriag are valued st the [ower of coqt ar egtiznated nat realizable valne.

(T) Capital Assets

Acquirition costs of capital assets aze capitalized, Thase costs inchude leasahold acquisition
costs and the cost of tangible equipment. All such costs are depletad and depracisted nsing

the unit-of-pradustion method, based an production of synthetic erude ofl from the existing facility.

Reclamation costs are sstimated and recorded over the estimatad life of the proven reserves.

(G) Hedging Activities
Settlement of crude oil swap sgreements, which have been arrangsd as a hedge against commodity
price fluctuations, are reflected in prodnot revennes at the time of sals of the relatsd hadged produstion.
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" FEB. 1.2003 4:38PM ENCANA CORPORATION NO.218

AEC Oil Sands, L.P.

Notes to Financial Statements

For the ysar ended January 31, 2002

(Tabular amounts in $ thousands, unless otharwise stated)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

(&) Bmployes Benafit Plans
The Parmership acerues for its proportionats share of the Synsrude Canada Jaint Venture
ohligations under employse benefit plans and the related costs, net of plan assets.

The cost of pensions and other retirement benefits samed by employees is actuarially
determined using the projectad benafit method pro-rated on service and Management's
best estimate of expected plan investment performance, salary sscalation, retirement
agas of employees and sxpectad health care costs. The obligation is discounted using
8 maricet interest mate at tha beginning of the year on high quality corpomate debt
instruments, :

For the purpose of calculating the expectsd return on plan asgets, those assets are valusd
at fafr valus, A

Past service costs from the plan smendments are amartized on a straight-line basis over
the avernge remaining aervice period of exmployees active at the date of amendment.

The excess of the net actnarial gain or loss over 10% of the greater of the benafit obligation
mm&mdmmummmhnmmmmodof

active suployees.

(D Income Taxes
Income taxes are the respanafbility of the individual partners and therefors no income
taxes have been recorded in these financial statsments.

. 3, Inventories ,
2002 2001
Materisls snd nuppliss $ 14,050 3 11,678
Finished goody inventory 274 } S28
§ 14324 S 12206
4. Capital assets
2002 2001
Cost $ 904,128 $ 789,450
Accumulsted deplstion (236,524) (217,404)
$ 667,604 § 572,046

5. Due from partners and affiliates/Due to affiliates

mmmduc&ﬁpmmudm;mMMMMMmmmim-wm
xad have no fixed terms of repayment. '
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AEC Oil Sands, L.P.

Notss to Financial Statements .

For the year ended January 31, 2002 .
(Tebular amounts in § thousands, unless otherwise stated)

6. Long-term debt

The Partuarship hag sveilable a $25.0 million imsecured revalving credit and term loan
facility. The facility is fully rovelving for 364-day periodz with provision for extension at the
option of the lender fallowing notice from the Partnership. If not axtended, thes fasility converts
to a non-revolving reducing fasility to be repayable in full by the end of five years. Loans are
svailzble in Canadian dollars or U.S. squivalent end currently bear interest sither at the lender's

mates for Canadiar prime commereial or U.S, base yate loans, a¢ Bankers' Acceptance rates
cr st LIBOR plus applicable marging, As at Jmoary 31, 2002, no smount {s outstanding under
this facility.

7. Othor Uabiiities

The amount, due to Syncrude Canada L2d., represents the nan-cagh components of priar years cost of
servics utility billings to the Syncrpde Canada Joint Venture, The amount is being repsid in oqual
manthly {nstallments of $139,100 until Msreh 31, 2003,

8. Royalties and other Income

Royaliies paysble to the Province of AJberts are govemnad by an agreement between the Syncrude
Canada Joinr Venture snd the Gavermnment of the Provincs of Alberts (the “Crown”).

The agresment provides for » fransition period from 1597 to the earlier of January 1, 2004 and the

manth after the Syncrude participants’ aggregate capital expenditures from 1996 have reached $2.8 billion.

The transition pariod teyminated in December 2001.
During the transition period the royalties were determined as the greater of:
{4) thonsat profits interegt share (Crown share) of gross revenues 1aas allowad opersting costs and a

43 percent credit for capital axpenditures
{B) one percent of gross revenuss sitributed to now produstion in axcess of 74 million barrels from

the ariginal leases and all production from new leases,

In January 2002, the Syncrude participants commenced paying royalties secerding to Alberta’s
generic ofl sands royslty legislagion, mmmlmmmwmmnmd
Albuhwﬂlmdvamsmﬁ :

(4) one pereant of gross revenues
(B) 25 percen: of the excees of gross revenues over allowed operating costs and capital expenditures for the year.

Other incoms includes $5.2 million of insurance proceeds.

S. Raiated party transactions

The following table cutlines the trangastions with sffiliates during the yean:
2002 2001

Oil hedgs revenue $31,958 $0
Royalty expense $5,545 $7,068
Tarief $4,078 $3,852
Mazrioting fees 5371 $378
Miamnagement foes $20 $2

The Partnership pays and receives management fees to/ffom affilistes,

o
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AEC Oil Sands, L.P.

Notes to Finanocial Statements

For ths year ended Jamuary 31, 2002

(Tabular amounts in § thousands, unless otherwise stated)

10. Commitments and cantingencics

The Synctude Cansde Johss Venture has entered into a capital comunivment for the purposes of expansion.
The Partnership's share of the capital commitment for the next three years are 2003 - §217.4 million;
2004 - $1237.3 million and 2005 - $90.9 million,

11. Pinancis! straments

(A) Financial Asssts and Ligbilities
The finansial assets and Habilities included in the fingncial statements are cash, accounts
recelvable, all current lisbilities and smounts dus to or fram affiliated compsanies.

The fair values of financial instruments {acluded in the balance ghaet spproximate
their carrying smoumt dus to the short-term maturity of those nstruments,

(B) Cradi Risk
‘ AMW&NM&Wmthmﬂmmm
- cil and gas industry and are subject to normal industry credit risks.

. 12, Employes benefits
The Synsruds Canada Jaint Venture has post-retirement benefits plans for its employees. The following

infarmation in this note represents the Partnership's propartionsts intersst. No adjustment has been mads
to reflect the Partnarship yesr snd of January 31, 2002.

$ millions) * 2001 2000
'(TT expenso for the defined contribution plan 5 06 S 05
Accrued bensfit obligation, beginning of the year $ 1022 § 654
Opening balance adjustment - 2438
Current sexvice cost 4.0 il
Interest cost ‘ 72 6.5
Bmaﬂup‘l.id @.1) c:?
Actusrial lom 102
‘Accrusd benefit obllgation, end of yesr $ 119.5 S 1022
(8 millions) 2001 2000
Fudr value of plan sspets, beginning of year $ 821 s 808
Actua] return on plan assets (4.8) 1.5
Employer contributions , 34 2.6
Beefin (3.5) 2.9)

value of pian aseets, end of yaar § 772 s 82l
Punded ststus - plan deficit S (423) S (201)
(’ Unamortized net actuarial loss 103 116

. Aocrued benefit lisbility S (32.0) $ (8

Pw
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AEC Oil Sands, L.P.

Notes to Pinancial Statements

For the year ended January 31, 2002

(Tabular amounts in § thousands, unless otherwise stated)

12, Employet beoefits (continued)
The significant actugrial assumptions used to dstermine ths perlodic expense end accrued benefit
obligations are as follows:
Batuuag 2001 2000
Discount rate . 6.5 80
Bxpeoted long-term rate of retum on plon essetr 9.0 8.0
Rate of compensztion increags 40 4.0
The peripdic expense for employee benefits is as follows;
(8 millions) 2001 2000
Current setvioe cost S 40 s il
Interest cost 7.2 65
Bxpected return cn plan gassts (7.4) 02)

thmmgm 0§ 0.5

et benaflt plan expense [ 4.4 s 29
The averags remaining service period of the active amployees coversd by the defined benefit plan

' iz 13.8 yeans,

NO.218 P.11

™
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PricewsterhouseCoopers LLP
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Audltors' Report

Ta the Pariners of
AEC Oll Sands, L.P.

We have auditad the balsnce sheet of AEC Ofl Sands, L.P. as at January 31, 2001 and the
staternents of aaminga, partners' equity and cash flaw for the year then ended. These financial
statemenis are the responaibiity of the Partnership's management: Our responsibiiity is to
express an opinion on thesa finencial statements based an our audit.

We conductad our audlt [n accardance with Csnadian generally accepted suditing standards.

Those siandarda require that we plen and perfarm en eudit to obtain reasoneble assurance

whether the financial statemants are free of material misstatament. An audit includes examining,

on a test basis, evidence supparting the 2mounts and disclosures in the financial statements, An

audit also Inciudes assessing the accounting principise used and significant estimstes made by
maeriagement, as well as evalusting the oversl financial statement prasentation,

in our opinion, these financlel statements present fairly, in all materfal respects, the financlal

pasition of the Partnership as at Jenuary 31, 2001 end the results 'of its aperatians and the
changes In ts cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally

accepted accounting principlea.

M deP.
Chartered Accountants .

Mm l’ﬁ‘lhﬁl mh of PricawaisthaisaCanners 1 1P and afva b oo o omssat s

/'\
o
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AEC OIL SAN_DS, L.P.
STATEMENT OF EARNINGS AND PARTNERS' EQUITY
For the year ended January 31,
(§ thousands) 2001 2000
Gross Revenue $ 462240 $ 2334417
Costs and Expenses
Transportation 3,852 2,743
Royalties 85,685 11,123
Operating costs 190,588 137,636
indirect operating costs 857 412
Depletion and reclamation 16,833 17,758
Interest, net (531) (112)
297,282 169,657
Net Earnings $ 164958 § 164,860

Statament of Partners' Equity

As at January 31,

($ thousands) 2001 2000
Partners' equity, beginning of year § 588637 § 428,044
Pension adjustment - (4,174)
Pariners' squity, beginning of year aa restated 588,637 423,870
Distribution to partners {80,000) (93)
Eamings for the year 164,958 164,860

Partners' equity, end of year

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

$ 673,588
L]

$ 588,637
L
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AEC OIlL SANDS, L.P. : -
BALANCE SHEET
As at January 31,

($ thousands) - ' " Note 2001 2000
ASSETS
Current
Cash - $ - $ 8,925
Accounts receivable 48,631 41,700
Due from pariners 7 112,955 72,892
Prepalds ‘ ) 844 274
Inventories ' 4 12,206 13,395
174,733 138,186
Capltal Assets 5 572,048 515,978

$ 746,778
L

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' EQUITY

$ 854,161
]

Current
Bank overdraft $ 1414 § -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilitles 6 48,309 42,861
Dua to affiliates 7 1,384 875
52,077 43,866
Reclamation Provision 17,490 16,372
Other Liabliities 8 3,817 5,286
73,184 65,524
Partners’ Equity 673,595 588,637

$ 745,778
L ]

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

$ 654,161

AN

Pan
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the ysar endad January 31,

(§ thousands) . - 2009 2000
Operating Activities .
Net earnings . . $ 164958 § 164,850
Depletion and reclamation 16,833 17,755
Other " (1,668) (1,391)
Cash Flow from Operatians 180,122 181,224
Net change In non-cash working capital 9 (19,065)
180,131 162,159
Investing Activities
Capital investment ' (71,786) (101,643)
Incraase in Cash Before Financing Activities 108,345 80,518
Financing Actlvities
Incraase In due from partners (40,083) (64,244)
Distributian te partners (80,000) (83)
Increase In due to affillates 378 304
(119,884) (64,033)
Decrease In cash , $ (11,339) § (3,517)
Cash, Beginning of year 9,028 13,442
(Bank Overdraft) Cash, End of year ' $ (1414) § 9,926

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Intersst paid ’ $ 47 $ 446

Ses accompanying notes to the financial statements
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Far the year snded January 31,
{tabular amounts in § thousands, unless othsrwiss indicated)

P.17

1

2

NATURE OF BUSINESS

AEC Qll Sends, L.P. Is 8 partnership of AEC Oil Sands GP Lid. and Alberta Energy Campany Lid.,

which was formed on Juna 1, 1897. On farmation, the ariginal pariners contributad, et historical
values, their reapective (nterests in the Syncruds Jaint Venture. The Parinership owns a 13,75%

Interest in the Syncrude Joint Venturs.
SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cs

1.

Principles of Consolidation
Investmants in unincorparatad joint ventures are accountsd for using the propartionats

consolidation mathod, whereby the Partnership's shere of revenyes, expsnses, asssts
and {labilities are Included in the accounts. ,

Meaasuroment Uncertainty
Amaunts recorded for depletion are basad on estimates of oil reserves. The Partnsrahip's

ressrve sstimates are raviewed annually. By their nsture, these sstimates of reserves and
the relatsd future cash flows are subject to measursment uncertainty, and the Impact on the
financial stataments of futura periads could be materisl.

Rsvsnue Recognition
Revenues sssociatad with the saiss of synthstic crude oil owned by the Parinership are

recognized when title passas from the Parinership to its custamer.,

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash aquivaients include short tarm investments with a maturity of three

months cor lees when purchasad.

* Capltal Asssts

Acquisition costs of capial asssts are caplalizad, Thess costs inclide lessshold acquisition
costs and the cost of tangibie equipment. All such costs are deplsted and depreciated using

the unit-of-preduction methad, besed on productien of synthetic crude ofl from the axisting faciity.

inventaries
inventories are valusd at the lower of cost or estimatad nat reaiizablis value,

Pravisian for Raclamation
Reclamation coats are estimated and recorded over the estimated lh'e of the proved

recoversble reserves.
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.

3.

h. Emgloyu Benefit Plans
The Syncrude Canada joint venture accrues for its obligations under employae beneft plans
and the related costs, net of plen assets, The joint venture has adopted the following policles

(see Nots 3):

* The cost of pensions and other retirsment benefits eamed by empioyeess Is actuarially
determined using the projected benefit mathed pro-ratad on service and Managemaent's
best estimets of sxpaciad plan investment parformance, salary secalation, retirement
ages of empioyees and expscied health care costs. The obiigation is discountsd using
a market interest rate at the beginning of the year on high quafily corporate debt
Instruments,

« For the purpase of caicuiating the sxpected retum on plan assets, those aseets are veiued
et falr value. ,

 Puast sarvics cests from the plan amendments are amartized on a straight-ine basis aver
the average remalning service period of employees active at the data of amendment.

¢ The excess of the net actuarial gain or loss over 10% of the greater of the benefit abligation
and ths falr vajue of plan sssets Is amortized over the average remelning service period of

ective smployese.

. Incoms Taxss
Income taxes are the respensibiiity of the individuai partners and therefore no income

taxes have baen recorded in these financial stataments.
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

On January 1, 2000, the Partnership retroactively adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants recommendations on accounting for smployee future bensfits. Amounts were directly

charged to Partners’ Equity and Accrued Liabiiities,

INVENTORIES
2001 2000
Materiais and supplias $ 11,878 $ 13,089
Flnished goods Inventory 828 308
$ 12,206 $ 13,385
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AEC OIL SANDS, L,P.

8.

10.

CAPITAL ASSETS
: 2001 2000
. Cust § 789450 $ 717664
Accumuleted dapletion . (217,404) {201 888)

3 g;am $ 815976

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

2001 2000

Trade sccounts payable $ 127377 $ 10,624
Accrued [iabliities 36,572 32.267
§ 48309 " § 42891
SO -_

DUE FROM PARTNERS AND DUE TO AFFILIATES

The amounts dus from partners and due to afffilates are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no
fixad terms of repayment. .

LONG-TERM DEBT

P

The Parinership has avajlable a $25.0 milllon unsecursd revelving credit and term loan

faciily. The faciilty is fully revalving for S64-day periods with pravision for axtensions at the
optian of the lender following notica from the Perinership. If not extanded, the facilty converts
to & non-revolving reducing faciifty to be repayable in full by ths end of five years. Loans are
avalable In Canadian doflars or U.S. squivalent and currently baar intarest efther at the lender's
ratas for Canadian prims commercial or U.S, base rats loans, at Benkers' Acceptance rates

or &t LIBOR plus applicable margine. As at January 31, 2001, no amount Is outstending under

this faciiity.
OTHER LIABILITIES
The amount, due to Syncrude Canada Lid., represents the non-cash components of prior years

cost of service utliity billings to the Syncrude Joint Venture. The amount Is being repaid In
equal monthiy Instaliments of $138, 100 until March 31, 2003,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Fair Values of Financlal Assats and Liabilitiss

The fair vajues of financlel netruments Inciuded In the balance sheet approximste
their carying ameunt dus to tha shori-term meturity of those instruments.
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.

(b) Credit Risk

A substantial portion of the Parinership!s accounta recaivable are with customers in the
ofl snd gas industry and are subject to narmal industry cradit risks.

11, SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(v) Employee Benefits
The Syncrude Canada jaint venture has post-ratiremsnt benefits plans for its smployees. The following

Information Is from the Syncrude Canada Lid, Decembsr 31, 2000 financial statements and represents
the Partnership's propertionate Intersst. No adjustment has bean made to reflect the Partnership yesr

end of January 31, 2001,

($ mililans) 2000 1988
Total expenss for the defined contributian plan § 0.5 3 0.5
Aocrued benefit nbllgaﬂon; keginning of the yeer $ 884 $ 81.8
Opening baiance adjystment 48 .
Current sarvice cost 31 23
Interest cost | 6.5 49
Banefits paid (32) (28)
Actusrial (gsin) loss 3.6 {a.7)
Accrued bensfit abilgation, end of year $ 1022 $ 654
2000 1888
Fair value of plen assets, beginning of year § 803 S 709
Actiial rstum on plan sssats _ 18 10.8
Empioysr contributions - ‘ as 1.6
Bspeftis paid (2.8) {2.8)
Fair vaiue of plan assets, end of year $ 821 $ 80.8
Funded status - plan aurplus (déficl) $ @) s 164
Unamartized net actuarial loss (cain) 11.8 (20.7)
Accrysd beneftt asset (labiy) : $ (28 5 (5.3)
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.

11. SUPPLEMENTARY INFQRMATION (cunﬂnuod)

The significant actuarial sssumptions used to dcbrmln- the periodic expense and accrued benefit
obligations ara as foflows:

Peroent (%) 2000 1998
Discount rate 2.0 7.28
Expected lang-tarm rats on plan assets ‘ 8.0 8.0
Rats of compensatian incresss 40 4,5

The periodic expenss for smployee benafits is as follows:

2000 1988
Current servics cost 5 31 [} 24
(ntersst cost ’ a.5 74
Expected refum on plan assets (12) {8.0)
Amoariization of net actuaral loss .’ (12)
Expensa for definad contribution plan 0.5 0.8
Nat banefl plan expense $ 2.9 $ 0.2

The average remaining servics period af the active employees covared by the defined benef pian
- Is 13.8 ysars. .

(b) Reiated Party Transactions
The following tabls autiines the transactions with afflliates during the yaan,

{($ thousands)
2001 2000
Royaities 7.068 5432
Tarir 3,852 2,743
Marketing foes o 378 303
Management fees 2 25

The Partnership pays and recelves managsment faes toffrom afflilatas.

{c} Commitments

The Partnership has sntered Inta e capital commitment for the purposes of sxpansion at '
Synarude. The Partnership's share of the capital commitment is approximately § 18.7 milflan

In the next year.
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- Telephone +1 (403) 509 7500
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Auditors’ Report

To the Partners of
AEC Ol Sends, L.P,

We havs audiied the balence shast of AEC Ol Sends, L.P. as at January 31, 2000 and the
statements of eamings, partners’ equity and cash flow for the year then ended. Thess financial
statements are the responsibitty of the Partnership's management. Our mponsibmw st
exprass an opinion on these financial statements bassd on our audit,

We conducted our audit In accordanoe with Canedian generally mphd auditing standards.
Those standards require that we pian and perform an eudit to obtain reesonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of matsrial misstatsmant. An audht Inciudes examining,
on a test basis, avidance supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financiel statements. An
audit also includes sssseaing the accounting principlas used and significant estimates made by
managemant, as wail se evaiuigting the overall financlal stetsmant prassntation.

In our opinion, these financial ststemants present fairly, in all material respacts, the financial
position of the Parinership as at January 31, 2000 and the results of iis operations and the
ehangeahlhmhﬂmfwheyurmenmmmnmdanawm\madhnmmny

accepted nocounting principles.

M @M e

Chartered Acoourtants

mqu:nfutuhm firm of PricswaterhauseCocpers LLP and other members of the wertdwide

Drdrnanmendnarmao o o — - -
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AEC OIL SANDS, LP.
STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
For the year ended January 31,
(8 thousands) _2000 1888
Revenus
Revenus, net of tariff $ 3816874 § 221,718
Royaltise (expense) c (1129) 1967
320,551 223,073
Operating .
Qeneral nd adminiszatve a2 vew
138,048 140,218
Earnings before undernatad 162,503 82,860
Depreaiation 16,278 18,878
o -
. (112) (716)
Net Eamings $ 164,860 § 650841
Statsment of Pariners’ Equity
As at January 31,
{8 thousands) Nate 2000 1999
Partnare' aquity, beginning of year $ 422870
§ 882,117
Pension adjustmant 10 - (4,174)
Partrisrs’ aqulty, beginning of year as restated 423870
Distribution to Partners 83) w":ﬁ,.
Eamings for the year 164,860 85,841
200057, 5 423870
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P, (

BALANCE SHEET

As ut January 31, -

($ thousands) 2000 1969

ASSETB

Current
Cash . § 9828 § 13442
Accounts raceivable 41,700 25,189
Due from Partner 72,882 8,648
Prepalds 274 462
inventories 1 1

138,186 60,763

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' RQUITY
Current
~Acoounts payable and accrued liabliities
Due to Affiliates .

Reclamation Provision
Other Liabllitles

Partners' Equity

.
$§ 42891 § 45260
978 o1
43,868 45,931
16372 14,898
5,286 6,677
. 65,524 67,503
588,637 423,670

$ 6854161 $ 461373
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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For the ysar anded January 31,
" (8 thousands) | 2000 1899
Operating Activities .
Net Eamings $ 184080 § 65041
Depreciation - 16,278 16,378
Reclamation 1,477 1,287
Other (1,381) 81
Cash Flow from Oparations 181,224 83,857
Net change in non-cash working capital Qm' (13,822)
: . 162,158 89,736

C investing Activities
- Capital investmant

Incraase (Dacreass) in Cash Before Fimnelnu Aotivities

Financing Activitiss
increase in due from pariners
increase In due to afflliates
Distribution to partners

Decresss In Cash
Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of ysar
Supplemental disciosurs of cash flow information
interest paid ‘

—(101,843) ___ (72.073)°

_s0s16 __ (23%7)

(54,244) (8,787)
304 ) 8§38
(3) (14)

—(84083) ____ (8276)
s @sm s (08
13442 24,085

$ 5926 S 13442

4185 $ 56
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(tabular amounts in § thousands, unisss otherwisa indicatad)

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS

AEC Of Sends, L.P. ie a parthership of AEC Off Sands GP Lid. and Alberta Energy Company Ltd,,
which wae formed on June 1, 1997. On formation, the pariners contributed, at historical values,
their respective interests in the Synorude Joint Venture. The Partnership owns a 13.76%
interast in the Syncrude Joint Venturs and & 8.0% overriding royalty on an additional
1.25% intersst.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation
Imuﬁmnbhmhwmmhd}ﬁnvcnmmmmnhdfwmmmmm«
consolidstion method, whereby the Partnership's share of ravenues. expenses, assats
and flabilties are included in the accounts.

Capita] Assets
MlmebmmmmﬂandamﬂhedmmmmmduMmaﬂmd
bwmsﬂnﬂumdmwm

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or esiimated net realizabis vsive,

. Pravision for Reclamation

Redamﬁmmbanuﬂmmdmmodmmenmmnfhm
recovearable ressives,

Income Taxes
income taxas are the responsibiitty of the individual partnars and therefore no income
taxes have bean rscorded in thess financial statements. . .

Cssh and Caah Equivalents
Cash and cash equivaienty include short term investments with a maturily of three

.months or jsss when purchased,
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.

3.

INVENTORIES
As st January 31
‘ 3000 1668
Materials and supplies $ 13,080 § 12606
Finished poods inventory 308 292
. $ 1 S 12,888
L ] e ]
CAPITAL ASSETS "
As at January 31
' 2000 1969
Coat . § 717,664 § 616,021
Aoccumuleted depreciation g.saq (185,411)
‘ $ 815878  §_ 430610
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
, As at January 31
2000 1868
Trads accaunts payable s 10,634  § 4111 -
Acorued (ablities 32,287 36,963
Provigion for coker tumaround . 4,188 -
. ] $ “:m

T

DUE FROM/TO PARTNER OR AFFILIATES

The amounts due from/o partners or affilates are unsecured, non-intsrest bearing and have no
fixad terms of repayment.

LONG-TERM DEBT

The Parinership hes avaiable a $25.0 million unsscured revoiving credit and term lean

fachity. The facitty s fully revoiving for 384-day periods with provision for axtensions at the
option of the lender following notics from the Partnership. if not extended, the faclily converts
to a non-revalving reducing facility to be repayable In full by the and of five ysars. Loans are
available n Canadian dollars or U.S, equivalent and currently bear interest either at the lender's
rates for Canadian prime commeraial or U.S. base rate ioans, at Bankars' Acceptance rates
or at LIBOR plus applicable margins. As at Januery 31, 2000, no smount is outstanding under
this facliity.
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8. OTHER LIABLLITIES

The amount, due to Syncrude Canada Lid., represents the non-cash components of utility
bilings to the Synorude Jaint Venturs. Synorude Canada Lid. pays the cash component
and records the non-cash portion as a fiabliity, which, starting Apri 1, 1968, is being
repaid in equal instalimsnts untl March 31, 2003,

9. PFINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Fair Values of Financial Asssts and Liabllitiss

The fair values of financial instruments inoluded In the baiance sheet approximats
thelr carrying amount due to the shori-tam maturity of thoss instruments.

Cradit Risk

A subatantial portion of the Parinership's accounts recelvabls are with customers in the
oll and gas industry and are subject o normal industry credit rieks.

10. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

(w)

()

Pension Plan

The Syncrude Joint Venturs has a defined benafit pension plan, At January 1, 2000

the market value of the Partnership's share of the pansion fund assets was $102.7 miliion
(1999 - $88.6 million) and the Parinership's share of aocruad pansian lisbiilty, as estimated
by the joint vanture's actuaries, was $112.1 milion (1999 - §80.0 million).

Qn January 1, 2000, the Parinership fetroectiviely adopted the Canadian institute of
Chartsred Accouniants recommendstions on accounting for amplayee future benefits.
Amounts wers directly civarged to Partners’ Equity and Acorued Liabilities,
Related Party Transactions

The foliowing tabis outiines the transactions with affilatea during the yesr:

2000 1989
Royaitiss $ 84 $ 3824
Tarift $ 218 $§ 3ss0
Marksting fees $ 303 $ 538
Managementfeas - $ s S 38

The Parinership pays and receives managemasnt feea to/from affiiiates.

';/h\‘,\
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() Commitments

The Partnership has sniered into a capltal commitment for the purposes of expansion
at Syncrude. mmmam«mapummhmly
$ 33.5 miliion in tha next year.

11. UNCERTAINTY DUE TO THE YEAR 2000

The Year 2000 issue ariess becauss many computerized systerns use two dights rether than
four io identily a year. Data-sansiiive systams may recognizs the year 2000 as 1800 or
some other dats, resulting in ermors when information using ysar 2000 detes Is processed.
In addition, simiisr problams may ariss n some systems which use certain dates in 1888 -
to represent something other then a date. Although the changs in date has occurred, R is
not possibie to conclude that all aspects of the Year 2000 [saue that may affect the
'Parinarship, including thoss relatad o efforts of customers, suppliers, or ather third parties,
have been fufly rescived. ° ,






No securities regulatory authority has expressed an opinion about these securities and it is an offence to claim otherwise. This short form prospectus constitutes a public offering of
these securities only in those jurisdictions where they may be lawfully offered for sale and therein only by persons permitted to sell such securities. These securities have not been and
will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”), or any state securities laws. Accordingly, except to the extent permitted by the
Underwriting Agreement, these securities may not be offered or sold within the United States of America or to a U.S. Person (as such term is defined in Regulation S under the 1933
Act) unless registered under the 1933 Act and applicable state securities laws or an exemption from such registration is available. This short form prospectus does not constitute an
offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any of the securities offered hereby within the United States of America. See “Plan of Distribution”.

SHORT FORM PROSPECTUS
New Issue February 13, 2003

. Canadian O1l Sands

$375,025,000
10,715,000 Subscription Receipts, each representing the right to receive one Trust Unit

Each subscription receipt (a * " Subscription Receipt") of Canadian Oil Sands Trust (the * " Trust") offered hereby will entitléhe holder thereof
to receive, without payment of additional consideration, one trust unit (a **Trust Unit") of the Trust upon completion of theacquisition (the
*Acquisition") by Canadian Oil Sands Limited (" *COSL") from EnCana Corporation (" *EnCana") of an indirect 10% working intest in the
Syncrude Joint Venture. See *“Proposed Acquisition”. The Trust Units underlying the Subscription Receipts are also qualified kreby.

The proceeds from the sale of the Subscription Receipts (the * *Escrowed Funds") will be held by Computershare Trust Company ofCanada, as
escrow agent (the *"Escrow Agent") pending completion of the Acquisition. Upon the Acquisition being completed on or before Mach 31,
2003, the Escrowed Funds will be released to the Trust and the Trust Units will be issued to the holders of Subscription Receipts.

Investment in the Subscription Receipts and the Trust Units is subject to certain risks that should be considered by prospective purchasers, See
“Risk Factors”,

The Trust Units are listed and posted for trading on the Toronto Stock Exchange (the ™" TSX") under the symbol **COS.UN". Thelosing price
of the Trust Units on the TSX on February 12, 2003 was $35.05. The offering price of the Subscription Receipts was determined by negotiation
between COSL, on behalf of the Trust, and CIBC World Markets Inc. and Merrill Lynch Canada Inc., on behalf of themselves and
RBC Dominion Securities Inc., BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc., Scotia Capital Inc., National Bank Financial Inc., TD Securities Inc., Canaccord
Capital Corporation, FirstEnergy Capital Corp., Peters & Co. Limited and Raymond James Ltd. (collectively, the " Underwriters).

Price: $35.00 per Subscription Receipt

Price to the Public ~ Underwriting Fee®  Net Proceeds to the Trust®

Per Subscription Receipt . .. .. ... $35.00 $1.40 $33.60
Total) L e $375,025,000 $15,001,000 $360,024,000
Notes:

(1) The Underwriting Fee is payable as to 50% upon the closing of this Offering and 50% upon release of the Escrowed Funds to the Trust. In the event the Escrowed
Funds are refunded to subscribers, the Underwriting Fee will be reduced to the amount payable upon closing of this Offering.

(2) Excluding interest on the Escrowed Funds and before deducting expenses of the issue estimated at $500,000.

(3) The Trust has granted to the Underwriters an over-allotment option (the *Over-Allotment Option"), exercisable in whole orin part for a period of 30 days from the
closing of the Offering, to purchase up to an additional 1,607,250 Subscription Receipts at the Offering price to cover over-allotments, if any. If the Over-Allotment
Option is exercised in full, the total Price to the Public will be $431,278,750, the Underwriting Fee will be $17,251,150 and the Net Proceeds to the Trust, excluding
interest on the Escrowed Funds and before deducting expenses of the issue, will be $414,027,600. This short form prospectus qualifies the distribution of the
Subscription Receipts issuable upon the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option. See *“Plan of Distribution",

The Underwriters, as principals, conditionally offer the Subscription Receipts, subject to prior sale, if, as and when issued by the Trust and
delivered and accepted by the Underwriters in accordance with the conditions contained in the Underwriting Agreement referred to under
**Plan of Distribution" and subject to approval of certain legal matters relating to the qualification for distribution of theSubscription Receipts
on behalf of the Trust by McCarthy Tetrault LLP, and on behalf of the Underwriters by Macleod Dixon LLP.

Subscriptions for Subscription Receipts will be received subject to rejection or allotment in whole or in part and the right is reserved to close
the subscription books at any time without notice. Subscription Receipts and Trust Units will be issued as book-entry only certificates. Closing
of this Offering is expected to occur on or about February 27, 2003 but not later than March 28, 2003. Subject to applicable laws, the
Underwriters may, in connection with the Offering, effect transactions which stabilize or maintain the market price of the Subscription
Receipts and Trust Units at levels other than those which might otherwise prevail on the open market. Such transactions, if commenced, may
be discontinued at any time. See " Plan of Distribution".

Each of CIBC World Markets Inc., RBC Dominion Securities Inc., BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc. and Scotia Capital Inc. is an affiliate of a Canadian
chartered bank that is party to one or more credit agreements with COSL. Additionally, each of CIBC World Markets Inc. and Merrill Lynch
Canada Inc. is an affiliate of an entity that has provided an underwritten commitment to provide acquisition financing to COSL in connection
with the Acquisition. Consequently, the Trust may be considered to be a connected issuer of each of these Underwriters for the purposes of
applicable Canadian securities laws. Funds will be advanced under such commitments to complete the Acquisition. See “Plan of Distribution”.

The TSX has conditionally approved the listing of the Subscription Receipts and the Trust Units issuable to holders of Subscription Receipts
on the TSX. Listing is subject to the Trust fulfilling all of the requirements of the TSX on or before May 6, 2003.
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GLOSSARY

In this short form prospectus, the following terms have the meanings set forth below.

*Alberta Crown Agreement" means the agreement between the Province of Alberta and the Participants which
creates a joint veature providing for payments to the Province of Alberta of the Crown Royalty.

“Crown Royalty" or * Crown Royalties" means the amount to be paid to the Province of Alberta pursuant to the
Alberta Crown Agreement in lieu of a conventional Crown royalty.

> Participants" means AEC Oil Sands Limited Partnership (5%), AEC Oil Sands, L.P. (10%), Canadian Oil
Sands Limited (21.74%), Conoco Phillips Oilsands Partnership II (9.03%), Imperial Oil Resources (25%),
Mocal Energy Limited (5%), Murphy Oil Company Ltd. (5%), Nexen Inc. (7.23%) and Petro-Canada (12%),
the corporations or partnerships that own the undivided interests in the Syncrude Project.

* Syncrude" means, collectively, the Syncrude Joint Venture and the Syncrude Project.

* Syncrude Joint Venture” means the joint venture formed by the Participants for the purpose of exploiting the
Athabasca oil sands, which includes the Syncrude Plant and leases acquired or developed in
connection therewith.

* Syncrude Plant" means the plant and facilities located at Mildred Lake, approximately 40 kilometres north of
Fort McMurray, Alberta, where the mining, extraction and upgrading of bitumen occurs.

* Syncrude Project" means (a) the process for recovery of oil sands, crude bitumen or products derived therefrom,
(b) all property now owned or hereafter acquired or developed by the owners participating from time to time in
such scheme or by Syncrude Canada Ltd. on their behalf in connection with such scheme, (c) the oil sands leases
and (d) any other scheme or schemes implemented for the purpose of recovering oil sands, crude bitumen or
products derived from those oil sands leases related to such scheme or schemes and all property acquired or
developed in connection with such scheme or schemes.

i
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NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This short form prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference herein contain certain forward-
looking statements. These statements relate to future events or the Trust's future performance. All statements
other than statements of historical fact are forward-looking statements. In some cases, forward-looking

statements can be identified by terminology such as ~“may", *“will", ~“should", " “expect", " "plan”, " "anticipate",

b ’
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*“believe", " “estimate"”, " predict", * " potential", " “continue", or the negative of these terms or other comparable

terminology. These statements are only predictions. Actual events or results may differ materially. In addition,
this short form prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference herein may contain forward-looking
statements attributed to third party industry sources.

Forward-looking statements in this short form prospectus include, but are not limited to, statements with
respect to: the expected production level at Syncrude for 2003 and beyond, and the resuiting oil production per
day for the Trust; the expected level of oil and natural gas prices; the anticipated impact that certain factors such
as natural gas and oil prices, foreign exchange rates and operating costs have on the Trust's cash flow and net
income; the aggregate capital cost of the Stage 3 expansion of Syncrude and the completion date for such
expansion; the impact of the Kyoto Protocol on the Trust and the Canadian economy in general and the
anticipated maintenance work at Syncrude and the impact such maintenance will have on the Trust's
financial results.

Undue reliance should not be placed on forward-looking statements, as there can be no assurance that the
plans, intentions or expectations upon which they are based will occur. By their nature, forward-looking
statements involve numerous assumptions, known and unknown risks and uncertainties, both general and
specific, that contribute to the possibility that the predictions, forecasts, projections and other forward-looking
statements will not occur. Although the Trust believes that the expectations represented by such forward-looking
statements are reasonable, there can be no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct. Some of the
risks and other factors which could cause results to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking
statements contained in this short form prospectus and in the documents incorporated by reference herein
include, but are not limited to: general economic, business and market conditions, and such other risks and
uncertainties described from time to time in the reports and filings made with securities regulatory authorities by
the Trust.

The foregoing list of important factors is not exhaustive. Furthermore, the Trust does not undertake any
obligation to update publicly or to revise any of the included forward-looking statements after the date of this
short form prospectus, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Information has been incorporated by reference in this prospectus from documents filed with securities
commissions or similar authorities in Canada. Copies of the documents incorporated herein by reference may be
obtained on request without charge from the General Counsel and Corporate Secretary of the Trust, 2500 First
Canadian Centre, 350 - 7th Avenue S.W,, Calgary, Alberta, T2P 3NO9, telephone (403) 218-6200. For the purpose
of the Province of Quebec, this simplified prospectus contains information to be completed by consulting the
permanent information record. A copy of the permanent information record may be obtained from the General
Counse! and Corporate Secretary of the Trust at the above-mentioned address and telephone number. These
documents are also available through the internet on the System for Electronic Document Analysis and
Retrieval (SEDAR) which can be accessed at www.sedar.com.

The following documents, filed with the securities commissions or similar authorities in each of the
provinces of Canada, are specifically incorporated by reference in, and form an integral part of, this prospectus,
provided that such documents are not incorporated by reference to the extent that their contents are modified or
superseded by a statement contained in this prospectus or in any other subsequently filed document that is also
incorporated by reference in this prospectus:

(a) Audited consolidated financial statements of the Trust as at and for the years ended December 31, 2001
and December 31, 2000, together with the auditors' report thereon;



(b) Management's discussion and analysis for the year ended December 31, 2001, which is contained in the
2001 Annual Report of the Trust;

(c) Annual Information Form of the Trust dated May 17, 2002 for the year ended December 31, 2001;

(d) Management Information Circular of the Trust dated March 8, 2002 relating to the annual and special
meeting of Unitholders of the Trust held on April 25, 2002 (excluding the information contained
therein under the sections entitled ~~Executive Compensation - Report on Executive Compensation”,
*"Performance Graph", * " Statement of Corporate Governance Practices”, and Schedules A, B, Cand D
which shall be deemed not to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus);

(e) Material change report of the Trust dated June 26, 2002 relating to the termination of the
administrative services agreement between the Trust and EnCana;

(f) Unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of the Trust as at September 30, 2002 and for the
three-month and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2002 and September 30, 2001;

(g) Management's discussion and analysis for the three-month and nine-month periods ended
September 30, 2002;

(h) Unaudited consolidated financial statements of the former Canadian Oil Sands Trust (" ~COST") prior
to its merger with Athabasca Oil Sands Trust (* AOST"), the predecessor to the Trust, for the three
month period ended March 31, 2001, the audited comparative consolidated financial statements of
COST as at December 31, 2000 and 1999 and for the three years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and
1998, together with the auditors' report thereon, contained in the Joint Management Information
Circular of COST and AOST dated May 11, 2001 at pages E-57 to E-76;

(i) Press release of the Trust dated January 23, 2003 announcing certain financial results of the Trust for
the year ended December 31, 2002; and

(j) Material change report of the Trust dated February 3, 2003 announcing the proposed Acquisition.

Any documents of the type referred to above (except press releases and confidential material change
reports) filed by the Trust with the various securities commissions or similar authorities in the provinces of
Canada subsequent to the date of this prospectus and prior to the termination of this Offering, shall be deemed
to be incorporated by reference into this prospectus.

Any statement contained in this prospectus or in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by
reference herein shall be deemed to be modified or superseded, for purposes of this prospectus, to the extent that
a statement contained herein or in any other subsequently filed document which also is, or is deemed to be,
incorporated by reference herein modifies or supersedes such statement. The modifying or superseding statement
need not state that it has modified or superseded a prior statement or include any other information set forth in
the document that it modifies or supersedes. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not constitute a part
of this prospectus, except as so modified or superseded.

C.
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THE TRUST

The Trust is an open-ended investment trust created upon the merger of AOST and COST and governed by
an amended and restated trust indenture dated July 5, 2001 (the *“Trust Indenture"). AOST acquired all the
assets of COST and assumed all the liabilities of COST in exchange for AOST units equal to the number of
COST units issued and outstanding as of July 5, 2001. AOST then changed its name to Canadian Oil Sands
Trust. Effective January 1, 2003, and following receipt of a favourable tax opinion from Canada Customs and
Revenue Agency (" “CCRA), the Trust completed the amalgamation of its three subsidiaries, Canadian Oil Sands
Investments Inc. ("~ COSII"), Athabasca Oil Sands Investments Inc. (* AOSII") and Canadian Oil Sands Limited,
into a single continuing corporation, Canadian Oil Sands Limited (" *COSL"). COSL is the manager of the Trust.

The registered and head office of the Trust is located at 2500 First Canadian Centre, 350 - 7th Avenue S.W.,
Calgary, Alberta T2P 3N9. The current trustee is Computershare Trust Company of Canada.

Intercorporate Relationships

As of the date hereof, the only subsidiary of the Trust is COSL, which is incorporated under the laws of the
Province of Alberta and is the corporation continuing from the amalgamation of AOSII, COSII and Canadian
Qil Sands Limited referred to above. COSL currently holds an aggregate 21.74% working interest in Syncrude.

The following diagram sets forth the ownership structure of the Trust prior to the proposed Acquisition
described below:

Public
Unitholders

Trust Units

Trust

Common
Shares Trust Royalties
(100%)

COSL

Working Interest
(21.74%)

Syncrude Joint Venture




DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

The Trust is one of the largest energy trusts in Canada, based on market capitalization as at January 31,
2003, and the only public investment vehicle that provides non-diversified ownership in Syncrude, the largest oil
sands project in the world. The Syncrude operation is comprised of four major operating areas: mining,
extraction, upgrading and utilities. Syncrude's principal product is a high quality, light, sweet synthetic blend,
referred to as * " Syncrude Sweet Blend" (" “SSB").

The Trust's 21.74% working interest in Syncrude is held indirectly through the Trust's ownership in COSL.
COSL pays net royalties (the " Trust Royalties") on the production of synthetic crude oil and associated
products, attributable to its working interest in Syncrude, to the Trust, which receives the Trust Royalties and
makes distributions to holders of Trust Units (" " Unitholders").

COSL oversees the 21.74% working interest in Syncrude and provides representation on the Syncrude
Management Committee. In addition, COSL is responsible for the management of the Trust. Specific
responsibilities are as follows: (i) to ensure compliance by the Trust with continuous disclosure obligations under
all applicable securities legislation; (ii) to provide finance, legal, engineering, treasury and investor relations
services; (iii) to provide, or cause to be provided, to Unitholders all information to which Unitholders are
entitled under the Trust Indenture; (iv) to call, hold and distribute material including notices of meetings and
information circulars in respect of all necessary meetings of Unitholders; (v) to determine the amounts payable
from time to time to Unitholders and to arrange for distribution to Unitholders of distributable income; and
(vi) to determine the timing and terms of future offerings of Trust Units, if any.

The Syncrude Joint Venture is a joint venture owned, in undivided interests, by the Participants. The assets
of the Syncrude Joint Venture are operated and managed by Syncrude Canada Ltd., which is owned by the joint
venture Participants in the same proportions as their interest in the joint venture. Syncrude Canada Ltd. is a
single purpose company with no significant assets. The Syncrude Management Committee governs Syncrude and
each joint venture Participant nominates a representative to the committee, which is charged with setting the
strategic direction for and making decisions regarding the operation of the Syncrude Joint Venture. Marcel
Coutu, President and Chief Executive Officer of COSL, is the Chairman of the Syncrude Management
Committee. Each Participant receives its share of production in kind and is responsible for the subsequent
marketing of such share of the production. Syncrude commenced production in 1978 and has, since then,
significantly increased production at the Syncrude Plant through capital investment, technological and efficiency
improvements.

Syncrude

Syncrude produces SSB by surface mining certain Athabasca oil sands deposits, extracting the bitumen and
upgrading the bitumen to a light, sweet crude oil. Bitumen, in its raw state, is a thick, black crude oil that
requires upgrading to make it useable by conventional refineries. The upgraded bitumen or SSB produced at the
Syncrude Plant is marketed to a variety of refinery facilities throughout Canada and the United States.

Syncrude has, through the introduction of pioneering technologies, improved energy efficiency, reduced
atmospheric emissions and increased the amount of oil recovered and produced per barrel of bitumen. Current
proprietary technologies, developed over the last 10 years, include low-energy extraction, which reduces the
process temperatures to extract bitumen from the oil sand, resulting in substantial energy savings and emission
reductions. Another innovation is hydrotransport, where oil sand and water are combined into a slurry and
transported via pipeline to the extraction plant. This technology reduces maintenance and operating costs.
Syncrude has developed the technology, called ™ " natural flow lubricity" to pipeline bitumen froth (approximately
60% bitumen, 30% water and 10% fine solids) without the use of a diluent, which is normally used to pipeline
viscous heavy oil. This innovation makes it possible to operate oil sand mines far from the extraction facilities,
such as the Aurora mine. By 2007, all mined materials are expected to be moved by hydrotransport as the older
operations are phased out.

The largest stage of Syncrude's expansion plans, Stage 3, began in 2001. At the end of 2002, engineering and
design work on the upgrader expansion (~"UE-1") was 90% complete and construction was approximately 10%
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complete with startup scheduled for early 2005. The second component of the expansion, the Aurora 2 mining
and extraction train (" Aurora 2"), reached 92% completion of engineering and design and 50% completion of
construction. The train is scheduled to begin bitumen production by the end of this year.

In November 2002, the Trust confirmed the increase in the total estimated cost to Syncrude for the Stage 3
expansion from the initial $4.1 billion provided early in 2002 to approximately $5.7 billion. The total estimated
cost net to the Trust based on its current 21.74% interest is now $1.2 billion. The revised estimate is based on the
completion of over 90% of the detailed engineering work with construction well underway. The total project
amount is comprised of $690 million for Aurora 2 and $4.98 billion for UE-1.

As at December 31, 2002, the Syncrude Joint Venture had expended approximately $2.1 billion,
$458 million net to the Trust, related to the Stage 3 expansion since the launch of the expansion in 2001.
Following its completion, scheduled for early 2005, Stage 3 is expected to boost current production by 50% to
approximately 77,000 barrels per day net to the Trust.

Two additional expansion phases to follow Stage 3 were also announced late in 2001. The Stage 4 expansion,
to occur over the years 2006 to 2010, is expected to increase productive capacity to 150 million barrels per year.
The Stage 5 expansion, which is in the early phase of conceptual engineering development, is expected to occur
over the years 2011 to 2015. Annual productive capacity is expected to increase to approximately 200 million
barrels per year by 2013 to 2015. The Stage 4 and Stage 5 expansions are preliminary and have not yet been
approved to proceed by the Participants.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS
Termination of Administrative Services Agreement

The administrative services arrangement between the Trust and EnCana was terminated effective
November 1, 2002. Concurrent with the termination of the administrative services arrangement, each of COSII
and AOSII, the former managers and subsidiaries of the Trust, redeemed the preferred shares held by EnCana
for an aggregate redemption price equal to approximately $4.5 million, being the original issue price of such
shares plus all accrued and unpaid dividends thereon. As a result, COSL now employs its own staff, leases office
space and retains third parties to provide certain services previously provided by EnCana.

Fourth Quarter Results

On January 23, 2003, the Trust announced its financial and operating results for the quarter and year ended
December 31, 2002. Syncrude operations performed near productive capacity rates in the fourth quarter of 2002,
continuing the momentum established in the third quarter. Reliable operating performance, together with
higher crude oil prices, contributed to the financial results for the Trust.

The Trust also announced the following year-over-year highlights: cash flow per Trust Unit rose 37% to
$5.63, or $321.8 million in aggregate; net income per Trust Unit increased 83% to $4.72, or $269.9 million in
aggregate; production increased four percent to total 18.2 million barrels, or an average of 49,806 barrels per
day; operating costs per barrel declined seven percent to an average of $17.40 per barrel; netback per barrel rose
39% to $20.88, reflecting a higher average realized selling price, and lower operating and crown royalty
expenses; capital spending increased 125% to $403.2 million with approximately 87% directed to the Stage 3
expansion; and year-end net debt to capitalization was 29% as compared to 26% as at December 31, 2001.

PROPOSED ACQUISITION

Summary

On February 3, 2003, COSL entered into an acquisition agreement with EnCana (the *Acquisition
Agreement") to purchase an indirect 10% working interest (the **Syncrude Interest") in the Syncrude Joint
Venture. The closing of the Acquisition is expected to occur on or about February 28, 2003, and is subject to
several conditions, including regulatory approvals and other conditions described below. The purchase price



payable by the Trust is approximately $1.07 billion, subject to certain working capital and other adjustments to
be made at the closing of the Acquisition.

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, prior to closing of the Acquisition, EnCana will effect a
reorganization of its ownership interest in Syncrude such that on closing COSL will acquire all of the
outstanding trust units and debt obligations of a commercial trust to be known as the Canadian Oil Sands
Commercial Trust (" *CT"), which at the time of closing of the Acquisition will hold a 9.5% working interest in
Syncrude, and COSL will also acquire all of the outstanding shares of AEC Oil Sands GP Ltd., which at the time
of closing of the Acquisition will hold a 0.5% working interest in Syncrude. Following completion of the
Acquisition, and subject to receipt of all necessary regulatory approvals, the Trust intends to effect its own
restructuring in respect of its ownership of the Syncrude Interest. The description of CT is contained under the
heading ~"The Commercial Trust", and diagrams showing the structure of the Trust immediately following
completion of the Acquisition and following the proposed restructuring of the Trust are set forth under the
heading " " Post-Acquisition Structure”. It is anticipated that after the completion of the Acquisition, the Trust
Indenture may be amended so that future distributions by the Trust to its Unitholders will reflect the completion
of the Acquisition and to also provide for certain administrative matters as a result of the acquisition of CT by
the Trust.

The Acquisition Agreement contains representations and warranties in respect of EnCana and its affiliates,
Syncrude and COSL, covenants relating to the closing of the Acquisition and related matters and indemnities of
each of EnCana and COSL which COSL considers to be customary in agreements providing for the acquisition
of assets of the nature being acquired by COSL, including an environmental indemnity given by COSL to
EnCana in respect of the Syncrude Interest. It is a condition precedent to closing of the Acquisition that all
necessary consents and approval of governmental authorities be obtained including, if required, approvals under
the Competition Act (Canada) and the United States Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976,
as amended.

Upon closing of the Acquisition, COSL will also acquire certain rights (the " " Related Rights") in relation to
EnCana's remaining 3.75% working interest in the Syncrude Joint Venture that is held by AEC Oil Sands
Limited Partnership, including a 6% gross overriding royalty on such 3.75% working interest in certain of the
leases included in the Syncrude Project currently payable to EnCana, as well as a 6% gross overriding royalty on
another 1.25% working interest in certain of the leases included in the Syncrude Project (the °*Remaining
Interest”). COSL will have the option, exercisable at any time on or before December 31, 2003, to purchase the
Remaining Interest, for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $417 million. In addition, EnCana has
agreed that for a period of 60 days immediately following the closing of the Acquisition, it will not do anything in
furtherance of the disposition of the Remaining Interest to a third party. Following such 60 day standstill, COSL
has, in addition to the option, a right of first refusal which expires on December 31, 2003, in respect of the
Remaining Interest.

Acquisition Rationale
COSL believes that the Acquisition will result in the Trust and Unitholders realizing the following benefits:
(a) the Acquisition is, on a pro forma basis, over 10% accretive to cash flow per Trust Unit;
(b) the Acquisition is expected to be accretive to earnings and net asset value per Trust Unit;

(c) following the Acquisition, the Trust's current production is expected to rise 46% to approximately
74,000 barrels per day, and proven and undeveloped reserves are expected to increase commensurately
to approximately 2.6 billion barrels;

(d) economies of scale created through the transaction also are anticipated to reduce the Trust's
administrative costs per barrel, which are already among the lowest in the trust sector; and

(e) following the Acquisition and this Offering, based on market prices as at February 12, 2003, the Trust's
market capitalization will be approximately $2.7 to 2.8 billion with an enterprise value of $3.5 billion,
making the Trust the largest energy trust in Canada and the fifth largest Canadian independent publicly
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traded petroleum producer. COSL anticipates that the increase in the Trust's size should result in
greater market liquidity and broader access to capital.

Upon entering into the Acquisition Agreement, COSL hedged an additional 25,000 barrels per day of its
crude oil production at an average price of US$29.24 per barrel through December 2003.

Financing of Acquisition

For purposes of financing the $1.07 billion purchase price for the Syncrude Interest at the closing date of
the Acquisition, COSL has arranged for a private placement of up to 9,352,518 Trust Units (the °"Private
Placement") for aggregate gross proceeds of up to $325 million (see * “Private Placement of Trust Units") and has
obtained underwritten commitments from affiliates of each of CIBC World Markets Inc. and Merrill Lynch
Canada Inc. to provide credit facilities in an aggregate amount of $850 million (the " Acquisition Facilities"). The
Acquisition Facilities consist of two bridge credit facilities: an unsecured senior bridge credit facility in a
committed principal amount of $630 million which matures 18 months from the closing date of the Acquisition;
and an unsecured senior subordinated bridge credit facility in a committed principal amount of $220 million
which matures on August 31, 2005. Completion of the Acquisition is not conditional on the completion of
this Offering.

The Trust will use the proceeds from the Private Placement and will draw on the Acquisition Facilities as
necessary to finance the Acquisition. Upon completion of the Acquisition, the net proceeds of the Offering will
be released by the Escrow Agent to the Trust and applied firstly to reduce or replace the amount required to be
drawn under the senior subordinated bridge credit facility and thereafter to reduce the amount required to be
drawn under the senior bridge credit facility. The terms of the senior bridge credit facility may be amended to
permit amounts drawn to be used to finance additional asset purchases related to the Acquisition and for
general corporate purposes.

The Trust may in the future effect additional offerings of debt securities or Trust Units in order to repay or
refinance the indebtedness incurred in connection with the Acquisition.

The Commercial Trust

CT will be an unincorporated open-ended trust established pursuant to a trust indenture (the *"CT Trust
Indenture") and governed by the laws of the Province of Alberta. CT's activities will be restricted essentially to
holding direct and indirect ownership and royalty interests in the Syncrude Joint Venture and all activities
ancillary or incidental thereto. Following completion of the Acquisition, all of the trust units and debt
obligations of CT will be held by COSL. Following completion of the Trust's proposed restructuring: (i) the Trust
will hold all of the ordinary trust units of CT; and (ii) COSL will hold all of the debt obligations and special trust
units of CT and the Syncrude Interest, which will have been acquired from CT in exchange for a royalty reserved
to CT on the Syncrude Interest. CT will be managed by COSL pursuant to a management agreement to be
entered into between CT and COSL.

CT will make quarterly cash distributions to the Trust to coincide with distributions by the Trust to
the Unitholders.



Post-Acquisition Structure

The following diagram sets forth the ownership structure of the Trust immediately following the
proposed Acquisition:

Public
Unitholders
Trust Units
Trust
Trust
Royalties
CT Ordinary Units
(100%)
COSL
CT Special
Units
cr C
CT Notes ommon
Shares
(100%)
Working
. Interest
AEC Qil Sands GP Ltd. (21.74%)
Working
Interest
(9.5%) Working
Interest
(0.5%)
—

Syncrude Joint Venture
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Subsequent to the Acquisition, the Trust intends to effect a restructuring, subject to receipt of necessary
regulatory approvals including receipt of a favourable tax ruling from CCRA, such that the ownership structure

of the Trust will ultimately be as follows:

Public Unitholders

Trust Units

Trust Royalties

Trust

Common Shares

CT Ordinary (100%)
Units
100%
( ) CT Special
Uhnits COSL

Working Interest
(31.74%)

Syncrude Joint Venture

Selected Historical Financial Information of AEC Oil Sands, L.P.

The following table sets out certain historical financial information for AEC Oil Sands, L.P, through which
EnCana currently holds the Syncrude Interest. The figures below represent the entire 13.75% working interest
of AEC Oil Sands, L.P. in the Syncrude Joint Venture, which includes the Syncrude Interest, comprising a 10%
working interest. The following information should be read in conjunction with the historical financial
statements of AEC Oil Sands, L.P. included in this short form prospectus at Appendix A.

Nine months ended  Year ended  Year ended  Year ended

October 31, January 31, January 31, January 31,
2002 2002 2001 2000
(unaudited) (E}gd:;x%?sands)(aUdith) (audited)
Revenue.......... ... . .. 344,825 469,503 462,240 331,674
Operating Expenses . ....... ... ... ... ... 161,617 215,71 190,586 137,636
NetEarnings ....... ... .. 152,805 197,049 164,958 164,860
Note:

(1) Certain of AEC Oil Sands, L.P.'s statement of income figures have been reclassified in the pro forma financial statements to conform to
the presentation adopted by the Trust.
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EFFECT OF THE ACQUISITION ON THE TRUST
Selected Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Information

The pro forma consolidated financial information set forth below and the unaudited Pro Forma
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust included in this short form prospectus are not necessarily
indicative either of results of operations that would have occurred in the year ended December 31, 2001 or the
nine months ended September 30, 2002 had the Acquisition been effective January 1, 2001, or of the results of
operations expected in 2002 and future years.

The following tables set out certain financial information for the Trust and AEC Oil Sands, L.P. and
pro forma consolidated financial information for the Trust after giving effect to the Acquisition and certain other
adjustments. The following information should be read in conjunction with the unaudited Pro Forma
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust included in this short form prospectus at Appendix B.

Year ended December 31, 2001

AEC QOil Sands, Pro Forma
Trust LPO®® Consolidated®
(audited) (audited) (unaudited)
($ thousands, except per unit amounts)

REVEIUE . .ot it it ittt e e e e e e e 672,991 470,416 1,011,040
Operating Expenses .......... ... ... ... .. .. 344,910 216,565 502,412
NetIncome .. ...ttt it 169,434 197,049 265,277
Net Income per Trust Unit . ............. ... ... ... 2.98 n/a 345

Nine months ended September 30, 2002
AEC QOil Sands, Pro Forma

Trust LPOO® Consolidated®
(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)
($ thousands, except per unit amounts)
Revenue ... .. e e e e e e s 516,826 340,913 764,763
Operating Expenses . ......... .o, 240,934 161,617 358,474
Netlncome . ... ... ...ttt 175,367 152,805 260,328
Net Income per Trust Unit . .. ....... .., 3.07 n/a 3.38

Total ASSEtS . .o it e e 1,749,902 n/a 3,438,953

Notes:

(1) These figures represent the entire 13.75% working interest of AEC Oil Sands, L.P. in the Syncrude Joint Venture, which includes the
Syncrude Interest, comprising a 10% working interest.

(2) Certain of AEC Oil Sands, L.P.'s statement of income figures have been reclassified in the pro forma financial statements to conform to
the presentation adopted by the Trust.

(3) For the year ended January 31, 2002.
(4) For the nine months ended October 31, 2002.

Selected Pro Forma Operational Information

The Trust currently has production of approximately 50,000 barrels of oil per day. Following completion of
the Acquisition, the Trust is expected to have production of approximately 74,000 barrels of oil per day.
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CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth the capitalization of the Trust as at December 31, 2001 and as at
December 31, 2002, and the pro forma consolidated capitalization of the Trust as at December 31, 2002 after
giving effect to this Offering, the Private Placement and the Acquisition.

As at As at December 31, 2002
Designation December 31, 2001 Actual Pro forma
(audited) (unaudited)
(3 thousands)
Bank Credit Facilities®™. . ............ - - 410,000
7.625% Senior Notes due May 15, 2007 . . 110,425 110,572 110,572
7.9% Senior Notes due September 1,

2021 . . . e 398,150 394,900 394,900
8.2% Senior Notes due April 1, 2027 .. .. 117,773 116,811 116,811
Preferred Shares of Subsidiaries™® ... ... 4,400 - -
Unitholders' Equity . ............... 768,065 956,501 1,634,525

(56,779,010 Trust Units) (57,684,789 Trust Units) (77,752,307 Trust Units)
Notes:

(1) Excluding the unsecured bank lines of credit for the Acquisition, COSL has unsecured bank lines of credit totalling $480 million. As at
December 31, 2002, there were no amounts drawn. COSL has also obtained an additional unsecured credit facility in the amount of
$300 million which is available to replace its existing bank lines in order to provide further financial flexibility. In January 2003, COSL
obtained a $630 million senior bridge credit facility and a $220 million senior subordinated bridge credit facility which will be used to
finance a portion of the Acquisition. See " “Proposed Acquisition ~ Financing of the Acquisition".

(2) Immediately prior to the termination of the Administrative Services Agreement between COSII, AOSII, the Trust and EnCana on
November 1, 2002, each of COSII and AOSII, the former managers and subsidiaries of the Trust, redeemed the preferred shares held by

EnCana for an aggregate redemption price equal to approximately $4.5 million, being the original issue price of such shares plus all
accrued and unpaid dividends.

(3) Reflects the retroactive change in accounting policy on foreign currency translation which was effective January 1, 2002.

(4) As at December 31, 2002, the Trust had 256,000 unit options outstanding pursuant to the Trust's Unit Option and Distribution
Equivalent Plan.

(5) If the Over-Allotment Option is exercised in full, the Unitholders' Equity will be $1,688,529 (79,359,557 Trust Units).

PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF TRUST UNITS

On January 23, 2003, the Trust entered into a subscription agreement (the " " Private Placement Agreement")
with Capital Research and Management Company (" ~Capital Research”) providing for the purchase of up to
9,352,518 Trust Units by certain mutual funds managed by Capital Research on a private placement basis (the
*Private Placement") at a price of $34.75 per Trust Unit for aggregate gross proceeds to the Trust of up to
$325 million. The net proceeds from the sale of the Trust Units will be used to fund a portion of the purchase
price of the Acquisition. See ~ “Proposed Acquisition — Financing of the Acquisition". The subscription price for
the Trust Units was negotiated between the Trust and Capital Research. Completion of the Private Placement is

conditional on the closing of the Acquisition and is expected to take place concurrently with the closing of the
Acquisition.

DETAILS OF THE OFFERING

The Offering consists of 10,715,000 Subscription Receipts at a price of $35.00 per Subscription Receipt, and
an additional 1,607,250 Subscription Receipts at the same price if the Over-Allotment Option is exercised in full.
Each Subscription Receipt representing the right to receive, without payment of additional consideration, one
Trust Unit. The following is a summary of the material attributes and characteristics of the Subscription Receipts
and the Trust Units. This summary does not purport to be complete and is subject to, and qualified in its entirety
by, reference to the terms of a subscription receipt agreement (the * " Subscription Receipt Agreement") to be
dated as of the date of the closing of this Offering among the Trust, the Underwriters and the Escrow Agent and
the Trust Indenture.
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Subscription Receipts

The Subscription Receipts will be issued at the closing of the Offering pursuant to the Subscription Receipt
Agreement. Subscription Receipts will be issued as a book-entry only certificate issued in registered form to the
Canadian Depository for Securities Limited (" *CDS") or its nominee and will be deposited with CDS on the
closing date of this Offering. The gross proceeds from the sale of the Subscription Receipts (the ™" Escrowed
Funds") will be delivered to and held by the Escrow Agent and invested in short term obligations of, or
guaranteed by, the Government of Canada (and other approved investments) pending the closing of the
Acquisition. Provided that the Acquisition closes on or before 5:00 p.m. (Calgary time) on March 31, 2003, the
Escrowed Funds will be released to the Trust and the Trust Units will be issued to holders of Subscription
Receipts who will receive, without payment of additional consideration or further action, one Trust Unit for each
Subscription Receipt held.

The Escrow Agent will release the Escrowed Funds and interest thereon to the Trust on the closing date of
the Acquisition against (i) an irrevocable direction of the Trust to the Escrow Agent (in its capacity as registrar
and transfer agent of the Trust Units) to deliver Trust Units to holders of record of any Subscription Receipts as
at the closing date of the Acquisition, and (ii) a joint notice from the Trust and CIBC World Markets Inc. and
Merrill Lynch Canada Inc., on behalf of the Underwriters, to the Escrow Agent, confirming that the conditions
to the issuance of the Trust Units and the finalization of all matters relating to the closing of the Acquisition
have been fulfilled to their satisfaction. The transfer register with respect to the Subscription Receipts shall be
closed at the closing date of the Acquisition. The Trust shall, as soon as practicable, issue a press release setting
out the expected closing date of the Acquisition and the expected date on which the Subscription Receipt
transfer register will close.

Trust Units issued following closing of the Acquisition will be issued as a book-entry only certificate issued
in registered form to CDS or its nominee and will be deposited with CDS. No holder of a Trust Unit will be
entitled to a certificate evidencing that person's interest in or ownership of a Trust Unit and a holder of
Subscription Receipts will receive only a customer confirmation from the registered dealer, which is a CDS
participant and from or through which the Subscription Receipts are purchased, that Trust Units have
been issued.

In the event that the Acquisition does not close on or before 5:00 p.m. (Calgary time) on March 31, 2003 or
if the Acquisition Agreement is terminated at any earlier time (the * " Termination Date"), holders of Subscription
Receipts shall, commencing on the second business day following the Termination Date, be entitled to receive an
amount equal to the full subscription price therefor and their pro rata entitlements to interest on such amounts.

In the event that, prior to the date of issue of a Trust Unit in respect of a Subscription Receipt, there is a
subdivision, consolidation, reclassification or other change of the Trust Units or any reorganization,
amalgamation, merger or sale of all or substantially all of the Trust's assets, the Subscription Receipt will
thereafter evidence the right of the holder to receive the securities, property or cash deliverable in exchange for
or on conversion of or in respect of the Trust Unit to which the holder of a Trust Unit would have been entitled
immediately after such event. Similarly, any distribution to all or substantially all of the holders of Trust Units of
rights, options, warrants, evidences of indebtedness or assets will result in an adjustment in the number of Trust
Units to be issued to holders of Subscription Receipts. Alternatively, such securities, evidences of indebtedness
or assets may, at the option of the Trust, be issued to the Escrow Agent and delivered to holders of Subscription
Receipts following the closing of the Acquisition.

The Subscription Receipt Agreement will provide for modifications and alterations thereto and to the
Subscription Receipts issued thereunder by way of an extraordinary resolution. The term °extraordinary
resolution” will be defined in the Subscription Receipt Agreement to mean, in effect, a resolution passed by the
affirmative votes of the holders of not less than 662§% of the number of outstanding Subscription Receipts
represented and voting at a meeting of Subscription Receipt holders or an instrument or instruments in writing
signed by the holders of not less than 66§% of the number of outstanding Subscription Receipts.

Under the Subscription Receipt Agreement, purchasers of Subscription Receipts will have a contractual
right of rescission following the issuance of Trust Units to such purchaser upon surrender of the Subscription
Receipts to receive the amount paid for the Subscription Receipts where this short form prospectus and any
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amendment contains a misrepresentation or is not delivered to such purchaser, provided such remedy for
rescission is exercised within 180 days of closing of the Offering.

Trust Units

A maximum of 500,000,000 Trust Units have been created and may be issued pursuant to the Trust
Indenture. The Trust Units represent beneficial interests in the Trust. All Trust Units share equally in all

- distributions from the Trust and all Trust Units will carry equal voting rights at a meeting of Unitholders.

No Unitholder will be liable to pay further calls or assessments in respect of the Trust Units. No conversion
or pre-emptive rights attach to the Trust Units.

The following is a summary of certain provisions of the Trust Indenture. For a complete description of such
indenture, reference should be made to the Trust Indenture, copies of which may be viewed at the offices of, or
obtained from, the Trustee.

Trustee

Computershare Trust Company of Canada is the Trustee of the Trust and also acts as the transfer agent for
the Trust Units. The Trustee is responsible for, among other things: (i) certifying and issuing Trust Units;
(i) maintaining books and records of the Trust and providing timely reports to holders of Trust Units; and
(iii) exercising the voting rights attaching to the common shares in the capital of COSL.

The Trustee may resign upon 60 days notice to the Trust and COSL. The Trustee may also be removed by
special resolution of the Unitholders. Such resignation or removal becomes effective upon a successor accepting
its appointment,

Distributions

The Trust Indenture provides that the Trustee will distribute distributable income, if any, on the last
business day of February, May, August and November of each year. Distributable income is comprised of the
royalty payments and any interest income received by the Trust for that quarter less the expenses of the Trust
paid during that quarter.

At the discretion of COSL's board of directors, the Trust may also make cash distributions of the Trust's
capital provided that such distributions are made out of funds that are in excess of amounts reasonably required
to satisfy obligations of the Trust. Cash distributions paid to Unitholders are determined by COSL's board of
directors, in its sole discretion, and will only be declared and paid if deemed prudent to do so. Covenants in bank
credit agreements could limit cash distributions to Unitholders.

Future Offerings

Under the Trust Indenture, the Trust may offer additional Trust Units or rights to additional Trust Units (up
to the authorized maximum) at such times and on such terms and conditions as COSL may determine. In
addition, the Trust may acquire other royaities in respect of oil sands interests, from time to time, should such
interests be available on terms and conditions acceptable to COSL.

Meetings and Voting

The Trust holds annual meetings of the Unitholders. Special meetings of Unitholders may be called at any
time by the Trustee and shall be called by the Trustee upon the written request of Unitholders holding in
aggregate not less than 20% of the Trust Units. Notice of all meetings of Unitholders shall be given to
Unitholders at least 21 days prior to the meeting.

Unitholders may attend and vote at all meetings of such holders either in person or by proxy and a
proxyholder need not be a holder of Trust Units. Two persons present in person or represented by proxy and
representing in the aggregate not less than 2% of the votes attaching to all outstanding Trust Units constitute a
quorum for the transaction of general business at all such meetings. The quorum required to vote upon a special
resolution, which is required to amend the Trust Indenture with limited exceptions and to make certain other
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material decisions, is two such persons representing in the aggregate not less than 20% of the votes attached to
all outstanding Trust Units. The Trust intends to seek Unitholder approval at the 2003 annual and special
meeting to reduce the required quorum for special resolutions to 10% which would make it consistent with
approval levels for other trusts.

Unitholders are entitled to one vote per Trust Unit at all meetings of Unitholders called pursuant to the
Trust Indenture. A resolution approved by not less than 66°§% of the votes of Unitholders represented at a
meeting is required to, among other things, amend the Trust Indenture, remove the Trustee or terminate
the Trust.

Limitation on Non-Resident Ownership

In order for the Trust to maintain its status as a mutual fund trust under the Income Tax Act (Canada) (the
* “Tax Act"), the Trust must not be established or maintained primarily for the benefit of non-residents of Canada
(" “non-residents") within the meaning of the Tax Act. Accordingly, the Trust Indenture provides that at no time
may non-residents be the beneficial owners of a majority of the Trust Units. If the Trustee becomes aware, as a
result of requiring declarations as to beneficial ownership or otherwise, that the beneficial owners of 49% or
morte of the Trust Units then outstanding are or may be non-residents or that such a situation is imminent, the
Trustee may make a public announcement thereof and shall not accept a subscription for Trust Units from or
issue or register a transfer of Trust Units to a person unless the person provides a declaration that the person is
not a non-resident. If, notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee determines that a majority of the Trust Units
are held by non-residents, the Trustee may send a notice to nonresident holders of Trust Units, chosen in inverse
order to the order of acquisition or registration or in such other manner as the Trustee may consider equitable
and practicable, requiring them to sell their Trust Units or a portion thereof within a specified period of not less
than 60 days. If the Unitholders receiving such notice have not sold the specified number of Trust Units or
provided the Trustee with satisfactory evidence that they are not non-residents within such period, the Trustee
may on behalf of such Unitholders sell such Trust Units and, in the interim, shall suspend the voting and
distribution rights attached to such Trust Units. Any sale shall be made on any stock exchange on which the Trust
Units are then listed and, upon such sale, the affected holders shall cease to be holders of Trust Units and their
rights shall be limited to receiving the net proceeds of sale upon surrender of the certificates representing such
Trust Units.

Laws in certain jurisdictions outside Canada may also limit the ownership of Trust Units by certain
nonresidents, and the Trustee may from time to time take steps similar to the foregoing to minimize any adverse
consequences to non-resident Unitholders arising from such laws.

Redemption of Units

The Trust Indenture provides for redemption of Trust Units at the request of the Unitholder at a price per
Trust Unit that is the lesser of (i) 90% of the simple average of the closing price of the Trust Units on the
principal market for each of the 10 trading days after tender of the Trust Units or (ii) the closing market price on
such principal market on the date of tender for redemption. The redemption right is subject to a quarterly
aggregate cash limit for all Trust Units tendered for redemption in the quarter of $250,000, unless waived by the
board of directors of COSL. If redemptions are limited, the holder may receive an interest bearing promissory
note payable on a pro rata basis in the subsequent quarter or quarters or an in specie redemption.

Termination of the Trust

Unless the Trust is earlier terminated or extended by vote of the Unitholders, the Trustee shall commence
to wind up the affairs of the Trust on December 31, 2094. The Unitholders may vote to terminate the Trust by
special resolution at any meeting of the Unitholders provided that a quorum of 50% of the issued and
outstanding Trust Units must be present in person or by proxy at the meeting at which the vote is taken.

Reporting to Unitholders

The accounts of the Trust are audited annually by a recognized independent firm of chartered accountants.
The annual financial statements of the Trust, together with the report of such chartered accountants, and the
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unaudited interim financial statements of the Trust are mailed to all Unitholders shown in the register of holders
of Trust Units on any record date for a distribution of distributable income during a calendar year, within the
periods prescribed by securities legislation. The year end of the Trust is December 31.

PRICE RANGE AND TRADING VOLUME OF THE TRUST UNITS

The outstanding Trust Units are traded on the TSX under the trading symbol *“COS.UN". The following
table sets forth the price range and trading volume of the Trust Units as reported by the TSX for the
periods indicated.

High Low Volume
)] ($)  (000%)

2001

First QUamier . . .ottt e e e e et e e e 39.75 29.25 3,756
Second QUaITET ... .ottt e e e e e e 41.95 3400 3,232
Third QUL . ..ttt ettt e e e e e e e e 4095 3270 5,176
Fourth QUarter. . . .ottt it e e e e e 41.50 3426 8,195
2002

First QUater . . . oottt it et e e e e e e e e 44.85 36.00 11,503
Second QUAI T . ...ttt e e e e e e 4450 39.66 7,853
JUly . e 42.00 36.05 2,957
AUGUSE . o oo e e e e e 39.97 3725 1,774
September . . ... e e 39.00 3570 3,477
L0 T 0 27=5 37.99 3328 2,377
NOVEMDET . . ottt et e e e e e 37.30 3415 1,887
DT . . vttt e e 38.05 3450 1,624
2003

JANUATY . . o e 39.00 36.55 2,258
February 1-12 . . ... e e 39.00 3496 1,264
Note:

(1) Prior to July 10, 2001, the price range and trading volume figures relate to AOST.

On February 3, 2003, the last trading day before the announcement of this Offering, the closing price of the
Trust Units on the TSX was $38.90.

DISTRIBUTIONS TO UNITHOLDERS

The following table sets forth the amount of quarterly cash distributions paid per Trust Unit by the Trust
since the merger of AOST and COST on July 5, 2001:

2002 2001
First QUL .« + . o e ot e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $0.50 n/a
SeCONd QUATIET & & v vttt ettt e e e e e $0.50 n/a
Third QUATTET . . . v o o e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e $0.50 $0.75
Fourth QUATTET . . o o v o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $0.50 $0.50

The Trust announced on January 23, 2003 that the next quarterly distribution of distributable cash will be in
the amount of $0.50 per Trust Unit and will be paid on February 28, 2003 to Unitholders of record on
January 31, 2003.

Subscribers who purchase Subscription Receipts pursuant to the Offering and who subsequently hold Trust
Units on a relevant record date will be eligible to receive distributions commencing with the distribution payable

on May 31, 2003, provided closing of the Offering occurs by April 30, 2003, the anticipated record date for such
distribution.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds to the Trust from the sale of the Subscription Receipts hereunder are estimated to be
$359,524,000 ($413,527,600 if the Over-Allotment Option is exercised in full) after deducting the fees of
$15,001,000 payable to the Underwriters ($17,251,150 if the Over-Allotment Option is exercised in full) and the
expenses of the issue estimated to be $500,000. The net proceeds from the sale of the Subscription Receipts will
be used to fund a portion of the purchase price of the Acquisition.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Pursuant to an underwriting agreement (the **Underwriting Agreement") dated February 4, 2003 among
the Tiust, COSL and the Underwriters, the Trust has agreed to issue and sell an aggregate of
10,715,000 Subscription Receipts to the Underwriters, and the Underwriters have severally agreed to purchase
such Subscription Receipts on February 27, 2003, or on such other date not later than March 28, 2003 as may be
agreed among the parties to the Underwriting Agreement. Delivery of the Subscription Receipts is conditional
upon payment on closing of $35.00 per Subscription Receipt by the Underwriters to the Trust. The Underwriting
Agreement provides that the Trust will pay the underwriting fee of $1.40 per Subscription Receipt for
Subscription Receipts issued and sold by the Trust, for an aggregate fee payable by the Trust of $15,001,000, in

consideration for the services of the Underwriters in connection with the Offering. The underwriting fee is -

payable as to 50% upon the closing of this Offering and 50% upon release of the Escrowed Funds to the Trust
pursuant to the Subscription Receipt Agreement. In the event the Escrowed Funds are refunded to subscribers
pursuant to the terms of the Subscription Receipt Agreement, the underwriting fee will be reduced to the
amount payable upon closing of this Offering. The terms of the Offering were determined by negotiation
between COSL, on behalf of the Trust, and CIBC World Markets Inc. and Merrill Lynch Canada Inc. on behalf
of themselves and the other Underwriters.

The Trust has granted to the Underwriters the Over-Allotment Option, exercisable in whole or in part for a
period of 30 days from the closing of the Offering, to purchase up to an additional 1,607,250 Subscription
Receipts at the Offering price to cover over-allotments, if any. This short form prospectus qualifies the
distribution of the Subscription Receipts issuable upon the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option. If the
Over-Allotment Option is exercised in full, the total price to the public will be $431,278,750, the underwriting fee
will be $17,251,150 and the net proceeds to the Trust, excluding interest on the Escrowed Funds and before
deducting expenses of the issue, will be $414,027,600.

The TSX has conditionally approved the listing of the Subscription Receipts and the Trust Units issuable to
holders of Subscription Receipts on the TSX. Listing is subject to the Trust fulfilling all of the requirements of
the TSX on or before May 6, 2003.

The obligations of the Underwriters under the Underwriting Agreement are several and may be terminated
at their discretion upon the occurrence of certain stated events. If one or more Underwriters fail to purchase the
Subscription Receipts which such Underwriter(s) have agreed to purchase, any one or more of the other
Underwriters may, but are not obligated to, purchase such Subscription Receipts, unless the number of
Subscription Receipts which one or more Underwriters fail to purchase represents less than 5% of the total
number of Subscription Receipts, in which case the remaining Underwriters are obligated to purchase such
Subscription Receipts on a pro rata basis. The Underwriters are, however, obligated to take up and pay for all
Subscription Receipts if any are purchased under the Underwriting Agreement. The Underwriting Agreement
also provides that the Trust will indemnify the Underwriters and their directors, officers, agents, shareholders
and employees against certain liabilities and expenses.

The Trust has been advised by the Underwriters that, in connection with the Offering, the Underwriters
may effect transactions which stabilize or maintain the market price of the Subscription Receipts and Trust Units
at levels other than those which might otherwise prevail in the open market. Such transactions, if commenced,
may be discontinued at any time.

The Trust has agreed that, other than pursuant to the Private Placement, the Trust's Premium Distribution,
Distribution Reinvestment and Optional Unit Purchase Plan and the Trust's Unit Option and Distribution
Equivalent Plan, it will not offer or issue, or enter into an agreement to offer or issue, Trust Units or any
securities convertible into or exchangeable for Trust Units for a period of 90 days subsequent to the closing date
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of the Offering without the consent of CIBC World Markets Inc. and Merrill Lynch Canada Inc., which consent
may not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

Each of CIBC World Markets Inc., RBC Dominion Securities Inc., BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc. and Scotia
Capital Inc. is an affiliate of a Canadian chartered bank that is party to one or more credit agreements (the
" Credit Agreements") with COSL. Each of CIBC World Markets Inc. and Merrill Lynch Canada Inc. is an
affiliate of an entity that has provided underwritten commitments to provide the Acquisition Facilities to COSL.
Consequently, the Trust may be considered to be a connected issuer of each of these Underwriters for the
purposes of applicable Canadian securities laws.

As at the date hereof, no funds are drawn under any of the Credit Agreements. See Note 1 under
" *Consolidated Capitalization". However, the Trust expects that approximately $410 million will be drawn under
the Acquisition Facilities to complete the Acquisition.

COSL is in compliance with all material terms of the Credit Agreements, and none of the lenders under the
Credit Agreements have waived any breach by COSL of any of such agreements since their execution. The
Credit Agreements are unsecured.

The decision to distribute the Subscription Receipts offered hereby and the determination of the terms of
the distribution were made through negotiations between COSL, on behalf of the Trust, and CIBC World
Markets Inc. and Merrill Lynch Canada Inc. on behalf of themselves and the other Underwriters. The lenders
under the Credit Agreements and the Acquisition Facilities did not have any involvement in such decision or
determination, but have been advised of the issuance and the terms thereof. As a consequence of this issuance,
each of CIBC World Markets Inc., Merrill Lynch Canada Inc., RBC Dominion Securities Inc.,, BMO Nesbitt
Burns Inc. and Scotia Capital Inc. will receive its share of the underwriting fee.

The Subscription Receipts offered hereby have not been and will not be registered under the United States
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the ~ 1933 Act") or any state securities laws, and accordingly may not be
offered or sold within the United States of America or to U.S. Persons (as such term is defined in Regulation S
under the 1933 Act) except in transactions exempt from the registration requirements of the 1933 Act and
applicable state securities laws. However, the Underwriting Agreement permits the Underwriters to offer and
resell the Subscription Receipts that they have acquired pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement to certain
qualified institutional buyers in the United States, provided such offers and sales are made in accordance with
Rule 144A under the 1933 Act. Moreover, the Underwriting Agreement provides that the Underwriters will

offer and sell Subscription Receipts outside the United States only in accordance with Regulation S under the
1933 Act.

In addition, until 40 days after the commencement of the Offering, any offer or sale of Subscription
Receipts or Trust Units offered hereby within the United States by any dealer (whether or not participating in
the Offering) may violate the registration requirements of the 1933 Act if such offer or sale is made otherwise
than in accordance with Rule 144A under the 1933 Act.

CANADIAN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

In the opinion of Burnet, Duckworth & Palmer LLP, tax counsel to the Trust, and Macleod Dixon LLP,
counsel to the Underwriters, the following summary fairly describes the principal Canadian federal income tax
considerations generally applicable to a purchaser who acquires Subscription Receipts pursuant to this offering
and who, for purposes of the Tax Act, holds the Subscription Receipts and the Trust Units acquired pursuant
thereto as capital property and deals at arm's length with the Trust and the Underwriters. Generally, the
Subscription Receipts and Trust Units will be considered to be capital property to a Unitholder provided the
Unitholder does not hold the Subscription Receipts or Trust Units in the course of carrying on a business and
has not acquired them in one or more transactions considered to be an adventure in the nature of trade. Certain
Unitholders who might not otherwise be considered to hold their Trust Units as capital property may, in certain
circumstances, be entitled to have them treated as capital property by making the election permitted by
subsection 39(4) of the Tax Act.

This summary is not applicable t0 a purchaser that is a " “financial institution", a " “specified financial
institution" or to a purchaser an interest in which would be a " "tax shelter investment", each as defined in the
Tax Act.
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This summary is based on the facts set out in the prospectus, the provisions of the Tax Act in force as of the
date hereof, all specific proposals to amend the Tax Act that have been publicly announced by or on behalf of
the Minister of Finance prior to the date hereof (the **Proposed Amendments"), counsel's understanding of the o
current published administrative practices of the CCRA and certificates as to certain factual matters provided by '
COSL. This summary assumes that the Proposed Amendments will be enacted substantially in the form
proposed, although no assurance can be given in this regard.

This summary is not exhaustive of all possible Canadian federal income tax considerations and, except for
the Proposed Amendments, does not take into account any changes in the law, whether by legislative,
governmental or judicial action, nor does it take into account provincial, territorial or foreign tax considerations,
which may differ significantly from those discussed herein.

This summary is of a general nature only and is not intended to be legal or tax advice to any particular
purchaser of Subscription Receipts or Unitholder. Consequently, purchasers of Subscription Receipts and
prospective Unitholders should consult their own tax advisors with respect to their particular circumstances.

Residents of Canada
Taxation of Holders of Subscription Receipts

In the event the Acquisition does not close before March 31, 2003 or if the Acquisition Agreement is
terminated at an earlier time, holders of Subscription Receipts will be required to include their proportionate
share of interest on Escrowed Funds in computing their income for purposes of the Tax Act. The cost of any
Trust Units acquired must be averaged with the cost of any other Trust Units held by the Unitholder to
determine the adjusted cost base of each Trust Unit held.

No gain or loss will be realized by a holder on the issuance of a Trust Unit pursuant to a Subscription
Receipt. A disposition or deemed disposition by a holder of a Subscription Receipt will generally result in the
holder realizing a capital gain (or capital loss) equal to the amount by which the proceeds of disposition are
greater (or less) than the aggregate of the holder's adjusted cost base thereof and any reasonable costs of
disposition.

One half of any capital gain must be included in the holder's income for the taxation year of the disposition, ( '
and one half of any capital loss realized in a taxation year is deducted from taxable capital gains realized in the
year of disposition, and may be deducted from taxable capital gains realized in the three preceding taxation years
or any subsequent taxation year, subject to detailed rules contained in the Tax Act in this regard.

Taxable capital gains realized by a Unitholder that is an individual may give rise to an alternative minimum
tax depending on such Unitholder's circumstances. A Unitholder that is a " Canadian-controlled private
corporation" as defined in the Tax Act may be liable to pay additional refundable tax on certain investment
income, including taxable capital gains. '

Status of the Trust

Based on certain factual representations made by COSL, the Trust qualifies as a * “mutual fund trust" under
the Tax Act and it is assumed that it will continue to so qualify at all times. In the event the Trust was not to so
qualify as a mutual fund trust at a particular time, the income tax considerations would be materially different in
certain respects from those described herein and the Trust could be liable to pay tax under Part XIL.2 of the
Tax Act.

Taxation of the Trust

The Trust is subject to taxation in each taxation year on its income or loss for the year as though it were a
separate individual. The taxation year of the Trust is the calendar year.

The Trust will be required to include in its income for each taxation year all amounts in respect of royalties
and income paid or payable to it by CT. The Trust will also be required to include in its income for each taxation
year all interest on any investments held by the Trust that accrues to the end of the year, or becomes receivable
or is received by it before the end of the year, except to the extent that such interest was included in computing
its income for a preceding taxation year. In computing its income for tax purposes, the Trust may deduct
reasonable current administrative expenses and a deduction not exceeding 30% of its cumulative Canadian <
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development expense (" CDE") account, determined on a declining balance basis. The Trust may deduct from its
income for the year 20% of the total issue expenses of this offering to the extent that the expenses were not
otherwise deductible in a preceding year.

Under the Trust Indenture, income may be used to finance cash redemptions of Trust Units and accordingly
such income so utilized will not be payable or paid to holders of Trust Units by way of cash distributions but
rather will be payable and paid in the form of additional Trust Units (" “Reinvested Trust Units").

The Trust will be entitled to deduct from its income for a taxation year otherwise determined, after taking
into account the inclusions and deductions outlined above, the portion thereof that is paid or becomes payable
in the year to its Unitholders. An amount will be considered to be payable to any Unitholder in a taxation year if
it is paid in the year by the Trust or the Unitholder is entitled in the year to enforce payment of the amount. The
terms of the Trust Indenture generally provide that all income of the Trust for a taxation year net of the Trust's
expenses will be paid or made payable to Unitholders in the year. Accordingly, it is generally anticipated that the
Trust will not be liable for any material amount of tax under the Tax Act.

Taxation of Unitholders

A Unitholder will generally be required to include in computing income for a particular taxation year of
such Unitholder the portion of the net income of the Trust for a taxation year that is paid or becomes payable to
such Unitholder in that particular taxation year, notwithstanding that any such amount is payable in Reinvested
Trust Units. An amount will be considered payable to a Unitholder in a taxation year if such Unitholder is
entitled in the year to enforce payment of the amount. For the purposes of the Tax Act, income of a Unitholder
from the Trust Units will generally be considered to be income from property and not resource income. Any
deduction or loss of the Trust for purposes of the Tax Act cannot be allocated to, or treated as a deduction or
loss of a Unitholder. Any amount paid or payable by the Trust to the Unitholder in excess of the net income of
the Trust that is paid or payable to such Unitholder in a taxation year should not generally be included in such
Unitholder's income for the year. However, such amount will reduce the Unitholder's adjusted cost base of the
Trust Unit. To the extent that the adjusted cost base of a Trust Unit would otherwise be less than nil, the negative
amount will be deemed to be a capital gain of the Unitholder from the disposition of the Trust Unit in the year
in which the negative amount arises.

Reinvested Trust Units issued to a Unitholder in lieu of a cash distribution will have a cost equal to the fair
market value of such Trust Units. This cost will be averaged with the cost of all other Trust Units held by the
Unitholder to determine the adjusted cost base of each Trust Unit held. Upon the disposition or deemed
disposition by a Unitholder of a Trust Unit, such Unitholder will generally realize a capital gain (or a capital-
loss) equal to the amount by which the proceeds of disposition (excluding any amount payable by the Trust which
represents an amount that must otherwise be included in such Unitholder's income as described above) are
greater (or less) than the aggregate of the Unitholder's adjusted cost base of the Trust Unit and any reasonable
costs associated with the disposition.

One-half of any capital gain realized by a Unitholder will be included in such Unitholder's income under
the Tax Act for the year of disposition as a taxable capital gain. Subject to certain specific rules in the Tax Act,
one-half of any capital loss realized on the disposition of Trust Unit may be deducted against any taxable capital
gains realized by the Unitholder in the year of disposition, in the three preceding taxation years or in any
subsequent taxation year.

Taxable capital gains realized by a Unitholder that is an individual may give rise to alternative minimum tax
depending on such Unitholder's circumstances. A Unitholder that is a ~“Canadian-controlled private
corporation" as defined in the Tax Act may be liable to pay additional refundable tax on certain investment
income, including taxable capital gains.

Tax Exempt Unitholders

Subject to the specific provisions of any particular exempt plan, the Subscription Receipts and the Trust
Units will, provided the Trust qualifies as a mutual fund trust, be qualified investments for trusts governed by
registered retirement savings plans, registered retirement income funds, registered education savings plans and
deferred profit sharing plans as defined in the Tax Act (" "Exempt Plans"). Such Exempt Plans will generally not
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be liable for tax in respect of any distributions received from the Trust or any capital gain realized on the
disposition of any Trust Units. COSL has advised counsel that the cost amount of foreign property of the Trust, if
any, will be less than the 30% of the cost amount of all property of the Trust and accordingly, the Trust Units will
not constitute foreign property for Exempt Plans, registered pension plans or other persons subject to tax under
Part XI of the Tax Act.

Non Residents of Canada

Any distribution of income of the Trust to a Unitholder who is not resident or deemed to be resident in
Canada will generally be subject to Canadian withholding tax at the rate of 25%, unless such rate is reduced
under the provisions of a tax treaty between Canada and the Unitholder's jurisdiction of residence. A
Unitholder resident in the United States who is entitled to claim the benefit of the Canada-US Income Tax
Convention will be entitled to have the rate of withholding reduced to 15% of the amount of any
income distributed.

A disposition or deemed disposition of a Subscription Receipt or a Trust Unit, whether on redemption, or
otherwise, will not give rise to any capital gains subject to tax under the Tax Act to a holder who is not resident
or deemed to be resident in Canada provided that the Subscription Receipts or Trust Units, as the case may be,
are not " taxable Canadian property" of the holder for the purposes of the Tax Act. Subscription Receipts and
Trust Units will not be considered taxable Canadian property to such a holder unless: (a) the holder holds or
uses, or is deemed to hold or use the Subscription Receipts or Trust Units in the course of carrying on business
in Canada; (b) the Subscription Receipts or Trust Units are * “designated insurance property” of the holder for
purposes of the Tax Act; (c) at any time during the 60 month period immediately preceding the disposition of the
Subscription Receipts or Trust Units the holder or persons with whom the holder did not deal at arm's length or
any combination thereof, held 25% or more of the issued Trust Units; or (d) the Trust is not a mutual fund trust
for the purposes of the Tax Act on the date of disposition.

RISK FACTORS

An investment in the Subscription Receipts and the Trust Units involves a number of risks. Before investing,
prospective purchasers of Subscription Receipts should carefully consider, in light of their own financial
circumstances, the factors set out below, as well as other information contained or incorporated by reference in
this short form prospectus.

Unitholder Liability

The Trust Indenture provides that no Unitholder will be subject to any liability in connection with the Trust
or its obligations and affairs or for any act or omission of the Trustee, provided that in the event that a court
determines Unitholders are subject to any such liabilities, the liabilities will be enforceable only against, and will
be satisfied only out of, the Trust's assets. In addition, the Trust Indenture states that no Unitholder is liable to
indemnify the Trustee or any other person for any liabilities incurred by the Trustee, including with respect to
taxes payable by the Trust or the Trustee, and all such liabilities will be enforced only against, and will be
satisfied only out of, the Trust's assets. The Trust Indenture also provides that all contracts entered into by or on
behalf of the Trust shall contain a provision or be subject to an acknowledgement to the effect that the
obligations of the Trust thereunder will not be binding upon Unitholders personally and that such provisions and
acknowledgement shall be held in trust and enforced by the Trustee for the benefit of the Unitholders.

In conducting its affairs, the Trust will, however, assume certain existing contractual obligations and may
have to do so in the future. Although COSL will use reasonable efforts to have any contractual obligations
modified so as not to have such obligations binding upon any of the Unitholders personally, it may not obtain
such modification in all cases. To the extent that any claims under such contracts are not satisfied by the Trust,
there is a risk that a Unitholder may be held personally liable for obligations of the Trust where the liability is
not disavowed as described above.

Notwithstanding the terms of the Trust Indenture, Unitholders may not be protected from liabilities of the
Trust to the same extent as a shareholder is protected from the liabilities of a corporation. Personal liability may
also arise in respect of claims against the Trust (to the extent that claims are not satisfied by the Trust assets) that
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do not arise under contract, including claims in tort, claims for taxes and other possible statutory liabilities. It is
intended that the activities of the Trust will be conducted, with the advice of counsel, in such a way and in such
jurisdictions as to avoid, so far as possible, to the extent they deem practicable any material risk of liability on
the Unitholders for claims against the Trust. COSL will, to the extent it considers possible and reasonable, carry
insurance, in such amounts as it considers adequate to cover the operations of the Trust and in respect of the
Unitholders as additional insureds. However, most insurance policies will have exclusions for certain
environmental or other liabilities. Based on the foregoing and considering the nature of the Trust's activities and
its intention to comply with all environmental regulations relating to its properties and the insurance policies
which it will hold, the possibility of any personal liability of this nature arising is considered remote. The Trust
Indenture provides that, in the event that the payment of a Trust obligation is made by a Unitholder, such
Unitholder will be entitled to reimbursement from the available assets of the Trust. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, because of uncertainties in law relating to trusts such as the Trust, there is a risk that a Unitholder
could be held personally liable for the obligations of the Trust to the extent that claims are not satisfied by
the Trust.

As part of the Acquisition, a portion of the assets of the Trust will be invested in the trust units and debt
obligations of CT and as a holder of trust units, the Trustee is subject to potential liability for obligations of CT
in circumstances similar to those described above for Unitholders. CT will own a 9.5% interest in the
Syncrude Project.

Nature of Trust Units

Trust units do not represent a traditional investment in the oil and natural gas sector and should not be
viewed by investors as shares in a corporation. Trust units represent a fractional interest in a trust. As holders of
Trust Units, Unitholders will not have the statutory rights normally associated with ownership of shares of a
corporation including, for example, the right to bring "~ oppression” or "~ derivative” actions. The market price of
the Trust Units will be sensitive to a variety of market conditions including, but not limited to, interest rates and
the ability of the Trust to develop its reserves. Changes in market conditions may- adversely affect the trading
price of the Trust Units.

Volatility of Oil Prices

The financial condition, operating results and future growth of the Trust are substantially dependent on
prevailing prices of oil. Prices for oil are subject to large fluctuations in response to relatively minor changes in
the supply of and demand for oil, market uncertainty and a variety of additional factors beyond the control of
the Trust. These factors include weather conditions in Canada and the United States, the condition of the
Canadian and U.S. economy, the actions of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries, governmental
regulation, political stability in the Middle East and elsewhere, war, or the threat of war, in oil producing
regions, the foreign supply of oil, the price of foreign imports and the availability of alternate fuel sources. In
view of the higher operating costs of Syncrude Canada Ltd., the operating margin is expected to be more
sensitive to oil prices than an investment in a company producing conventional crude oil. Any substantial and
extended decline in the price of oil would have an adverse effect on the revenues, profitability and cash flows of
the Trust.

While the Syncrude Project has not been shut down by the Participants since production commenced, a
prolonged period of abnormally low oil prices could result in the Participants deciding to suspend production.
Any such suspension of production could result in a corresponding suspension of distributions to Unitholders
and could expose the Trust to significant additional expense.

Natural Gas Prices

The financial condition, operating results and future growth of the Trust is substantially affected by the
price of natural gas. Natural gas is used in material quantities as a feed stock at the Syncrude Project for the
production of hydrogen and as a fuel for the generation of heat, steam and power. The price of natural gas is
subject to large variations based on supply and demand for natural gas in North America. Syncrude Canada Ltd.
and the Trust have no control over such prices. A material increase in natural gas prices will have an adverse
effect on the revenues, profitability and cash flow of the Trust.
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Competition

The Canadian and international petroleum industry is highly competitive in all aspects, including the
distribution and marketing of petroleum products. The Syncrude Project competes with other producers of
crude oil, most of whom have considerably lower operating costs. The petroleum industry also competes with
other industries in supplying energy, fuel and related products to consumers.

Capital Investment

The Trust and the other Participants will continue to make substantial capital expenditures for the mining of
oil sands and production of SSB. The timing and amount of capital expenditures will directly affect the amount
of distributable income for distribution to Unitholders. There is no assurance that capital cost overruns will not
occur or that investments will deliver the production increases expected by design or that start-up will occur as
expected. In addition, the Trust has not, and will not, attempt to maximize short-term cash flow at the expense of
long-term benefits and therefore will not generally be voting as a Participant against proposed capital
expenditures solely to maintain cash flow to Unitholders from the Syncrude Project. The Trust has credit
facilities available to it to assist in funding capital expenditures in excess of cash flow. However, there is no
assurance that the Trust will have capital sufficient to fund all capital expenditures that may be required, or that
capital projects will not experience significant cost overruns.

Operational Risk

The Trust is subject to operational risks inherent in the oil sands business. The Trust benefits from the
operational risk management programs implemented by the Syncrude Joint Venture. Its exposure to operational
risks is also managed by maintaining appropriate insurance.

Dependence on Other Participants

The Syncrude Project is a joint venture currently owned by nine Participants. Certain decisions regarding
the operations of the Syncrude Project require majority agreement among the Participants and some
fundamental decisions require unanimity. Future plans of the Syncrude Project will depend on such agreement
and may depend on the financial strength and views of the other Participants at the time such decisions
are made.

Government Regulation

The Syncrude Project's mining operations and exploration activities are subject to extensive Canadian
federal, provincial and local laws and regulations governing exploration, development, transportation,
production, exports, labour standards, occupational health, waste disposal, protection and redemption of the
environment, mine safety, hazardous materials, toxic substances and other matters. It is believed that Syncrude
Canada Ltd. is in substantial compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. Amendments to current laws
and regulations governing operations and activities of mining companies and the more stringent implementation
thereof are actively considered from time to time and the implementation thereof could have a material adverse
impact on the Syncrude Project. There can be no assurance that the various government licenses granted to the
Syncrude Project will not be cancelled or will be renewed upon expiry or that income tax laws and government
incentive programs relating to the Syncrude Project, and the mining and oil and gas industries generally, will not
be changed in a manner which may adversely affect Unitholders. The Syncrude Project facility license granted by
the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board expires on December 31, 2035 unless extended.

Foreign Exchange

Crude oil prices are generally based on a U.S. dollar market price, while operating and capital costs are
primarily in Canadian dollars. In addition, COSL makes interest payments in U.S. dollars on its U.S.-dollar
denominated debt. Fluctuations in exchange rates between the U.S. and Canadian dollar will therefore give rise
to foreign currency exchange exposure. COSL has entered into currency exchange contracts to minimize the
impact of fluctuations in currency exchange rates and interest rates. The use of financial instruments involves a
degree of credit risk.

24



~

Fiscal Regime

The results of operations and the availability of distributable income for distribution to the Unitholders will
be directly affected by the fiscal regime applicable to the Syncrude Project. The Alberta Crown Agreement
creates a joint venture between the Province of Alberta as lessor and the Participants of the Syncrude Project as
lessees. Its purpose is to establish annually, using a deemed net profit concept, the basis on which Syncrude's
annual production is to be shared by the lessor and each of the lessees. Commencing on January 1, 1997, the
Alberta Crown Agreement provided that the Province of Alberta would be entitled to a royalty of 50% of the
deemed net profit on the first 74 million barrels of annual production less a credit equal to 43% of capital
expenditures. The deemed net profit was determined by deducting from the deemed gross revenue the aggregate
of allowed operating costs, deemed interest expense and amortization of capital costs and any loss carry-
forwards. For annual production in excess of 74 million barrels from the original leases, the Province of Alberta
was entitled to a royalty of 25% of the deemed net profit after deducting capital expenditures, with a minimum
payment of one percent of gross revenue. These provisions were in effect until December 31, 2001, when the
aggregate of Syncrude's capital spending incurred after December 31, 1995 exceeded $2.8 billion. Subsequently,
the Alberta Crown Agreement entitles the Province of Alberta to a royalty payment equivalent to the greater of
1% of gross revenue and 25% of net revenue after deducting applicable operating and capital expenditures.

There can be no assurance that the federal government and the Province of Alberta will continue the
regime currently in place in the future.

Reserves

Although the reserve figures incorporated by reference into this short form prospectus have been carefully
prepared and the methods of estimating reserves have been verified by mining experience, such figures are
estimates and no assurance can be given that the indicated level of recovery of bitumen will be realized. Reserves
estimated for properties that have not yet commenced production may require revision based on actual
production experience. Such figures have been determined based upon the term of the operating permit, plant
processing capacity and estimates of yield and recovery factors as well as estimates of bitumen in place. Market
price fluctuations of crude oil prices may render uneconomic the mining of oil sands reserves containing
relatively lower grades of bitumen. Moreover, short-term factors relating to the oil sands reserves, such as the
need for orderly development of ore bodies or the processing of new or different grades of ore, may impair the
profitability of a mine in any particular accounting period.

The Trust Units have no value if reserves from the Syncrude Project cannot be economically produced and
marketed. In addition, the Trust Units will have no value once all of the reserves of bitumen are extracted.

Nature of Syncrude Operations

The Syncrude Project is a single interrelated and interdependent facility. The shutdown of one part of the
Syncrude Project could significantly impact the production of SSB. Since the primary source of income to the
Trust is the sale of SSB, a shutdown may reduce, or even eliminate, the amount of cash flow to the Trust out of
which distributions are then made to Unitholders. There can be no assurance that the Syncrude Project will
produce SSB in the quantities or at the cost anticipated, or that it will not cease producing entirely in certain
circumstances. Because operating costs to produce SSB are substantially higher than operating costs to produce
conventional crude oil, an increase in such costs could have a material effect on the Trust and the amount of cash
flow out of which distributions can then be made to Unitholders.

The Syncrude Project is located in a remote area, and is serviced by one all weather road. In the event that
the road is closed due to climatic conditions or other factors, Syncrude Canada Ltd. may encounter difficulties in
obtaining materials required for it to continue production.

The production of SSB requires high levels of investment and has particular economic risks, such as settling
basin dike failures, fires, explosions, gaseous leaks, spills and migration of harmful substances, any of which can
cause personal injury, damage to property, equipment and the environment, and result in the interruption of
operations. Certain of these risks cannot be fully insured on an economic basis.
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SSB is shipped from the Syncrude Project via a single pipeline. There are limited facilities at the Syncrude
site for the storage of SSB and, in the event of an interruption in pipeline shipments, the Syncrude Project's
operations may be materially adversely affected.

Syncrude Canada Ltd. produces and stores significant amounts of sulphur in a sulphur block at its plant site
as there is presently no market for the sulphur. There can be no assurance that future environmental regulations
pertaining to the use, storage, handling and/or sale of sulphur will not adversely impact the unit costs of
production of SSB.

Mafketing

A significant volume of production from the Syncrude Project is exported to the United States, such that
pipeline access, transportation tariffs and price differential with competing products are all factors which can
affect sales volumes for SSB as well as netbacks receivable by the Trust for its share of production.

Over the next five years, planned upgrading projects, including the Syncrude expansion, could result in
additional synthetic crude oil entering the market. This could cause an increase in the SSB price differential. In
anticipation of this development, the Participants will be investing to improve product quality in Stage 3 of
Syncrude's expansion plan to improve SSB as a feedstock for jet fuel and diesel products. This improved product
is expected to increase the demand for SSB and preserve its price premium. Efforts are underway to identify
new, or expand existing, markets for SSB.

Debt Service

COSL has unsecured credit facilities. Variations in interest rates and scheduled principal repayments could
result in significant changes in the amount required to be applied to debt service before payment of any amounts
to the Trust. Certain covenants of the agreements with the lenders may also limit payments to the Trust.
Although management of COSL believes that existing bank lines of credit will be sufficient for their immediate
requirements, there can be no assurance that the amount will be adequate for the actual future operating,
capital expenditure and other financial obligations of COSL or that additional funds will be able to be obtained.

Environmental Obligations

Each of the Participants is liable for its share of ongoing environmental obligations and for the ultimate
reclamation of the Syncrude Project site upon abandonment. Ongoing environmental obligations have been and
are expected to continue to be funded out of the Syncrude Project cash flow.

Syncrude Canada Ltd. has posted a letter of credit with the Province of Alberta in the amount of $0.03 per
barrel of SSB produced since the inception of the Syncrude Project to secure the ultimate reclamation
obligations of the Participants. Each of the Participants is required to guarantee repayment of its pro rata share
of this letter of credit to the issuing bank.

In addition to the foregoing, COSL is a party to a written agreement with a trustee creating the Mining
Reclamation Trust. Pursuant to this agreement, COSL is presently paying $0.1322 into separate Mining
Reclamation Trusts for each barrel of SSB produced and attributable to its working interest, for the purpose of
funding its share of environmental and reclamation obligations in connection with the Syncrude Project. This
payment may be adjusted from time to time, based on the current conservation and reclamation plan prepared
and revised by Syncrude Canada Ltd. from time to time, with the intent that the Mining Reclamation Trust will
have adequate funds to pay the expected final site reclamation costs attributable to the Syncrude Project.
Generally, final site reclamation cost estimates will reflect the current conservation and reclamation plan
prepared and revised by Syncrude Canada Ltd. from time to time.

The Kyoto Protocol

The Canadian federal government has provided some parameters for implementing the Kyoto Protocol.
Total annual emissions for large industrial emitters has been capped at 55 megatonnes, emission reduction
targets have been set at 15% compared to business as usual, and the cost of a carbon credit has been limited to
$15 per tonne. Based on these parameters, the Trust has provided an initial estimated direct cost impact of $0.22
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to $0.30 per barrel from 2008 to 2012 on Syncrude's operating costs for implementing the Kyoto Protocol.
However, numerous uncertainties regarding details of the Protocol's implementation remain that make it
difficult to ascertain the cost estimate, including when third party costs related to the Protocol factor their way
into Syncrude's supply chain of goods and services. The Trust continues to work through its industry associations
and directly with the Alberta provincial and federal governments to develop a cost-effective plan to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no outstanding legal proceedings material to the Trust to which the Trust is a party or in respect
of which any of its properties are subject, nor are there are such proceedings known to be contemplated.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The material contracts entered into and to be entered into by the Trust in connection with the Offering are
as follows:

(a) The Subscription Receipt Agreement referred to under *“Details of the Offering".
(b) The Underwriting Agreement referred to under the ™ "Plan of Distribution”.
(c) The CT Trust Indenture referred to under * " Proposed Acquisition”.

Copies of each of the foregoing agreements once executed may be inspected during regular business hours
at the offices of the Trust, 2500 First Canadian Centre, 350 - 7th Avenue S.W.,, Calgary, Alberta, T2P 3N9, until
the expiry of the 30-day period following the date of the final short form prospectus.

AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

The auditors of the Trust are PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Chartered Accountants, 3100,
111 - 5th Avenue S.W,, Calgary, Alberta, T2P 5L3.

The transfer agent and registrar for the Trust Units is Computershare Trust Company of Canada in Calgary
and Toronto. The transfer agent and registrar for the Subscription Receipts is Computershare Trust Company
of Canada.

LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters relating to the Offering of the Subscription Receipts will be passed upon by McCarthy
Tetrault LLP and, with respect to tax matters, by Burnet, Duckworth & Palmer LLP, on behalf of the Trust, and
by Macleod Dixon LLP, on behalf of the Underwriters. The partners and associates of McCarthy Tetraultt LLP, as
a group, the partners and associates of Macleod Dixon LLP, as a group, and the partners and associates of
Burnet, Duckworth & Palmer LLP, as a group, own, directly or indirectly, less than 1% of the outstanding
Trust Units.

STATUTORY RIGHTS OF WITHDRAWAL AND RESCISSION

Securities legislation in certain of the provinces of Canada provides purchasers with the right to withdraw
from an agreement to purchase securities. This right may be exercised within two business days after receipt or
deemed receipt of a prospectus and any amendment. In several of the provinces, securities legislation further
provides a purchaser with remedies for rescission or, in some jurisdictions, damages if the prospectus and any
amendment contains a misrepresentation or is not delivered to the purchaser, provided that the remedies for
rescission or damages are exercised by the purchaser within the time limit prescribed by the securities legislation
of the purchaser's province. The purchaser should refer to any applicable provisions of the securities legislation
of the province in which the purchaser resides for the particulars of these rights or consult with a legal advisor.

In addition, a purchaser of Subscription Receipts will have a contractual right of rescission following the
issuance of Trust Units to such purchaser. See " Details of the Offering".
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APPENDIX A

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.

NOTE: The following financial statements have beem provided by EnCana
Corporation in connection with the Acquisition by COSL of the Syncrude Interest
and COSL makes no representation as to their accuracy or completeness. EnCana
currently holds its interest in the Syncrude Joint Venture indirectly through AEC Qil
Sands, L.P. In addition to the 10% interest being acquired by COSL pursuant to the
Acquisition, AEC Oil Sands, L.P. also owns, indirectly, a 3.75% working interest in
the Syncrude Joint Venture (subject to a 6% gross overriding royalty). The following
financial statements reflect the aggregate interest of AEC QOil Sands, L.P. in the
Syncrude Joint Venture, of which COSL has agreed to purchase only a portion
pursuant to the Acquisition.

In order to extract the percentage interest of the Syncrude Joint Venture being
acquired by COSL under AEC Oil Sands, L.Ps Statement of Earnings and Partners'
Equity, approximately 72.7% can be applied against gross revenue, transportation
expense, operating costs and indirect operating costs. Royaities and other income
expense includes the crown royalties expense, of which 72.7% will be acquired, but
also includes the 6% gross overriding royalty expense which is not being acquired by
COSL. See Note 3(c) to the Pro Forma Financial Statements appearing as
Appendix B to this short form prospectus for guidance on the treatment of this line
itemn. Depletion and reclamation expense is not relevant to the percentage interest
being acquired as differing unit-of-production rates and reclamation rates are
applied by AEC Oil Sands, L.P. and COSL. Interest income/expense is also not
relevant as it does not apply to the ownership of the Syncrude Interest.

In order to extract the percentage interest of the Syncrude Joint Venture being
acquired by COSL under AEC Oil Sands, L.P's Balance Sheet, approximately
72.7% can be applied against assets and liabilities, less the gross overriding royalty
payable and " “due from partners and affiliates” which are not being acquired by
COSL. The net assets will be subject to purchase price adjustments based on the
values assigned to the assets and liabilities acquired at the time of closing the
Acquisition which is expected to occur on or about February 28, 2003.
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AEC Oil Sands, L.P.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OCTOBER 31, 2002

(UNAUDITED)



AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.
STATEMENT OF EARNINGS AND PARTNERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED OCTOBER 31

(unaudited)
($ thousands)

2002 2001
Gross ReVEIUE . . . . ... .ottt e e e e $ 344,825 $349,843
Costs and Expenses
TEanSPOItation . . o oo vttt e 3,912 5,094
Royalties . . . . ... 7,676 33,209
OPerating COSIS . . . v vttt ittt ittt e et e e e e 161,617 165,404
Indirect operating CoStS . ... ... i e e 140 638
Depletion and reclamation . . ... .. ... i e e 18,526 15,295
Interest, Met. . ... .o e 149 (248)
192,020 219,392
NEt CAITIIMES . . . . oo v et e e et et ittt e ettt e e e e e § 152,805 $130,451
AEC OIL SANDS, L.P
STATEMENT OF PARTNERS’ EQUITY
AS AT OCTOBER 31
(unaudited)
($ thousands)
2002 2001
Partners' equity, beginning of period ........... ... ... .. ... . . . .. $ 870,644 $673,595
Earnings for the period . . .. ... .. ... e e 152,805 130,451
Partners' equity, end of period . . .. ... ... . ... .. $1,023,449 $804,046
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.
BALANCE SHEET

(unaudited)
($ thousands)

ASSETS

Current
Cash and cash equivalents .. ........ ... ... .. . .. . i
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue . ........ ... ... . .. i,
Prepaids . . ... .o e e
InVEntOries . .. e e e e e e
Due from partners and affiliates. . . .......... ... ... .. .

Capital Assets . ... ... ... . e e e e

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS’ EQUITY

Current
Accounts payable . ... ... e e
Accrued liabilities . .. ..o i e e e e
Other Habillties . . . . . ot i et e et e e e e e e e e

Reclamation Provision . .. ..... .. ... . ... e

Partners’ Equity . . . ... ... .. . e

A4

As at As at
October 31 January 31
2002 2002
$ 16,716 $ 5,670

52,754 40,772

- 635
15,838 14,324
226,828 220,766
312,136 282,167
829,288 667,604
$1,141,424 $949,771
$ 20304 § 7,373
76,359 50,376
835 2,087
97,498 59,836
20,477 19,291
117,975 79,127
1,023,449 870,644
$1,141,424  $949,771




AEC OIL SANDS, L.P
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED OCTOBER 31
($ thousands)

2002 2001
Operating Activities
NEt CAIMINES .« o o\ v ot et ettt ettt e et e e et e $152,805 $130,451
Depletion and reclamation . ......... ... i i e e 18,526 15,295
0 11 T=3 o (1,252) (1,113)
Cash Flow from operations . . . .. ... it e i 170,079 144,633
Net change in non-cash working capital . .. ........... ... ... ... ........ 26,053 18,438

196,132 163,071

Investing Activities

Capital INVESLMENt . . . . ... e (178,357)  (61,431)

Reclamation payments . ... ...ttt ittt et (667) (296)

(179,024)  (61,727)

Increase in cash before financing activities ............. ... ... ... . ... ... 17,108 101,344
Financing Activities

Increase in due ffOm Partners . . . ... vttt it e (10,903)  (91,186)

Decrease in due from affiliates . . ... ... o it e 4,841 38

(6,062)  (91,148)

Increase in cash . . ... ...t $ 11,046 $ 10,196
Cash (bank overdraft), beginning of period . . . ... .......................... 5,670 (1,414)
Cash (bank overdraft), end of period . ................... ... .. ... ... .. $ 16,716 $ 8,782

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Interest paid . . ... ... ... e $ 39 § 36
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AEC Oil Sands, L.P,

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JANUARY 31, 2002
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PRICEAATERHOUSE(COPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
425 1st Street SW

Suite 1200

Calgary, Alberta

Canada T2P 3V7

Telephone +1 (403) 509 7500
March 18, 2002 Facsimile +1 (403) 781 1825

Auditors' Report

To the Partners of
AEC Oil Sands, L.P.

We have audited the balance sheet of AEC Oil Sands, L.P. as at January 31, 2002 and the statements of earnings
and partners’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Partnership's Management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Auditing Standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by Management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Partnership as at January 31, 2002 and the results of its operations and the changes in its cash position for the
years then ended in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

/m' ,,.a&..qémb £ef

Chartered Accountants
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT JANUARY 31
($ thousands)

2001

$ -
48,631
941
12,206
112,955

174,733
572,046

$746,779

$ 1414
12,737
36,572

1,354

52,077
3,617
17,490

73,184
673,595

Note 202
ASSETS
Current assets
Cashand cashequivalents . .. ........ ...t nnenn.. $ 5,670
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue . .. ... ... .. oL 40,772
Prepaids . . . ..o 635
883753 11 o) ¢ U=1- 3 14,324
Due from partners and affiliates ............... ... ... ... L. 5 220,766
282,167
Capital assets, net . . .. ... ... .. 4 667,604
$949,771
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft . .. ... ... .. . e e e $ -
Accounts payable . ....... ... .. e e 7,373
Accrued liabilities . . .. ... ... e 50,376
Other liabilities . . . .. ... . i e e e e 7 2,087
Due toaffiliates . ... ... ..o e e e 5 -
59,836
Other liabilities . . . . .. ........ . . i e e 7 -
Reclamation provision .. ............. ... ..ttt 19,291
79,127
Partner’s equity . . .. ... ... e e 870,644
$949 771

$746,779

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

A8



AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.
STATEMENT OF EARNINGS AND PARTNERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31 Y
($ thousands)

]i?_tf 2002 2001
GrOSS TEVEIMIES . . . . o v v vt e e et e e e e et e e e e e e e e $469,503  $462,240
Expenses
Transportation . ... ...t e e 4,686 3,852
Royalties and otherincome . ... ........ .. ... i 8 30,385 85,685
OPperating CoSIS . . . . v vt ittt it et e e e 215,771 190,586
Indirect operating CostS . . . . .. ittt e 794 857
Interest, MEt . . Lo e e et e e (399) (531)
“  Depletion and reclamation . .......... ... ... i 21,217 16,833
Net @armings . . . ...ttt et ettt ittt et e 197,049 164,958
Partners’ equity, beginning of year . ............ ... ... .. ... .. ... .. 673,595 588,637
Distribution to partners . . ........... ... .. e - (80,000)
Partners’ equity, end of year . . . ........... ... ..., $870,644 $673,595
(
See accompanying notes to the financial statements (
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31
($ thousands)

2002

2001

Operating activities
Net earnings

................................................

................................................... $ 197,049 § 164,958

Depletion and reclamation . . . ...... ... i i e 21,217 16,833
Other . . . e e (1,530) (1,669)
216,736 180,122
Net change in non-cash working capital . . ......... ... ... ... ... ... ... 14,487 9
231,223 180,131
Investing activities
Capital INVESIMENT . . . ..ottt e e e (114,678)  (71,786)
Reclamation payments . . . . ... ...ttt e (296) -
(114,974  (71,786)
Financing activities
Increase in due from partners and affiliates. . . .. ........ ... ... .o L. (109,165)  (39,684)
Distribution o partners . . ... .. ... e - (80,000)
(109,165)  (119,684)
Increase (decrease) imcash . .. ......... ... ... . i 7,084 (11,339)
Cash (bank overdraft), beginningof year . . .. ............ .. ... ... ... .... $ (1,414) 9,925

Cash (bank overdraft), end of year

.................................... $ 5670 $ (1,414)

Supplemental Information
Interest paid

47

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2002
(Tabular amounts in $ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

PARTNERSHIP INFORMATION

AEC Oil Sands, L.P. is a partnership of AEC Qil Sands GP Ltd. and Alberta Energy Company Ltd., which
was formed on June 1, 1997. On formation, the original partners contributed, at historical values, their
respective interests in the Syncrude Canada Joint Venture. The Partnership owns a 13.75% interest in the
Syncrude Canada Joint Venture.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

()

d

(e)

®

(2)

(h)

Principles of Consolidation

Investments in unincorporated joint ventures are accounted for using the proportionate consolidation
method, whereby the Partnership's share of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are included in
the accounts.

Measurement Uncertainty

Amounts recorded for depletion are based on estimates of oil reserves and future costs required to
develop those reserves. The Partnership's reserve estimates are reviewed annually by an independent
engineering firm. By their nature, these estimates of reserves and the related future cash flows are
subject to measurement uncertainty, and the impact on the financial statements of future periods could
be material.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues associated with the sales of synthetic crude oil owned by the Partnership are recognized
when title passes from the Partnership to its customer.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include short-term investments with a maturity of three months or less
when purchased.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value.
Capital Assets

Acquisition costs of capital assets are capitalized. These costs include leasehold acquisition costs and
the cost of tangible equipment. All such costs are depleted and depreciated using the unit-of-
production method, based on production of synthetic crude oil from the existing facility.

Reclamation costs are estimated and recorded over the estimated life of the proven reserves.
Hedging Activities

Settlement of crude oil swap agreements, which have been arranged as a hedge against commodity
price fluctuations, are reflected in product revenues at the time of sale of the related hedged
production.

Employee Benefit Plans

The Partnership accrues for its proportionate share of the Syncrude Canada Joint Venture obligations
under employee benefit plans and the related costs, net of plan assets.
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2002
(Tabular amounts in $ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The cost of pensions and other retirement benefits earned by employees is actuarially determined using
the projected benefit method pro-rated on service and Management's best estimate of expected plan
investment performance, salary escalation, retirement ages of employees and expected health care
costs. The obligation is discounted using a market interest rate at the beginning of the year on high
quality corporate debt instruments.

For the purpose of calculating the expected return on plan assets, those assets are valued at fair value.

Past service costs from the plan amendments are amortized on a straight-line basis over the average
remaining service period of employees active at the date of amendment.

The excess of the net actuarial gain or loss over 10% of the greater of the benefit obligation and the
fair value of plan assets is amortized over the average remaining service period of active employees.

(i) Income Taxes

Income taxes are the responsibility of the individual partners and therefore no income taxes have been
recorded in these financial statements.

INVENTORIES
2002 2001

Materials and supplies . . ... e e $14,050 $11,678
Finished goods inventory . ........ ... . i 274 528

$14,324  $12,206
CAPITAL ASSETS

2002 2001

(/o $ 904,128 $ 789,450
Accumulated depletion . . . ... ... (236,524)  (217,404)

$ 667,604 § 572,046

DUE FROM PARTNERS AND AFFILIATES/DUE TO AFFILIATES

The amounts due from partners and affiliates and due to affiliates are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

LONG-TERM DEBT

The Partnership has available a $25.0 million unsecured revolving credit and term loan facility. The facility
is fully revolving for 364-day periods with provision for extension at the option of the lender following
notice from the Partnership. If not extended, the facility converts to a non-revolving reducing facility to be
repayable in full by the end of five years. Loans are available in Canadian dollars or U.S. equivalent and
currently bear interest either at the lender's rates for Canadian prime commercial or U.S. base rate loans, at
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2002

(Tabular amounts in $ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Bankers' Acceptance rates or at LIBOR plus applicable margins. As at January 31, 2002, no amount is
outstanding under this facility.

OTHER LIABILITIES

The amount, due to Syncrude Canada Ltd., represents the non-cash components of prior years cost of
service utility billings to the Syncrude Canada Joint Venture. The amount is being repaid in equal monthly
installments of $139,100 until March 31, 2003.

ROYALTIES AND OTHER INCOME

Royalties payable to the Province of Alberta are governed by an agreement between the Syncrude Canada

Joint Venture and the Government of the Province of Alberta (the *~Crown"). The agreement provides for a
transition period from 1997 to the earlier of January 1, 2004 and the month after the Syncrude participants'

aggregate capital expenditures from 1996 have reached $2.8 billion. The transition period terminated in

December 2001.

During the transition period the royalties were determined as the greater of:

(a) the net profits interest share (Crown share) of gross revenues less allowed operating costs and a
43 percent credit for capital expenditures.

(b) one percent of gross revenues attributed to new production in excess of 74 million barrels from the
original leases and all production from new leases.

In January 2002, the Syncrude participants commenced paying royalties according to Alberta's generic oil
sands royalty legislation. The generic royalty legislation stipulates that the Province of Alberta will receive
the greater of:

(a) one percent of gross revenues.

(b) 25 percent of the excess of gross revenues over allowed operating costs and capital expenditures for
the year.

Other income includes $5.2 million of insurance proceeds.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following table outlines the transactions with affiliates during the year:

2002 2001
Oil hedge reVENUE . . . o oottt et ettt e e e $31958 § O
ROYAItY EXPEMSE . . o v vt et et et e e e e e $ 5545 $7,008
Tariff . . . e e e $ 4075 §3,852
Marketing £S5 . . . v oot vttt et e e e e e e $ 371 § 378
Management fEeS. . . ...ttt $ 20 § 22

The Partnership pays and receives management fees to/from affiliates.
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2002

(Tabular amounts in $ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Syncrude Canada Joint Venture has entered into a capital commitment for the purposes of expansion.
The Partnership's share of the capital commitment for the next three years are 2003 — $217.4 million;
2004 - $187.3 million and 2005 - $90.9 million.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial Assets and Liabilities

The financial assets and liabilities included in the financial statements are cash, accounts receivable, all
current liabilities and amounts due to or from affiliated companies.

The fair values of financial instruments included in the balance sheet approximate their carrying
amount due to the short-term maturity of those instruments.

(b) Credit Risk

A substantial portion of the Partnership's accounts receivable are with customers in the oil and gas
industry and are subject to normal industry credit risks.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Syncrude Canada Joint Venture has post-retirement benefits plans for its employees. The following
information in this note represents the Partnership's proportionate interest. No adjustment has been made
to reflect the Partnership year end of January 31, 2002.

2001 2000
($ millions)
Total expense for the defined contribution plan . ............ ... ... ......... $ 06 $ 05
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of theyear ........................... $1022 §$ 654
Opening balance adjustment. . . .. ..o ottt e e - 24.8
CUITent SEIVICE COSL . . v oo vttt e et et e et et e e 4.0 31
Interest COSt ... .ot e 1.2 6.5
Benefits paid . . . . ... e e e 41y (32
Actuarial 10Ss .. ... .. e e e 102 56
Accrued benefit obligation, end ofyear.............. .. ... ... oo, $119.5 $102.2
2001 2000
($ millions)
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year .............. ... ... ... .. ... ... $8.1 $808
Actual return on plan assets . .. .. i e e (4.8) 1.5
Employer contributions. . . . ... ... e 34 2.6
Benefits paid . ... ... e e (3.5 (2.8
Fair value of plan assets, end of year . . .. ... ... ... . i $772 §$821
Funded status— plandeficit . . ........ ... $(42.3) $(20.1)
Unamortized net acturial loss .. ........ .. i e 10.3 11.6
Accrued benefit Hability . ... ..ottt e $(32.0) $ (85)
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2002
(Tabular amounts in $ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

12, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

The significant actuarial assumptions used to determine the periodic expense and accrued benefit
obligations are as follows:

2001 2000
“Percent (%)
DisCOUnt Tate . ... . oottt e e e e e 6.5 9.0
Expected long-term rate of return on planassets . ................ ... ... .. ... 9.0 9.0
Rate of compensation increase . .............. .. i i 4.0 4.0
The periodic expense for employee benefits is as follows:
2001 2000
" ($ millions)
CUTTENE SETVACE COSE & o 4 vov v et et et ettt et e e et e ettt e u s $40 $3.1
INEEIESt COSE .« v v v vttt et e et e e et et e e e e 7.2 6.5
Expected refurn on plan asseis . . .. v v vttt e 74) (72
Expense for defined contribution plan. . ........... .. . i e 0.6 0.5
Net benefit plan €Xpense ... ... ...ttt $44 $29

The average remaining service period of the active employees covered by the defined benefit plan is
13.8 years.
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PRICEAVATERHOUSE( COPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
425 1st Street SW

Suite 1200

Calgary, Alberta

Canada T2P 3V7

Telephone +1 (403) 509 7500
March 16, 2001 Facsimile +1 (403) 781 1825

Auditors' Report

To the Partners of
AEC Qil Sands, L.P.

We have audited the balance sheet of AEC Oil Sands, L.P. as at January 31, 2001 and the statements of earnings,
partners' equity and cash flow for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Partnership's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Partnership as at January 31, 2001 and the results of its operations and the changes in its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

/m“ala«éwui’

Chartered Accountants
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P
STATEMENT OF EARNINGS AND PARTNERS’ EQUITY
(_ : FOR THE YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31
($ thousands)

Gross Revenue . ... ... ... .ttt i e e e e e e e

Costs and Expenses
Transportation . .. .. ... e e
Royalties . ... .o e
OPEIAtiNE COSS . o v v vttt it e e e
Indirect Operating CoStS. . . . .o vttt e
Depletion and reclamation ... ...... ... ... ... e
Interest, Met . . .. ..ot e e e e e

Net Earnings . . . . .. ... i e e e e

STATEMENT OF PARTNERS’ EQUITY
AS AT JANUARY 31
($ thousands)

Partners' equity, beginning of year . ........ ... . .
Pension adjustment . ......... ... e S

Partners' equity, beginning of year as restated . ........... .. ... .. ..,

Distribution t0 Partners . ... ..o it e e
Earnings fortheyear . ... .. .. . i e e

Partners' equity, end of year . . .. .. ...

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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2001 2000
$462,240 $334,417

3852 2,743
85,685 11,123
190,586 137,636
857 412
16,833 17,755
(531) (112)

297,282 169,557

$164,958  $164,860

2001 2000
$588,637 $428,044
- (4,174)
588,637 423,870
(80,000) (93)

164,958 164,860

$673,595 $588,637




AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT JANUARY 31
($ thousands)

§£‘E 2001 2000
ASSETS
Current
Cash .o e e $ - $ 9,925
Accounts receivable. . . .. .. e e e 48,631 41,700
Due from partners . . ... ...t 7 112,955 72,892
Prepaids . ... ..o e 941 274
Ve oI S . . . o ittt i e e e e e e e 4 12,206 13,395
174,733 138,186
Capital Assets . . ....... ...t e et e 5 572,046 515,975

$746,779 $654,161

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS’ EQUITY

Current
Bank overdraft . .. .. i e e $ 1414 § -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . ............... ... .. ... .... 6 49,309 42 891
Due to affiliates . . .o i ittt e e e e e e e 7 1,354 975
52,077 43,866
Reclamation Provision . ... .. ... .t i e e e 17,490 16,372
Other Liabilities . ... ... ... i e et 9 3,617 5,286
73,184 65,524
Partners’ Equity . . .. .. .. ... . i e e 673,595 588,637

$746,779  $654,161

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31
($ thousands)

Operating Activities
Net earnings
Depletion and reclamation
Other

Cash flow from operations

Net change in non-cash working capital

Investing Activities
Capital investment

Increase in cash before financing activities

Financing Activities
Increase in due from partners
Distribution to partners
Increase in due to affiliates

Decrease in cash
Cash, beginning of year
Cash (bank overdraft}, end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Interest paid

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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2001

...................................................

.......................................

......................................................

$ 164,958 § 164,860

16,833
(1,669)

..............................

180,122
9

180,131

.............................................

(71,786)

.............................

108,345

.........................................

......................................

(40,063)
(80,000)
379

(119,684)

$ (11,339)

9,925

....................................

$ (1,414)

....................................................

47
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended January 31,
(tabular amounts in $ thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

NATURE OF BUSINESS

AEC Qil Sands, L.P. is a partnership of AEC Oil Sands GP Ltd. and Alberta Energy Company Ltd., which
was formed on June 1, 1997. On formation, the original partners contributed, at historical values, their
respective interests in the Syncrude Joint Venture. The Partnership owns a 13.75% interest in the Syncrude
Joint Venture.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

()

(e)

®

(g)

(h)

Principles of Consolidation

Investments in unincorporated joint ventures are accounted for using the proportionate consolidation
method, whereby the Partnership's share of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are included in the
accounts.

Measurement Uncertainty

Amounts recorded for depletion are based on estimates of oil reserves. The Partnership's reserve
estimates are reviewed annually. By their nature, these estimates of reserves and the related future
cash flows are subject to measurement uncertainty, and the impact on the financial statements of
future periods could be material.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues associated with the sales of synthetic crude oil owned by the Partnership are recognized
when title passes from the Partnership to its customer.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include short term investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased.

Capital Assets

Acquisition costs of capital assets are capitalized. These costs include leasehold acquisition costs and
the cost of tangible equipment. All such costs are depleted and depreciated using the unit-of-
production method, based on production of synthetic crude oil from the existing facility.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value.

Provision for Reclamation

Reclamation costs are estimated and recorded over the estimated life of the proved recoverable
Teserves.

Employee Benefit Plans

The Syncrude Canada joint venture accrues for its obligations under employee benefit plans and the
related costs, net of plan assets. The joint venture has adopted the following policies (see Note 3):

A-21
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2.

AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended January 31,
(tabular amounts in $ thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

* The cost of pensions and other retirement benefits earned by employees is actuarially determined
using the projected benefit method pro-rated on service and Management's best estimate of
expected plan investment performance, salary escalation, retirement ages of employees and expected
health care costs. The obligation is discounted using a market interest rate at the beginning of the
year on high quality corporate debt instruments.

* For the purpose of calculating the expected return on plan assets, those assets are valued at
fair value.

* Past service costs from the plan amendments are amortized on a straight-line basis over the average
remaining service period of employees active at the date of amendment.

* The excess of the net actuarial gain or loss over 10% of the greater of the benefit obligation and the
fair value of plan assets is amortized over the average remaining service period of active employees.

(i) Income Taxes

Income taxes are the responsibility of the individual partners and therefore no income taxes have been
recorded in these financial statements.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

On January 1, 2000, the Partnership retroactively adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
recommendations on accounting for employee future benefits. Amounts were directly charged to Partners'
Equity and Accrued Liabilities.

INVENTORIES

2001 2000
Materials and supplies . . .........iiiii i e $ 11,678 $ 13,089
Finished goods inventory. . . ... .. it e e 528 306

$ 12206 § 13,395

CAPITAL ASSETS

2001 2000
GOS8t it e e e e e e $ 789,450 $ 717,664
Accumulated depletion . ....... . .. e (217,404)  (201,689)

$ 572,046 § 515,975
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11.

AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended January 31,
(tabular amounts in $ thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

2001 2000
Trade accounts payable . . . . ..ottt e $12,737 $10,624
Accrued liabilities . . . . .. ... 36,572 32,267

$49,309 $42,891

DUE FROM PARTNERS AND DUE TO AFFILIATES

The amounts due from partners and due to affiliates are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayments.

LONG-TERM DEBT

The Partnership has available a $25.0 million unsecured revolving credit and term loan facility. The facility
is fully revolving for 364-day periods with provision for extensions at the option of the lender following
notice from the Partnership. If not extended, the facility converts to a non-revolving reducing facility to be
repayable in full by the end of five years. Loans are available in Canadian dollars or U.S. equivalent and
currently bear interest either at the lender's rates for Canadian prime commercial or U.S. base rate loans, at
Bankers' Acceptance rates or at LIBOR plus applicable margins. As at January 31, 2001, no amount is
outstanding under this facility.

OTHER LIABILITIES

The amount, due to Syncrude Canada Ltd., represents the non-cash components of prior years cost of
service utility billings to the Syncrude Joint Venture. The amount is being repaid in equal monthly
installments of $139,100 until March 31, 2003.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The fair values of financial instruments included in the balance sheet approximate their carrying
amount due to the short-term maturity of those instruments.

(b) Credit Risk

A substantial portion of the Partnership's accounts receivable are with customers in the oil and gas
industry and are subject to normal industry credit risks.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(a) Employee Benefits

The Syncrude Canada joint venture has post-retirement benefits plans for its employees. The following
information is from the Syncrude Canada Ltd. December 31, 2000 financial statements and represents
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended January 31,
(tabular amounts in $ thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

11. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Continued)

the Partnership's proportionate interest. No adjustment has been made to reflect the Partnership year
end of January 31, 2001.

2000 1999

($ millions)
Total expense for the defined contribution plan . .. ............ ... ....... $ 05 § 05
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of theyear ........... ... ... ... ... $ 654 $618
Opening balance adjustment . .......... ... .. ... i 24.8 -~
Current SEIVICE COSt. . ..ot vttt e 3.1 23
INEETESE COSE . . o v ittt e e e 6.5 4.9
Benefits paid . . . . ... . e 32y Q9
Actuarial (gain) 10SS . .. .. .. .. e 5.6 (0.7)
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year. .. .......... ... ... ... $1022 $654
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year . ............. ... ... ... ..., $ 80.8 §$ 709
Actual return on plan assets . . . ... .o e 1.5 10.9
Employer contributions . .. ... .. e e 2.6 18
Benefits paid . . . ... ... e (2.8) (2.8)
Fair value of plan assets, end of year . ...........c..cuivuennvnnnnnnn .. $ 8.1 §$808
Funded status — plan surplus (deficit) ........... ... .. ... . ... ... ..... $(20.1) $154
Unamortized net actuarial loss (gain) .. .......... ... .. ..., 11.6  (20.7)
Accrued benefit asset (liability) .. .......... .. e $ (85) $ (53)

The significant actuarial assumptions used to determine the periodic expense and accrued benefit
obligations are as follows:

2000 1999
Percent (%)
Discount rate . . . ... .. it i e e e 9.0 725
Expected long-term ratc on plan assets .. ................ e 9.0 90
Rate of compensation iNCIEASE . . . .. v vttt it e it e e e e 40 45
The periodic expense for employee benefits is as follows:
2000 1999
(8 miltions)
CUITENE SEIVICE COSL. . . o oottt ettt e et e e e e et e e e $31 524
INIETESE COSL . . .ottt e e e e 6.5 7.1
Expected return on plan assets. . . . ... oo ittt e e e (7.2) (8.0
Amortization of net actuarial loss. . . . ... ... .. i - (1.2)
Expense for defined contribution plan . ........... . i i e 0.5 0.5
Net benefit plan expense . . . .. ... ... e $29 508

The average remaining service period of the active employees covered by the defined benefit plan is
13.8 years.
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended January 31,
(tabular amounts in $ thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

11. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Related Party Transactions

(0

The following table outlines the transactions with affiliates during the year:

2001 2000
(5 thousands)

Royalties . . . ..o e e e 7,068 5,432
Tariff . . o e 3,852 2,743
Marketing fees . . ... ... e 378 303
Management fees . . ... .. .. 22 25

The Partnership pays and receives management fees to/from affiliates,

Commitments

The Partnership has entered into a capital commitment for the purposes of expansion at Syncrude. The
Partnership's share of the capital commitment is approximately $18.7 million in the next year.
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PRICEAATERHOUSE(COPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
425 1st Street SW

Suite 1200

Calgary, Alberta

Canada T2P 3V7

Telephone +1 (403) 509 7500
March 24, 2000 Facsimile +1 (403) 781 1825

Auditors' Report

To the Partners of
AEC Qil Sands, L.P.

We have audited the balance sheet of AEC Oil Sands, L.P. as at January 31, 2000 and the statements of earnings
and partners' equity and cash flow for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Partnership's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Partnership as at January 31, 2000 and the resuits of its operations and the changes in its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

/m’ .,.z,;&.“éw. LeP

Chartered Accountants
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.
STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31
($ thousands)

2000 1999

Revenue

Revenue, netof tariff . .. .. ... . e $331,674 $221,716

Royalties (EXPENSE) . . . oo v v ittt e e e e (11,123) 1,357

320,551 223,073

Expenses

Operating .................. e e e e 137,636 138,713

General and adminiStrative . . . . .. o oottt e e e 412 1,500

138,048 140,213

Earnings before undernoted . . ... ............. .. .. ... 182,503 82,860

Depreciation . ... ... e e 16,278 16,378

ReClamation . . .t vt ittt e e e e e e e e e 1,477 1,257

LRSS (1] S0 7= O (112) (716)
Net Earmings. . .. ... ..ot e e e $164,860 $ 65,941

STATEMENT OF PARTNERS’ EQUITY
AS AT JANUARY 31
($ thousands)
w 2000 1999

Partners' equity, beginning of year . . ... ... ... o oo o o i $423,870 $362,117
Pension adjustment .. ... ... ... ...ttt 10 - (4,174)
Partners' equity, beginning of year as restated . ........................ 423,870 357,943
Distribution to Partners . ... ... e (93) (14)
Earnings forthe year . ....... ... i i e 164,860 65,941

$588,637 $423,870
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT JANUARY 31
($ thousands)

Et_)& 2000 © 1999
ASSETS
Current
Cash Lo e e e e e e e $ 9925 § 13,442
Accounts receivable. . .. ... L e e e e 41,700 25,193
Due from Pariner . . .. .. i e e e e 6 72,892 8,648
Prepaids . . .. .. ..o e 274 492
| 30773103 5 L= S 3 13,395 12,988
138,186 60,763
Capital Assets, met . . ... ... ... it e e 4 515,975 430,610

$654,161  $491,373

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS’ EQUITY

Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . . .......... ... ... L 5 $42891 § 45,260
Due to Affiliates . . . ... ..ot e e 6 975 671
43,866 45,931
Reclamation Provision . . ............. . 0. 16,372 14,895
Other Liabilities ... ... ... .. .. e e 8 5,286 6,677
65,524 67,503
Partners’ EQUity . . . . .. .. .. .. e e e 588,637 423,870

$654,161 $491,373
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.B
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
( : FOR THE YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31
' ($ thousands)

2000 1999
Operating Activities

NEt CAMMINGS . . oot vttt e et e e e $164,860 §$ 65,941
Depreciation . ... ...ovu vt e e e 16,278 16,378
ReClamation. . .. ..o e e e e e 1,477 1,257
L 11 V= (1,391) 81

Cash flow from operations. . .. ... ... i e 181,224 83,657
Net change in non-cash working capital . .......... .. ... ... . . .. . iuun (19,065) (13,922)

162,159 69,735

Investing Activities

Capital inVestment . . ... .o i e e (101,643) (72,072)
Increase (Decrease) in Cash Before Financing Activities ... ................... 60,516 (2,337)
Financing Activities

Increase in due from partners . .. ...t e e (64,244y  (8,797)

Increase in due to affiliates . . ... ........ .. ... 304 535

Distribution to Partners ... ........ .. i e e e (93) (14)

(64,033)  (8,276)
Decrease imcash .. ... ... . i e $ (3,517) $(10,613)
C Cash, Deginning Of YEAT . . . . . oo oo et e e 13,442 24,055
Cash,end of year ... ... ... .. . it e $ 9,925 § 13,442
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Interest paid . ... ... oot e e $§ 415 § 56

A-30



AEC OIL SANDS, L.P
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(tabular amounts in $ thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

NATURE OF BUSINESS

AEC Oil Sands, L.P. is a partnership of AEC Oil Sands GP Ltd. and Alberta Energy Company Ltd., which
was formed on June 1, 1997. On formation, the original partners contributed, at historical values, their
respective interests in the Syncrude Joint Venture. The Partnership owns a 13.75% interest in the Syncrude
Joint Venture and a 6.0% overriding royalty on an additional 1.25% interest.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Principles of Consolidation

Investments in unincorporated joint ventures are accounted for using the proportionate consolidation
method, whereby the Partnership's share of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are included in the
accounts.

(b) Capital Assets
Capital assets are recorded at cost and amortized using the unit-of-production method based on
estimated proven developed reserves.

(¢) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value.

(d) Provision for Reclamation
Reclamation costs are estimated and recorded over the estimated life of the proven recoverable
reserves.

(e} Income Taxes
Income taxes are the responsibility of the individual partners and therefore no income taxes have been
recorded in these financial statements.

(f) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include short term investments with a maturity of three months or less when

purchased.
INVENTORIES
As at January 3t
2000 1999
Materials and supplies . ..... ... ... i e $ 13,089 $ 12,696
Finished goods inventory. . . .. . ... vt i e e 306 292

$ 13,395 $ 12,988
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(tabular amounts in $ thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

CAPITAL ASSETS
As at January 31
2000 1999
0T S $ 717,664 §$ 616,021
Accumulated depreciation . . . .. .. ... . (201,689) (185,411)

$ 515975 §$ 430,610

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

As at January 31

2000 1999
Trade accounts payable . . .. ... ... ... $ 10,624 § 4,111
Accrued liabilities . . . ... oo e e 32,267 36,963
Provision for coker turnaround . .. ... .. ... e e - 4,186

$ 42,891 § 45,260

DUE FROM/TO PARTNERS OR AFFILIATES

The amounts due from/to partners or affiliates are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms
of repayment.

LONG-TERM DEBT

The Partnership has available a $25.0 million unsecured revolving credit and term loan facility. The facility
is fully revolving for 364-day periods with provision for extensions at the option of the lender following
notice from the Partnership. If not extended, the facility converts to a non-revolving reducing facility to be
repayable in full by the end of five years. Loans are available in Canadian dollars or U.S. equivalent and
currently bear interest either at the lender's rates for Canadian prime commercial or U.S. base rate loans, at
Bankers' Acceptance rates or at LIBOR plus applicable margins. As at January 31, 2000, no amount is
outstanding under this facility.

OTHER LIABILITIES

The amount, due to Syncrude Canada Ltd., represents the non-cash components of utility billings to the
Syncrude Joint Venture. Syncrude Canada Ltd. pays the cash component and records the non-cash portion
as a liability, which, starting April 1, 1999 is being repaid in equal installments until March 31, 2003.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The fair values of financial instruments included in the balance sheet approximate their carrying
amount due to the short-term maturity of those instruments.

(b) Credit Risk

A substantial portion of the Partnership's accounts receivable are with customers in the oil and gas
industry and are subject to normal industry credit risks.
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AEC OIL SANDS, L.P.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(tabular amounts in $ thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

10. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

11.

(a)

)

(©

Employee Benefits

The Syncrude Canada Joint Venture has a defined benefit pension plan. At January 1, 2000 the market
value of the Partnership's share of the pension fund assets was $102.7 million (1999 — $88.6 million)
and the Partnership's share of accrued pension liability, as estimated by the joint venture's actuaries,
was $112.1 million (1999 — $80.0 million).

On January 1, 2000, the Partnership retroactively adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants recommendations on accounting for employee future benefits. Amounts were directly
charged to Partners' Equity and Accrued Liabilities.

Related Party Transactions

The following table outlines the transactions with affiliates during the year:

2000 1999
ROYAItIES . . oottt e e e $5,432  $3,624
Tariff . .. e $2,743 83,620
Marketing fees . . ... .. e e $ 303 8§ 536
Management fees . . .. ..o e e e $§ 25 § 38

The Partnership pays and receives management fees to/from affiliates.

Commitments

The Partnership has entered into a capital commitment for the purposes of expansion at Syncrude. The
Partnership's share of the capital commitment is approximately $33.5 million in the next year.

UNCERTAINTY DUE TO THE YEAR 2000

The Year 2000 issue arises because many computerized systems use two digits rather than four to identify a
year. Data-sensitive systems may recognize the year 2000 as 1900 or some other date, resulting in errors
when information using year 2000 dates is processed. In addition, similar problems may arise in some
systems which use certain dates in 1999 to represent something other than a date. Although the change in
date has occurred, it is not possible to conclude that all aspects of the Year 2000 issue that may affect the
Partnership, including those related to efforts of customers, suppliers, or other third parties, have been
fully resolved.
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COMPILATION REPORT
To the Directors of Canadian Oil Sands Limited

We have reviewed as to the compilation only, the accompanying unaudited pro forma consolidated balance
sheet of Canadian Oil Sands Trust (the Trust) as at September 30, 2002 and the unaudited pro forma
consolidated statements of income for the year ended December 31, 2001 and the nine months ended
September 30, 2002, which have been prepared for the inclusion in the prospectus dated February 13, 2003
relating to the sale and issue by the Trust of 10,715,000 subscription receipts. In our opinion, the unaudited
pro forma consolidated balance sheet and unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of income have been
properly compiled to give effect to the proposed transaction and assumptions described in the notes thereto.
These statements are the responsibility of the Trust's management.

/m’ .,.z;&.uéwb Lep
Calgary, Alberta

February 13, 2003 Chartered Accountants
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CANADIAN OIL SANDS TRUST

CONSOLIDATED PRO FORMA BALANCE SHEET

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

(unaudited)
(in thousands)

Canadian Qil Pro forma
Sands Trust  Adjustments Pro forma
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and short-term investments . . ...........couvuvvrveenrn.n $ 260,451 § - $ 260,451
Accountsreceivable . . ... ... ... . e 91,463 - 91,463
INVEntOrIES . . v ottt e e e e 27,736 - 27,736
Prepaid expenses .. .. ...t 6,357 - 6,357
386,007 - 386,007
Capital @ssets, DEt . . ... ...t e 1,340,761 1,680,151 3,020,912
Other Assets
Reclamation trust .. .......... .ttt ittt 12,141 - 12,141
Deferred financing charges, net .. ........................ 10,993 8,900 19,893
23,134 8,900 32,034
$1,749,902  $1,689,051 $3,438,953
LIABILITIES AND UNITHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ... ................. $ 140981 §$ - $ 140,981
Unit distribution payable . ............... ... ... ... ...... 28,734 10,033 38,767
Current portion of other liabilities . ....................... 4,131 - 4,131
173,846 10,033 183,879
Other labilities . . . . ... .. i i i e i 16,702 - 16,702
Longtermdebt ....... ... .. i i 624,726 410,000 1,034,726
Future reclamation and site restoration costs . ................. 31,484 20,186 51,670
Future INCOME taX . . . ... i vttt et it it et et et s ee e enenns - 580,365 580,365
Deferred currency hedging gains . .............. ... .. ... 15,239 - 15,239
Preferred shares . . ... ..o it e 4,400 - 4,400
866,397 1,020,584 1,886,981
Unitholders' equity . ......... ..o 883,505 668,467 1,551,972
$1,749,902  $1,689,051 $3,438,953
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CANADIAN OIL SANDS TRUST
PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(unaudited)
(in thousands, except per Unit amounts)

Canadian Oil AEC Oil Working Interest  Pro forma
Sands Trust  Sands, L.P. Adjustments Adjustments Pro forma

Revenues:
Syncrude Sweet Blend . . ... .......... $663,053  $464,817 $(126,768) $ - $1,001,102
Interest and other income . ........... 9,938 5,599 (5,599) - 9,938
672,991 470,416 (132,367) - 1,011,040

Expenses:
Operating. . ............ ... 344,910 216,565 (59,063) - 502,412
Crown royalties . .................. 52,540 35,585 (10,657) - 77,468
Administration . .......... .. .. ..., 12,624 - - - 12,624
Interest . ...t 28,593 - - 24,600 53,193
Depletion, depreciation and

Amortization .. .... ..o, 62,618 21,217 - 32,295 116,130
Large Corporations Tax. . ............ 1,852 - - 3,620 5,472
Future income taxes ................ - - - (21,956) (21,956)
Dividends on preferred shares of

subsidiaries . .. .... ... ... 420 - - - 420

503,557 273,367 (69,720) 38,559 745,763

Net income for the period . ........... $169,434  $197,049 $ (62,647)  $(38,559) $ 265,277
Weighted average Trust Units . ........ 56,765 76,832
Trust Units, end of period . . . . ... .. ... 56,779 76,846
Net income per Trust Unit
Basicand diluted .................. $ 298 $ 3.45
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PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

CANADIAN OIL SANDS TRUST

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Revenues:

Syncrude Sweet Blend .........
Interest and other income . ......

Expenses:

Operating . .................
Non-production ..............

Crown royalties ..............
Administration . . .............
Insurance . . .................
Interest . ...................
Depletion and depreciation .. . . . ..
Foreign exchange gain .........

Large Corporations Tax and

other ....................
Future income taxes . . .........

Dividends on preferred shares of

subsidiaries . . ..............

Net income for the period . . . . . ..

Weighted average Trust Units . . ..
Trust Units, end of period. . ... ..

Net income per Trust Unit

Basicand diluted .............

(unaudited)

(in thousands, except per Unit amounts)

B-5

Canadian Oil AEC 0il Working Interest Pro forma
Sands Trust Sands, L.P. Adjustments Adjustments  Pro forma
..... $511,514  $340,913  $(92,976) $ - $759,451
..... 5,312 - - - 5,312
516,826 340,913 (92,976) - 764,763
..... 240,934 161,617 (44,077) - 358,474
..... 8,636 140 (38) - 8,738
..... 5,235 7,676 (5,197) - 7,714
..... 4,647 - - - 4,647
..... 4,020 - - - 4,020
..... 36,418 149 (149) 18450 54,868
..... 40,005 18,526 - 18,322 76,853
..... (635) - - - (635)
..... 1,952 - - 2,649 4,601
..... - - - (15,092)  (15,092)
..... 247 - - - 247
341,459 188,108 (49,461) 24,329 504,435
..... $175367  $152,805  $(43,515)  $(24,329) $260,328
..... 57,060 77,127
..... 57,467 77,534
..... $ 307 $ 338




CANADIAN OIL SANDS TRUST
NOTES TO PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- (upnaudited)

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements (pro forma statements) of Canadian Oil Sands
Trust (the Trust or Canadian Oil Sands) have been prepared by management to give effect to the purchase
of an indirect 10% working interest in the Syncrude Joint Venture (the Syncrude interest) from EnCana
Corporation. The December 31, 2001 pro forma statement has been prepared from the Trust's audited
consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2001 and for the year then ended and from the audited
financial statements of AEC Oil Sands, L.P. as at January 31, 2002 and for the year then ended. The
September 30, 2002 pro forma statements have been prepared from the Trust's unaudited financial
statements as at September 30, 2002 and for the nine months then ended and from AEC Oil Sands, L.P's
unaudited financial statements for the nine months ended October 31, 2002.

In the opinion of management of the Trust, these pro forma statements include all material adjustments
necessary for fair presentation in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Canada. The
September 30, 2002 pro forma consolidated balance sheet gives effect to the transaction as if the transaction
occurred on September 30, 2002. The pro forma consolidated statements of income give effect to the
transaction as if it occurred on January 1, 2001.

The pro forma consolidated financial statements may not be indicative of the results of operations of the
Trust which will be obtained upoen completion of the arrangements.

The pro forma statements should be read in conjunction with the published consolidated financial
statements of Canadian Oil Sands Trust which are incorporated by reference in the prospectus.
ACQUISITION OF THE SYNCRUDE INTEREST

On February 3, 2003 Canadian Oil Sands entered into an acquisition agreement with EnCana Corporation

to acquire an indirect 10% working interest in the Syncrude Joint Venture for approximately $1.07 billion, -

which is subject to certain working capital adjustments. Included in the acquisition agreement is an option
to purchase EnCana's remaining 3.75% interest in the Syncrude Joint Venture and a 6% gross overriding
royalty before December 31, 2003. The royalty would entitle the Trust to receive 6% of gross revenue
attributable to certain specified Syncrude leases payable by the holder of the 3.75% interest and by another
independent oil and gas company which holds a 1.25% interest in the Syncrude Joint Venture.

The acquisition of the 10% working interest has been accounted for as a purchase of assets in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. Acquisition costs are estimated at approximately
$9.6 million. Canadian Oil Sands allocated the purchase price, including acquisition costs, as follows:

Net assets acquired and liabilities assumed (in thousands of dollars)

Property, plant and equipment . ........... ... ..ttt $1,680,151

Future reclamation and site restoration costs . .................... (20,186)

Futiire inCome taxes . . . ... oi it ittt e e i e et (580,365)
$1,079,600

Consideration

Cash . o e e e e $1,070,000

Costs associated with acquisition .. ......... .. ... ... ... .. ...... 9,600
1,079,600

The purchase price allocation is a preliminary estimate and is subject to change based on actual information
at the time of closing the acquisition.
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CANADIAN OIL SANDS TRUST
NOTES TO PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(unaudited)

PRO FORMA ASSUMPTIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS

(a)

(b)

(©)

(@
(e)

®

(8)
(h)

(i)

)

(k)

4y

The pro forma consolidated balance sheet has been prepared as if the acquisition took place
September 30, 2002. The pro forma consolidated statements of income have been prepared as if the
acquisition took place January 1, 2001.

It is assumed that Canadian Oil Sands will finance the estimated $1.07 billion purchase price through
an equity issue of approximately $700 million and bank debt of approximately $370 million. Costs of
issuing Trust Units are estimated at $21.5 million, debt financing costs are estimated at $8.9 million,
and costs of acquisition are estimated at $9.6 million. The total of these estimated costs are
$40.0 million and will be financed with bank debt, resulting in total new bank debt of approximately
$410 million. It has been assumed that the debt is not repayable within 365 days.

Crown royalties expense has been adjusted to reflect the crown royalties rates incurred by Canadian
Oil Sands in 2001 and 2002.

Interest expense on the credit facilities utilized has been calculated at 6%.

Depletion and depreciation expense has been adjusted to reflect the increase in property, plant
and equipment,

The provision for site restoration included in pro forma depreciation and depletion expense has been
calculated at a rate of $0.17 per barrel of production.

Large Corporations Tax has been calculated at 0.225% of the increase in the taxable capital base.

The future income taxes recovery has been adjusted to reflect the impact of the increased depreciation
and depletion expense at the maximum statutory tax rate of 42.12%.

The issue of the Trust Units was assumed to have taken place January 1, 2001 for purposes of
calculating the net income per Trust Unit amounts, but September 30, 2002 for purposes of calculating
the distribution payable. The Trust Units would have been eligible to participate in the third quarter
distribution of $0.50 per Trust Unit as they were outstanding as of the November 4, 2002 record date.

The December 31, 2001 audited consolidated statement of income of Canadian Oil Sands Trust does
not reflect the retroactive change in accounting policy that was effective January 1, 2002 with regards to
foreign currency exchange gains and losses. The impact on the statement of income would have been a
decrease to net income of $23.1 million, comprised of a decrease to interest and other income of
$1.7 million, a decrease to depletion, depreciation and amortization expense of $2.2 million and an
increase to foreign exchange loss of $23.6 million. There would have been no impact on the statement
of income of AEC Oil Sands, L.P.

The AEC Oil Sands, L.P. statements of income represent a 13.75% working interest in the Syncrude
Joint Venture less a 6% gross overriding royalty on revenues relating to certain specified Syncrude
leases relating to an indirect 3.75% interest in Syncrude. Canadian Oil Sands is acquiring a 10%
working interest, and therefore, an adjustment has been made to reflect the AEC Oil Sands, L.P.
results as a 10% working interest.

Working capital acquired was assumed to be nil.

(m) Certain of AEC Oil Sands, L.P. statement of income figures have been reclassified to conform to the

presentation adopted by Canadian Oil Sands Trust.
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CERTIFICATE OF THE TRUST

Dated: February 13, 2003

This short form prospectus, together with the documents incorporated herein by reference, constitutes full,
true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities offered by this short form prospectus as
required by the securities legislation of each of the provinces of Canada. For the purpose of the Province of
Quebec, this simplified prospectus, as supplemented by the permanent information record, contains no
misrepresentation that is likely to affect the value or the market price of the securities to be distributed.

CANADIAN OIL SANDS TRUST

By: Canadian Oil Sands Limited

(Signed) MARCEL R. CouTu
Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Canadian Oil Sands Limited

(Signed) C.E. (CHUCK) SHULTZ (Signed) WESLEY R. Twiss’
Director Director
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CERTIFICATE OF THE UNDERWRITERS

Dated: February 13, 2003

To the best of our knowledge, information and belief, this short form prospectus, together with the
documents incorporated herein by reference, constitutes full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts
relating to the securities offered by this short form prospectus as required by the securities legislation of each of
the provinces of Canada. For the purpose of the Province of Quebec, to our knowledge, this simplified
prospectus, as supplemented by the permanent information record, contains no misrepresentation that is likely
to affect the value or the market price of the securities to be distributed.

CIBC WORLD MARKETS INC. MERRILL LYNCH CANADA INC.

By: (Signed) BRENDA A. MASON By: (Signed) DREW M. RoOss

RBC DOMINION SECURITIES INC.

By: (Signed) GORDON M. RITCHIE

BMO NESBITT BURNS INC. ScoTiA CAPITAL INC.
By: (Signed) R. BRADLEY HURTUBISE By: (Signed) MARK HERMAN
NATIONAL BANK FINANCIAL INC. TD SECURITIES INC.
By: (Signed) L. TREVOR ANDERSON By: (Signed) ROBERT J. MASON
CANACCORD CAPITAL FIRSTENERGY CAPITAL CORP. PETERS & CO. LIMITED
CORPORATION
By: (Signed) By: (Signed) By: (Signed)
J. RODERICK MATHESON JOHN S. CHAMBERS CHRISTOPHER S. POTTER

RAYMOND JAMES LTD.

By: (Signed) NAVEEN DARGAN
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@ Canadian Oil Sands NEWS RELEASE

For immediate release

Canadian Oil Sands completes acquisition of 10 per cent Syncrude
interest

Calgary, February 28, 2003 (TSX -- COS.UN) — Canadian Oil Sands Trust (“Canadian
Oil Sands” or the “Trust”) is pleased to announce that Canadian Oil Sands Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Trust, has closed its previously announced acquisition of
a 10 per cent interest in the Syncrude Joint Venture from EnCana Corporation for
approximately Cdn $1.07 billion.

“Our acquisition of an additional 10 per cent interest in Syncrude created value for our
unitholders by being accretive to cash flow, earnings and net asset value on a per trust
unit basis,” said Marcel Coutu, Canadian Oil Sands’ President and Chief Executive
Officer. “We are now the largest owner in the Syncrude Joint Venture, holding nearly
one-third of this growing, world class energy asset.”

Canadian Oil Sands financed the acquisition with 68 per cent equity and 32 per cent debt,
which is slightly more conservative than the Trust’s capital structure prior to the
transaction. This capital structure is expected to support the Trust’s ability to fund the
Stage 3 expansion while maintaining stable distributions. Approximately Cdn $431
million of the equity financing was raised through the issuance of approximately 12.3
million trust units by way of a public offering of subscription receipts, which closed on
February 27. The remainder of the equity was financed through a private placement of
trust units with a large institutional investor for approximately Cdn $325 million. The
balance of the purchase price was financed with senior bank debt of approximately Cdn
$350 million.

Canadian QOil Sands also obtained an option to purchase, under similar terms and
conditions, EnCana’s remaining 3.75 per cent interest in Syncrude until December 31,
2003. Concurrent with the exercise of this purchase option, the Trust would purchase
from EnCana a six per cent gross overriding royalty on the 3.75 per cent working interest
in certain of the leases as well as a six per cent gross overriding royalty on another 1.25
per cent indirect Syncrude interest in certain leases held by a third party independent oil
and gas company.

- more -
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Canadian Oil Sands Trust is an open-ended investment trust that generates income from
its 31.74 per cent working interest in the Syncrude Joint Venture. The Trust is managed
by Canadian Oil Sands Limited and currently has approximately 80 million units
outstanding, which trade on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol COS.UN.

Advisory: in the interest of providing Canadian Oil Sands Trust (“Canadian Ol Sands” or the “Trust”)
unitholders and potential investors with information regarding the Trust, including management’s
assessment of the Trust’s future plans and operations, certain statements throughout this release contain
“forward-looking statements”. Forward-looking statements in this release include, but are not limited to,
statements with respect to: the accretive nature of the transaction, the impact of the acquisition on
distribution levels and funding for the Stage 3 expansion. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on
Jorward-looking statements, as there can be no assurance that the plans, intentions or expectations upon
which they are based will occur. By their nature, forward-looking statements involve numerous
assumptions, known and unknown risks and uncertainties, both general and specific, that contribute to the
possibility that the predictions, forecasts, projections and other forward-looking statements will not occur.
Although the Trust believes that the expectations represented by such forward-looking statements are
reasonable, there can be no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct. Some of the risks
and other factors which could cause results to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-
looking statements contained in this release include, but are not limited to: general economic, business and
market conditions; commodity prices; competition; the ability to obtain financing, imprecision in
estimating future production capacity; and the timing, costs and level of production; changes in regulation,
including environmental; and such other risks and uncertainties described from time to time in the reports
and filings made with securities regulatory authorities by the Trust. You are cautioned that the foregoing
list of important factors is not exhaustive. Furthermore, the forward-looking statements contained in this
release are made as of the date of this release, and the Trust does not undertake any obligation to update
publicly or to revise any of the included forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise. The forward-looking statements contained in this release are
expressly qualified by this cautionary statement.

-30-—
Canadian Oil Sands Limited For further information:
Marcel Coutu
President & Chief Executive Officer Siren Fisekci

Manager, Investor Relations:
(403) 218-6228
investor_relations(@cos-trust.com

Units Listed — Symbol: COS.UN
Toronto Stock Exchange

Web site: www.cos-frust.com
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FORM 27
CANADIAN OIL SANDS TRUST
MATERIAL CHANGE REPORT

Section 85(1) of the Securities Act (British Columbia)
Section 146(1) of the Securities Act (Alberta)
Section 84(1) of The Securities Act 1988 (Saskatchewan)
Section 75(2) of the Securities Act (Ontario)
Section 73 of the Securities Act (Québec)
Section 81(2) of the Securities Act (Nova Scotia)
Section 76(2) of The Securities Act (Newfoundland and Labrador)

And similar provisions of other provincial and territorial securities legislation

Reporting Issuer:

Canadian Oil Sands Trust (the “Trust” or “Canadian Oil Sands™)
2500 First Canadian Centre

350-7" Avenue S.W.

Calgary, Alberta

T2P 3N9

Date of Material Change:
February 28, 2003
Press Release:

The Trust issued a press release on February 28, 2003 (through Canada
NewsWire) at Calgary, Alberta, which release disclosed the nature and substance
of the material change. A copy of such press release is attached hereto as
Schedule "A".

Summary of Material Change:

On February 28, 2003, Canadian Oil Sands Limited (“COSL”), as the manager of
the Trust, completed the acquisition of an additional 10% working interest in
Syncrude from EnCana Corporation (“EnCana”).

Full Description of Material Change:

On February 28, 2003, COSL, as manager of the Trust, announced that it had
completed the previously announced acquisition of an additional 10% interest in
the Syncrude Joint Venture from EnCana for approximately C$1.07 billion. The
Trust financed the acquisition through the issuance of approximately 12.3 million
trust units by way of a public offering of subscription receipts, which closed on



Item 6

Item 7

Item 8

February 27, 2003, and the issuance of approximately 9.3 million trust units
through a private placement with a large institutional investor. The remainder of
the purchase price was financed by COSL drawing C$350 million under a senior
bank credit facility. The financing, which was 68% equity and 32% debt, is
slightly more conservative than the Trust’s capital structure prior to the
transaction.

The Trust continues to have an option to purchase prior to December 31, 2003,
under similar terms and conditions, EnCana’s remaining 3.75% interest in the
Syncrude joint venture. Concurrent with the exercise of such option, the Trust
would purchase from EnCana a 6% gross overriding royalty on this 3.75%
working interest as well as a 6% gross overriding royalty on another 1.25%
working interest in respect of certain leases in the Syncrude joint venture that are
held by a third party independent oil and gas company (collectively, the
“Remaining Interest”). In addition, EnCana has agreed that, for a period of 60
days immediately following February 28, 2003, EnCana will not do anything in
furtherance of the disposition of the Remaining Interest to a third party.
Following such 60-day period, Canadian Oil Sands will have, in addition to the
option, a right of first refusal which expires on December 31, 2003 in respect of
the Remaining Interest.

Reliance on Provisions Permitting the Filing of the Material Change Report
on a Confidential Basis:

Not applicable.
Omitted Information:
Not applicable.
Senior Officer:

Marcel R. Coutu, President and Chief Executive Officer of Canadian Oil Sands
Limited, the manager of the Trust, is a senior officer knowledgeable about the
material change and may be reached at (403) 218-6222.



(’ " Item 9 Statement of Senior Officer:

The foregoing accurately discloses the material changes referred to herein.

DATED at Calgary, Alberta, this 10th day of March, 2003.

CANADIAN OIL SANDS TRUST,
by its manager,
CANADIAN OIL SANDS LIMITED

Per: (signed) "Trudy M. Curran”
Trudy M. Curran
General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

IT IS AN OFFENSE FOR A PERSON TO MAKE A STATEMENT IN A DOCUMENT
REQUIRED TO BE FILED OR FURNISHED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR THE
SECURITIES REGULATION THAT, AT THE TIME AND IN THE LIGHT OF THE
CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH IT IS MADE, IS A MISREPRESENTATION.
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SCHEDULE "A"

@ Canadian Oil Sands NEWS RELEASE

For immediate release

Canadian Oil Sands completes acquisition of 10 per cent Syncrude
interest

Calgary, February 28, 2003 (TSX -- COS.UN) — Canadian Qil Sands Trust (“Canadian
Oil Sands” or the “Trust”) is pleased to announce that Canadian Oil Sands Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Trust, has closed its previously announced acquisition of
a 10 per cent interest in the Syncrude Joint Venture from EnCana Corporation for
approximately Cdn $1.07 billion.

“Our acquisition of an additional 10 per cent interest in Syncrude created value for our
unitholders by being accretive to cash flow, earnings and net asset value on a per trust
unit basis,” said Marcel Coutu, Canadian Oil Sands’ President and Chief Executive
Officer. “We are now the largest owner in the Syncrude Joint Venture, holding nearly
one-third of this growing, world class energy asset.”

Canadian Oil Sands financed the acquisition with 68 per cent equity and 32 per cent debt,
which is slightly more conservative than the Trust’s capital structure prior to the
transaction. This capital structure is expected to support the Trust’s ability to fund the
Stage 3 expansion while maintaining stable distributions. Approximately Cdn $431
million of the equity financing was raised through the issuance of approximately 12.3
million trust units by way of a public offering of subscription receipts, which closed on
February 27. The remainder of the equity was financed through a private placement of
trust units with a large institutional investor for approximately Cdn $325 million. The
balance of the purchase price was financed with senior bank debt of approximately Cdn
$350 million.

Canadian Oil Sands also obtained an option to purchase, under similar terms and
conditions, EnCana’s remaining 3.75 per cent interest in Syncrude until December 31,
2003. Concurrent with the exercise of this purchase option, the Trust would purchase
from EnCana a six per cent gross overriding royalty on the 3.75 per cent working interest
in certain of the leases as well as a six per cent gross overriding royalty on another 1.25
per cent indirect Syncrude interest in certain leases held by a third party independent oil
and gas company.

- more -
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Canadian Oil Sands Trust is an open-ended investment trust that generates income from
its 31.74 per cent working interest in the Syncrude Joint Venture. The Trust is managed
by Canadian Oil Sands Limited and currently has approximately 80 million units
outstanding, which trade on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol COS.UN.

Advisory: in the interest of providing Canadian Oil Sands Trust (“Canadian Oil Sands” or the “Trust”)
unitholders and potential investors with information regarding the Trust, including management’s
assessment of the Trust’s future plans and operations, certain statements throughout this release contain
“forward-looking statements”. Forward-looking statements in this release include, but are not limited to,
statements with respect to: the accretive nature of the transaction, the impact of the acquisition on
distribution levels and funding for the Stage 3 expansion. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on
Jorward-looking statements, as there can be no assurance that the plans, intentions or expectations upon
which they are based will occur. By their nature, forward-looking statements involve numerous
assumptions, known and unknown risks and uncertainties, both general and specific, that contribute to the
possibility that the predictions, forecasts, projections and other forward-looking statements will not occur.
Although the Trust believes that the expectations represented by such forward-looking statements are
reasonable, there can be no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct. Some of the risks
and other factors which could cause results to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-
looking statements contained in this release include, but are not limited to: general economic, business and
market conditions; commodity prices; competition; the ability to obtain financing, imprecision in
estimating future production capacity; and the timing, costs and level of production; changes in regulation,
including environmental; and such other risks and uncertainties described from time to time in the reports
and filings made with securities regulatory authorities by the Trust. You are cautioned that the foregoing
list of important factors is not exhaustive. Furthermore, the forward-looking statements contained in this
release are made as of the date of this release, and the Trust does not undertake any obligation to update
publicly or to revise any of the included forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise. The forward-looking statements contained in this release are
expressly qualified by this cautionary statement.
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Canadian Oil Sands Limited For further information:
Marcel Coutu

President & Chief Executive Officer Siren Fisekci

Manager, Investor Relations:
(403) 218-6228
investor_relations@cos-trust.com

Units Listed ~ Symbol: COS.UN
Toronto Stock Exchange

Web site: www,cos-trust.com
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| @ Canadian Oil Sands

Annual and Special Meeting of Unitholders
to be held on April 22, 2003

NOTICE OF MEETING
and
MANAGEMENT PROXY CIRCULAR

March 10, 2003



CANADIAN OIL SANDS TRUST
NOTICE OF ANNUAL AND SPECIAL MEETING OF UNITHOLDERS

to be held on Tuesday, April 22, 2003

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual and Special Meeting (the "Meeting") of the holders of trust units of
Canadian Oil Sands Trust (the "Trust") will be held in the Glenview Room, TELUS Convention Centre, 120 - 9th
Avenue S.E., Calgary, Alberta on Tuesday, April 22, 2003, at 2:30 p.m. (Calgary time) for the following purposes:

I.

to receive the financial statements of the Trust for the year ended December 31, 2002, together with the
auditor's report thereon;

to consider the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the auditor of Canadian Oil Sands Limited
("COSL") and to direct the Trustee to vote the common shares of COSL so as to appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the auditor of COSL for the ensuing year at a remuneration to be fixed by
COSL and approved by the directors thereof;

to consider the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the auditor of the Trust for the ensuing year
at a remuneration to be fixed by COSL and approved by the directors thereof;

to consider the Trustee's nominees for election as directors of COSL for the ensuing year, and to direct the
Trustee to vote the common shares of COSL so as to elect all such nominees as directors of COSL and to
fill any vacancies among the directors of COSL that may arise between the Meeting and the first meeting
of Unitholders thereafter that considers the election of directors, by appointing to any such vacancy a
person selected by COSL;

to consider, and if deemed appropriate, to pass with or without variation, a special resolution approving and
authorizing amendments to the Trust Indenture to reduce the quorum required to pass special resolutions
from “20%” to “10%” (the “Quorum Amendment”), as more fully described and set forth in the
accompanying Management Proxy Circular;

to consider, and if deemed appropriate, to pass with or without variation, a special resolution approving and
authorizing amendments to the Trust Indenture to allow Unitholders to attend, and to vote at, meetings of
Unitholders by telephonic, electronic or other communication facility (the “Electronic Voting
Amendment”), as more fully described and set forth in the accompanying Management Proxy Circular;

to consider and, if deemed appropriate, to pass, with or without variation, a special resolution approving
and authorizing amendments to the Trust Indenture to allow the issuance by the Trust of convertible
securities (the “Convertible Securities Amendment™), as more fully described and set forth in the
accompanying Management Proxy Circular; and

to transact such other business as may properly be brought before the Meeting or any adjournment or
adjournments thereof.

DATED at Calgary, Alberta on March 10, 2003.

By Order of the Directors of Canadian Oil Sands
Limited on behalf of Canadian Oil Sands Trust

(Signed)
TRUDY M. CURRAN
General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
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Unitholders are referred to the accompanying Management Proxy Circular dated March 10, 2003 for more
detailed information regarding the matters to be considered at the Meeting.

Only persons registered as holders of trust units on the records of the Trust as of the close of business on
March 12, 2003 are entitled to receive notice of, and to vote or act at, the Meeting.

Unitholders who are unable to attend the Meeting in person are requested to date and sign the enclosed
form of proxy and to mail it to, or deposit it with, the Trustee of the Trust, Computershare Trust Company of
Canada, 100 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2Y1 (Attention: Proxy Department). In order to be valid
and acted upon at the Meeting, forms of proxy must be received by Computershare Trust Company of
Canada not less than twenty four (24) hours before the time set for the holding of the Meeting or any
adjournment thereof.
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CANADIAN OIL SANDS TRUST
2500 First Canadian Centre
350 -7th Avenue S.W,
Calgary, Alberta
T2P 3N9

MANAGEMENT PROXY CIRCULAR

Relating to the Annual and Special Meeting of Unitholders
to be held on Tuesday, April 22, 2003

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

Solicitation of Proxies by Management

This Management Proxy Circular is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies on behalf
of Computershare Trust Company of Canada (the 'Trustee'") by the management ("Management") of
Canadian Oil Sands Limited (""COSL'") pursuant to the terms of the Management Agreement dated July 5,
2001 between Canadian Oil Sands Trust (the "Trust") and COSL, as successor by way of amalgamation to
Canadian Oil Sands Investments Inc. and Athabasca Oil Sands Investments Inc. (the "Former Managers')
for use at the Annual and Special Meeting (the '"Meeting'") of the holders (the ""Unitholders") of trust units
("Units") of the Trust to be held on Tuesday, April 22, 2003 at the time and place and for the purposes set
forth in the accompanying Notice of Annual and Special Meeting of Unitholders (the "Notice of Meeting''),
and at any adjournment thereof. In order to be voted at the Meeting or any adjournment thereof, proxies must be
received by Computershare Trust Company of Canada, 100 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2Y1
(Attention: Proxy Department), not less than twenty-four (24) hours before the Meeting or adjournment.

Costs and Manner of Solicitation

Proxies in the enclosed form are solicited by Management. Solicitation of proxies will be primarily by
mail, but directors, officers and employees of COSL may, without special compensation, solicit proxies in person or
by telephone, facsimile or other form of electronic communication. The Trust has also retained Valiant Trust
Company to act as proxy solicitation and information agent to assist in the solicitation of proxies for the Meeting,
for a fee of $25,000 plus reimbursement of certain out-of-pocket expenses. The cost of this solicitation of proxies
and the preparation and mailing of this Management Proxy Circular will be borne by the Trust.

APPOINTMENT AND REVOCATION OF PROXY
Appointment of Proxy

Unitholders who wish to have their Units voted at the Meeting by proxy must submit a properly completed
instrument of proxy to the Trustee, Computershare Trust Company of Canada, 100 University Avenue, Toronto,
Ontario, M5J 2Y1 (Attention: Proxy Department). In order to be valid and acted upon at the Meeting, a properly
completed instrument of proxy must be received by the Trustee not less than twenty-four (24) hours before the time
set for the holding of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Only Unitholders of record as of the close of business on March 12, 2003 (the "Record Date") are entitled
to receive notice of, and to vote or act at, the Meeting or any adjournment thereof. No person who becomes a
Unitholder afier the Record Date will be entitled to vote at the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

A document appointing a proxy must be in writing and be executed by the Unitholder or by his or her
attorney duly authorized in writing or, if the Unitholder is a corporation, under its corporate seal by a duly
authorized officer or attorney thereof. An instrument of proxy signed by a person acting as attorney or in some other
representative capacity should expressly reflect such capacity (following his or her signature) and should be
accompanied by the appropriate instrument evidencing his or her qualification and authority to so act.



The persons designated in the enclosed form of proxy furnished by Management are directors and officers
of COSL. A Unitholder entitled to vote at the Meeting may appoint a person other than those named in the enclosed
form of proxy to attend and act for and on behalf of such Unitholder at the Meeting or any adjournment thereof. To
exercise this right, the Unitholder must insert the name of the desired representative (who need not be a Unitholder)
in the blank space provided in the enclosed form of proxy and submit such form in the manner described above, or
submit another appropriate instrument of proxy.

Revocation of Proxy

A Unitholder who has submitted a form of proxy as directed hereunder may revoke it at any time prior to
the exercise thereof by depositing an instrument in writing executed by the Unitholder or his or her attorney or
authorized agent, either with Computershare Trust Company of Canada, 100 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario,
M5J2Y1 (Attention: Proxy Department) at any time up to and including the last business day preceding the date of
the Meeting or any adjournment thereof, or with the Chairman of the Meeting on the day of the Meeting or
adjournment prior to the commencement thereof, and upon either of such deposits, the proxy is revoked. A
Unitholder may also revoke a previously given proxy by personally attending the Meeting and voting his or her
Units in person, or in any other manner permitted by law.

Voting of Proxies and Exercise of Discretion by Proxyholders

On any ballot taken at the Meeting, the nominees named in the enclosed form of proxy will vote or
withhold from voting the Units in respect of which they have been appointed nominee in accordance with the
directions of the Unitholders appointing them. In the absence of such direction, the Units represented by valid
instruments of proxy executed in favour of the Management designees and deposited in the manner described above
will be voted "FOR" all matters identified in the Notice of Meeting.

The enclosed form of proxy confers on the nominees named therein discretionary authority with
respect to amendments or variations of those matters specified in the proxy and Notice of Meeting, and as to
any other matters that may properly come before the Meeting or any adjournment thereof. At the time of
mailing of this Management Proxy Circular, neither the Trustee nor Management knows of any such
amendments, variations or other matter.

Advice to Beneficial Holders of Units

The information set forth in this section is very important to persons who hold Units otherwise than
in their own names. Persons who hold their Units through their brokers, financial institutions, trustees, nominees
or other intermediaries or who otherwise do not hold their Units in their own names (referred to in this section as
"Beneficial Holders") should note that only proxies deposited by persons whose names appear on the records of the
Trust as the registered holders of Units will be recognized and acted upon at the Meeting.

Units that are listed in an account statement provided to a Unitholder by a broker are probably not
registered in the Unitholder's own name on the records of the Trust. Such Units are more likely to be registered in
the name of the Unitholder's broker or an agent of that broker. In Canada, most such Units are registered in the
name of CDS & Co. (the registration name for The Canadian Depository for Securities Limited, which acts as
nominee for many Canadian brokerage firms). Units held by brokers or other intermediaries on behalf of a
Beneficial Holder can only be voted (for or against resolutions) at the direction of such Beneficial Holder. Without
specific instructions, brokers and other intermediaries are prohibited from voting Units for their clients. Beneficial
Holders should therefore ensure that instructions regarding the voting of their Units are communicated to the
appropriate person by the appropriate time.

Applicable regulatory policy in Canada requires brokers and other intermediaries to seek voting
instructions from Beneficial Holders in advance of Unitholder meetings. Each broker or other intermediary has its
own mailing procedures and provides its own return instructions to clients. Beneficial Holders should carefully
follow these procedures and instructions to ensure that their Units are voted at the Meeting. In some cases, the form
of proxy or voting instruction form provided to a Beneficial Holder by or on behalf of his or her broker or other
intermediary is very similar, even identical, to the enclosed form of proxy being solicited by Management. The
purpose of the form of proxy or voting instruction form provided by or on behalf of a broker or other intermediary,
however, is limited to instructing the registered holder (the broker or other intermediary, or an agent thereof) how to



N

s

vote on behalf of the Beneficial Holder. Most brokers now delegate responsibility for obtaining voting instructions
from clients to ADP Investor Communications ("IICC"). IICC typically supplies voting instruction forms, mails
those forms to Beneficial Holders and asks Beneficial Holders to return the forms to [ICC or follow specified
telephone or internet-based voting procedures. IICC then tabulates the results of all instructions received and
provides appropriate instructions regarding the voting of Units to be represented at the Meeting. A Beneficial
Holder who receives a voting instruction form from IICC cannot use that form to vote his or her Units
directly at the Meeting, but must instead return the voting instruction form to IICC or complete the
telephone or internet-based voting procedures well in advance of the Meeting to have such Units voted at the
Meeting on his or her behalf.

Although Beneficial Holders may not be recognized directly at the Meeting for the purposes of voting
Units registered in the name of their broker or other intermediary, a Beneficial Holder may attend at the Meeting as
proxyholder for the registered holder and vote their Units in that capacity. Beneficial Holders who wish to attend
the Meeting and indirectly vote their own Units as proxyholder for the registered holder should enter their own
names in the blank space on the form of proxy or voting instruction form provided to them and return the same to
their broker or other intermediary (or the agent of such broker or other intermediary) in accordance with the
instructions provided by such broker, intermediary or agent well in advance of the Meeting.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION ON THE TRUST AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Under the Amended and Restated Trust Indenture dated as of July 5, 2001 between the Trustee and the
Former Managers (the "Original Indenture"), as amended by a First Supplemental Indenture dated as of August 7,
2001 (the Original Indenture, as amended, being hereinafter referred to as the "Trust Indenture"), and in accordance
with the Management Agreement between the Trust and the Former Managers dated as of July 5, 2001 (the
"Management Agreement"), the Former Managers were appointed "Manager" of the Trust, with broad discretion to
administer and manage the day-to-day operations of the Trust, including the solicitation of proxies on behalf of the
Trustee. On January 1, 2003, the wholly-owned direct subsidiary of the Trust, also known as Canadian Oil Sands
Limited, was amalgamated with the Former Managers, Athabasca Oil Sands Investments Inc. ("AOSII") and
Canadian Oil Sands Investments Inc. ("COSII") to form COSL. As a result of such amalgamation, all of the assets
and obligations of the Former Managers have become the assets and obligations of COSL and COSL now manages
the Trust pursuant to the terms of the Trust Indenture and the Management Agreement. As the successor by way of
amalgamation to AQSII and COSII, COSL pays the 99% Royalties on its combined 21.74% interest in the Syncrude
joint venture to the Trust that were formerly paid by AOSII and COSII.

As part of the Trust's acquisition of an additional 10% interest in the Syncrude joint venture, the Trust owns
all of the ordinary units of Canadian Oil Sands Commercial Trust ("CT"), which directly holds a 9.5% working
interest in Syncrude and a number company that holds 0.5% working interest in Syncrude. Pursuant to a
management agreement, COSL acts as manager for CT. Subject to receipt of a favourable tax opinion or ruling
from Canada Customs and Revenue Agency, the Trust plans to wind up the number company and then transfer the
10% working interest from CT to COSL while reserving a royalty on this 10% interest payable to CT. CT in turn

would make distributions to the Trust. Set out below is the current and proposed structure of the Trust and its
subsidiaries.

Structure Prior to CCRA Tax Ruling

Public Unitholders
Trust Units
fnany Trust
CT Ordinary Units Trust Royalties
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Ultimate Structure — Subject to CCRA Tax Ruling or Opinion

Public Unitholders
Trust Units
. . Trust
CT Ordinary Units Trust Royalties
{100%) Common Shares
(100%)
CT Special Units (100% .
c : Canzadian Oif Sands Limited
ommercial
Trust

Trust Royalty
31.74% Working

Interest
| Syncrude Joint Venture l

VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF

Each Unit entitles the holder thereof to one vote on all matters to come before the Meeting. Only
Unitholders of record as of the close of business on March 12, 2003 (the "Record Date") are entitled to receive
notice of the Meeting. As at the date hereof, there are 79,538,258 Units issued and outstanding.

A Unitholder of record on the Record Date will be entitled to vote at the Meeting or any adjournment
thereof on the basis of one vote for each Unit shown opposite his or her name on the Trust's register of Unitholders
even if such Unitholder disposes of his or her Units after the Record Date. No person who becomes a Unitholder
after the Record Date will be entitled to vote or act at the Meeting or any adjowrnment thereof.

The Trustee, on behalf of the Trust, holds all of the issued and outstanding common shares of COSL (the
“COSL Shares™). There are no other shares of COSL issued and outstanding.

To the knowledge of the Trustee, COSL, and the directors and senior officers thereof: (a) no person
beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, or exercises control or direction over, more than 10% of the issued and
outstanding Units other than funds managed by Capital Research and Management Company which funds
collectively hold 11,587,518 Units (or approximately 15% of the issued and outstanding Units) as at the date hereof;
and (b) CDS & Co., a Canadian depository for securities, is the only other entity shown on the Trust's register of
Unitholders to be the registered holder of more than 10% of the outstanding Units. As at March 7, 2003, to the
knowledge of the Trustee and COSL, the directors and senior officers of COSL hold, in the aggregate, 63,195 Units,
representing less than 1% of the outstanding Units.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

COSL currently has a board of directors (the "Board of Directors") consisting of eight (8) members. The
Trustee, as the direct holder of all of the COSL Shares, is the only party entitled to directly cast votes for the election
- of directors.

Nominees

The eight (8) individuals identified in the table below (the "Nominees") are proposed by the Trustee, on
behalf of the Trust, for election as directors of COSL, to serve until the next annual meeting of the shareholders of
COSL or until their successors are duly elected or appointed. If any vacancies occur in the slate of such Nominees
because any Nominee is unable or not willing to serve, the discretionary authority conferred by the enclosed form of
proxy will be exercised to grant approval to the Trustee to vote the COSL Shares for the election as director of such
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other person or persons as may be nominated by the Trustee. In this regard, the Trustee will nominate such person
or persons as may be selected by COSL.

The names of the Nominees, their municipalities of residence, their current principal occupations, the year
in which each first became a director of COSL or one of its predecessor companies, and the number of Units
beneficially owned or over which control or direction is exercised by each such Nominee as at March 7, 2003, are as
follows:

Number of Units

Beneficially Owned or
over which Control or
Year First Discretion is
Became a Exercised as at
Name and Municipality of Residence Director Current Principal Occupation March 7, 2003
MARCEL R. COUTU 2001 President and Chief Executive Officer, 15464 M
Springbank, Alberta Canadian Oil Sands Limited
E. SUSAN EVANS, Q.C. @® 1997 Corporate Director 4,815
Calgary, Alberta
THE RIGHT HONOURABLE 2002 Corporate Director and Business Consultant 2,676
DONALD F. MAZANKOWSKI®
Vegreville, Alberta
WAYNE M. NEWHOUSE @ 1996 President, Morgas Ltd. (oil and gas production) 10,200
Calgary, Alberta
WALTER B. 0DONOGHUE, Q.C. © 1995 Counsel, Bennett Jones LLP (law firm) 3,200
Calgary, Alberta
C.E. (CHUCK) SHULTZ 1996 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Dauntless 21,000
Calgary, Alberta Energy Inc. (private oil and gas corporation)
WESLEY R. TW1sS @ 2001 - Corporate Director 2,000
Calgary, Alberta
3
JOHN B. ZAOZIRNY, Q.C. 1996 Counsel, McCarthy Tétrault LLP (law firm) 3,000

Calgary, Alberta

Notes:

(1)  Includes 300 Units over which Mr. Coutu exercises contro! or direction,
(2)  Member of the Audit Committee.

(3)  Member of the Corporate Governance and Compensation Committee.

(4)  Includes 1000 Units over which Mr. Twiss exercises control or direction.

Each of the Nominees has been engaged in the occupation set forth in the above table or similar
occupations with the same employer for the last five years except: Mr. Coutu (who was Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of Gulf Canada Resources Limited from May 1999 to July 2001, and prior to that was
Director, Finance, Vice President, Finance and, subsequently, Senior Vice President, International of TransCanada
Pipelines Limited); Mr. Twiss (who was Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of PanCanadian
Energy Corporation from January 2000 to April 2002, and prior to that was Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of Petro-Canada from 1998 to January 2000; and Mr. Newhouse (who was President of Newhouse
Resource Management Limited from February 1995 to June 2001).



Unless otherwise directed by the Unitholders appointing them proxy, the persons named in the
enclosed form of proxy intend to vote at the Meeting to direct the Trustee to vote the COSL Shares so as to
elect as directors of COSL all of the Nominees identified above, and to fill any vacancies among the directors
of COSL that may arise between the Meeting and the first meeting of the Unitholders thereafter that
considers the election of directors, by appointing to any such vacancy a person selected by COSL.

Board Committees

The Board of Directors has an Audit Committee and, in early 2002, established a Corporate Governance
and Compensation Committee, The Audit Committee is comprised of E. Susan Evans, Wayne M. Newhouse,
Wesley R. Twiss and The Right Honourable Donald F. Mazankowski. The Corporate Governance and
Compensation Committee is comprised of E. Susan Evans, Walter B. O'Donoghue, and John B. Zaozimy. The
Board of Directors does not have an Executive Committee.

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR

Management proposes to nominate PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Chartered Accountants, for appointment
as the auditor of the Trust and COSL for the ensuing year at a remuneration to be fixed by COSL and approved by
the directors thereof. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was first appointed on April 19, 1996 as the auditor of a
predecessor of the Trust, also named Canadian Oil Sands Trust, and was appointed as the auditor of the Trust and
each of the Former Managers in July 2001 and of Canadian Oil Sands Limited in August 2001.

Unless otherwise directed by the Unitholders appointing them proxy, the persons named in the
enclosed form of proxy intend to vote at the Meeting to: (a) approve the reappointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the auditor of Trust; and (b) direct the Trustee to vote the COSL Shares in
favour of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the auditor of COSL for the ensuing year at a
remuneration to be fixed by COSL and approved by the directors thereof.

Representatives of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will be present at the Meeting and will have the
opportunity to make a statement and to respond to appropriate questions.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The annual financial statements of the Trust for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, together with the
auditors’ report thereon, are being concurrently sent to Unitholders with this Management Proxy Circular. No
formal action will be taken at the Meeting to approve the financial statements, the requirements of the Trust
Indenture having been satisfied by their advance circulation to Unitholders. If any Shareholders have questions
regarding such financial statements, such questions may be brought forward at the Meeting,

SPECIAL MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED AT THE MEETING
AMENDMENTS TO TRUST INDENTURE
A. Reducing the Quorum for Special Resolutions

The Trust Indenture currently provides that the quorum requirement for meetings of Unitholders at which
no Special Resolution (as defined herein) is to be considered is two or more individuals present in person either
holding personally or representing as proxies not less than 2% of the outstanding Units.

The Trust Indenture also provides that the quorum for a meeting of Unitholders at which a Special
Resolution is to be considered consists of two or more holders of at least 20% of the aggregate number of Trust
Units then outstanding, present in person or by proxy. Failure to achieve a quorum at any such meeting of
Unitholders will require an adjournment to another date not less than 21 nor more than 60 days later. The Trustee
and Management believe that the current quorum requirement for passing a Special Resolution is no longer
appropriate having regard to (i) the fact that the Trust is a widely held public entity, (ii) the practice of the majority
of the Trust's peers, which have a much lower quorum threshold for special matters, "and (iii) most public trusts and
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corporations, which have a threshold of 10% or less. Accordingly, Management recommends that two or more
holders of at least 10% of the aggregate number of Units then outstanding, present in person or by proxy, should
constitute a quorum for the purpose of considering a Special Resolution. The Board of Directors believes that the
proposed reduction in the quorum will not prejudice Unitholders, who will continue to receive appropriate notice
and information in advance of any special meeting of Unitholders, but will ensure that the Trust is able to
expeditiously deal with matters requiring a Special Resolution, which are properly brought before Unitholders. The
Board of Directors is not aware, at this time, of any such matters other than those set forth in this Management
Proxy Circular which would be brought before the Unitholders.

Section 10.6 of the Trust Indenture presently reads as follows:
“10.6  Meaning of “Special Resolution”

(a) The expression “Special Resolution” when used in this Indenture means, subject as
hereinafter in this Article provided, a resolution proposed to be passed as a special
resolution at a meeting of Unitholders (including an adjourned meeting) duly convened
for the purpose and held in accordance with the provisions of this Article at which two or
more holders of at least 20% of the aggregate number of Trust Units then outstanding are
present in person or by proxy and passed by the affirmative votes of the holders of not
less than 66 2/3% of the Trust Units represented at the meeting and voted on a poll upon
such resolution.

(b) If, at any such meeting, the holders of 20% of the aggregate number of Trust Units
outstanding are not present in person or by proxy within 30 minutes after the time
appointed for the meeting, then the meeting, if convened by or on the requisition of
Unitholders, shall be dissolved; but in any other case it shall stand adjourned to such date,
being not less than 21 nor more than 60 days later, and to such place and time as may be
appointed by the chairman. Not less than ten days’ prior notice shall be given of the time
and place of such adjourned meeting in the manner provided in Section 10.2. Such notice
shall state that at the adjourned meeting the Unitholders present in person or by proxy
shall form a quorum but it shall not be necessary to set forth the purposes for which the
meeting was originally called or any other particulars. At the adjourned meeting the
Unitholders present in person or by proxy shall form a quorum and may transact the
business for which the meeting was originally convened and a resolution proposed at
such adjourned meeting and passed by the requisite vote as provided in subsection (a) of
this Section shall be a Special Resolution with the meaning of this Indenture,
notwithstanding that the holders of less than 20% of the aggregate number of Trust Units
then outstanding are present in person or by proxy at such adjourned meeting.

(©) Votes on any Special Resolution shall always be given on a poll and no demand for a poll
on any Special Resolution shall be necessary.”

Pursuant to the proposed amendments, all references to “20%” in such provisions will be replaced with “10%”.

The foregoing amendments to the Trust Indenture to reduce the quorum for Special Resolutions (as defined
therein) are subject to the approval of the Unitholders. Unitholders will therefore be asked at the Meeting to
consider and, if thought appropriate, approve the amendments to the Trust Indenture by passing the special
resolution which is in the form set forth in paragraph A of Appendix I hereto.

To be approved, the special resolution must be passed by the affirmative votes of the holders of not less
than 66 % % of the Units represented at the Meeting and voted on a poll upon such special resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends that Unitholders vote FOR approval of the special resolution
approving the amendment of the Trust Indenture as described above. The persons named in the enclosed form of
proxy intend to vote FOR approval of such special resolution at the Meeting unless otherwise directed by the
Unitholders appointing them.



B. Alowing Electronic Voting by Unitholders

The Trust Indenture is presently silent as to participation by Unitholders in meetings of Unitholders by
electronic means. Management is of the view that it is desirable to amend the Trust Indenture to specifically permit
Unitholders to attend, and to vote at, meetings of Unitholders by telephonic, electronic or other communication
facility to the extent available to ensure maximum participation by Unitholders in a manner that makes it convenient
and accessible for them. ‘

Pursuant to the proposed amendments, the following changes will be made to the Trust Indenture:

(a)

(b)

The following provision shall be inserted between Sections 10.1 and 10.2 of the Trust
Indenture: '

“10.1A Participation By Flectronic Means

Any person entitled to attend a meeting of Unitholders shall be entitled to attend the
meeting by means of a telephonic, electronic or other communication facility,
provided that the chairman is satisfied that all Unitholders will be able to
communicate adequately with each other during such meeting. For greater certainty,
a meeting of Unitholders may be held entirely by telephonic, electronic or other
communication facility provided that the foregoing requirement is met. Any person
participating in a meeting by telephonic, electronic or other communication facility
shall be deemed to be present at the meeting for all purposes.”

The first sentence of Section 10.2, “Notice of Meetings™ presently reads as follows:
“Notice of all meetings of Unitholders shall be given by unregistered mail postage

prepaid addressed to each Unitholder at his registered address, mailed at least twenty-one
(21) days and not more than fifty (50) days before the meeting.”

Pursuant to the proposed amendments, that sentence will be replaced with the following:

“Notice of all meetings of Unitholders shall be given in accordance with Section 14.1 of

this Indenture. sent at least twenty-one (21) days and not more than fifty (50) days before the

meeting.”

(©)

Section 14.1 of the Trust Indenture presently reads as follows:

“14.1 Notices

Any notice required to be given under this Indenture to the Unitholders shall be
given by letter or circular sent through ordinary post addressed to each registered holder at
his last address appearing on the register; provided that if there is a general discontinuance of
postal service due to strike, lockout or otherwise, such notice may be given by publication
twice in the National Edition of The Globe and Mail, the National Post or any other
newspaper having national circulation in Canada; provided further that if there is no
newspaper having national circulation, then by publishing twice in a newspaper in each city
where the register or a branch register is maintained. Any notice so given shall be deemed to
have been given on the day following that on which the letter or circular was posted or, in
the case of notice being given by publication, the day following the day of the second
publication in the designated newspaper or newspapers. In proving notice was posted, it
shall be sufficient to prove that such letter or circular was properly addressed, stamped and
posted.”
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Pursuant to the proposed amendments, Section 14.1 of the Indenture will be replaced with the following:

“14.1 Notices

Any notice required to be given or sent under this Indenture to Unitholders shall be
given by letter or circular sent through ordinary post addressed to each registered holder at
his or her last address appearing on the register or in any other manner from time to time
permitted by Canadian securities legislation including, without limitation. internet based or
other electronic communication; provided that if there is a general discontinuance of regular
postal service due to strike, lockout or otherwise, notice may also be given by publication
twice in the National Edition of The Globe and Mail, the National Post or any other
newspaper having national circulation in Canada, provided further that if there is no
newspaper having national circulation, then such notice may be given by publishing twice in
a newspaper in each city where the register or a branch register is maintained. Any notice so
given shall be deemed to have been given on the day following that on which the letter or
circular was posted or sent or, in the case of notice given by publication, the day following
the day of the second publication in the designated newspaper or newspapers. In proving
notice was posted, it shall be sufficient to prove that such letter or other document was
properly addressed, stamped and posted.”

(d) The following provision shall be inserted between Sections 10.4 and 10.5 of the Trust
Indenture:

“10.4A Voting by Electronic Means

Notwithstanding any other provision contained in this Indenture, any person
participating in a meeting of Unitholders by means of a telephonic, electronic or other
communication facility and entitled to vote at that meeting may vote by means of the
telephonic, electronic or other communication facility that the Trust has made available for
that purpose, provided that such facility:

(a) enables the votes to be gathered in a manner that permits their subsequent
verification; and

(b) permits the tallied votes to be presented to the Trust without it being possible for the
Trust to identify how each Unitholder or group of Unitholders voted.”

The foregoing amendments to the Trust Indenture to allow electronic voting by Unitholders are subject to
the approval of the Unitholders. Unitholders will therefore be asked at the Meeting to consider and, if thought
appropriate, approve the amendments to the Trust Indenture by passing the special resolution set forth in paragraph
B of Appendix I hereto.

To be approved, the special resolution must be passed by the affirmative votes of the holders of not less
than 66 % % of the Units represented at the Meeting and voted on a poll upon such special resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends that Unitholders vote FOR approval of the special resolution
approving the amendment of the Trust Indenture as described above. The persons named in the enclosed form of
proxy intend to vote FOR approval of such special resolution at the Meeting unless otherwise directed by the
Unitholders appointing them.

C. Allowing the Issuance of Convertible Securities

The Trust Indenture presently provides for the offering by the Trust of Units, including rights to acquire
Units. Management is of the view that it is desirable to amend the Trust Indenture to specifically provide for the
issuance and offering by the Trust or any of its affiliates of other securities, including debt securities, which may be
convertible into, or exchangeable for, Units. The Board of Directors believes that such amendments will provide



greater flexibility in financing the capital requirements of the Trust and its subsidiaries, and so has approved
amendments to the Trust Indenture as follows:

(a) A new definition of “Exchangeable Security” would be added to the Trust Indenture, substantially
as follows:

“Exchangeable Security” means a unit, share or other security, issued
by the Trust or an affiliate of the Trust, which is convertible into,
exchangeable for, or carries the right of the holder to purchase or
otherwise acquire (or of the issuer of such security to cause the
purchase or acquisition of) Trust Unit(s) or unit(s), share(s) or other
security(ies), issued by the Trust {or an affiliate of the Trust], which are
convertible into, exchangeable for, or carry the right of the holder to
purchase or otherwise acquire (or of the issuer of such security to cause
the purchase or acquisition of) Trust Unit(s); and for greater certainty,
an Exchangeable Security includes a debt security.

(b) The Trust Indenture would be amended to specifically authorize the Trustee and the Manager to
effect offerings of securities by the Trust other than Units, the proceeds of which may be used by
the Trust for its permitted investments. In addition, the Trust would be authorized and directed to
enter into any agreements as may be necessary or desirable to properly provide for the terms of
any Exchangeable Securities or other securities so issued.

(c) The prohibition, currently contained in the Trust Indenture, against the Trustee borrowing money
on behalf of the Trust would be deleted.

The foregoing amendments to the Trust Indenture to allow the issuance of convertible securities are subject
to the approval of the Unitholders. Unitholders will therefore be asked at the Meeting to consider and, if thought
appropriate, approve the amendments to the Trust Indenture by passing the special resolution set forth in paragraph
C of Appendix I hereto.

To be approved, the special resolution must be passed by the affirmative votes of the holders of not less
than 66 % % of the Units represented at the Meeting and voted on a poll upon such special resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends that Unitholders vote FOR approval of the special resolution
approving the amendment of the Trust Indenture as described above. The persons named in the enclosed form of
proxy intend to vote FOR approval of such special resolution at the Meeting unless otherwise directed by the
Unitholders appointing them.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Current Officers

There are no direct officers of the Trust. Instead, management of the Trust is exercised by COSL and the
directors and officers thereof. The following table identifies each of the officers (the "Officers") of COSL as at the
date hereof, their municipalities of residence, their current office, their principal occupations for the five (5) year
period preceding December 31, 2002, and the number of Units beneficially owned or over which control or direction

is exercised by each such Officer as at March 7, 2003:

Name and Municipality

Number of Units
Beneficially Owned or
over which Control or

Discretion is
Exercised as at

of Residence Current Office Five Year History of Principal Occupations March 7, 2003
C.E. (CHUCK) SHULTZ Chairman of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Dauntless Energy 21,000
Calgary, Alberta the Board of Inc. (private oil and gas corporation)
Directors
MARCEL R. COUTU President and President and Chief Executive Officer, COSL; prior thereto, 15,464
Springbank, Alberta Chief Executive  Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Gulf
Officer Canada Resources Limited from May 1999 to July 2001;

prior thereto, Director, Finance, Vice President, Finance and,

subsequently, Senior Vice President, International of

TransCanada PipeLines Limited
TRUDY M. CURRAN General Counsel ~ Corporate Secretary of COSL from November, 2001 to May, 440
Calgary, Alberta and Corporate 2002; Senior Counsel and Assistant Corporate Secretary,

Secretary EnCana Corporation from April, 2002 to September, 2002;

prior thereto, Staff Legal Counsel, PanCanadian Energy

Corporation from November, 2001 to March, 2002; prior

thereto, Senior Counsel, Canadian Pacific Limited from

March 1999 to October 2001; and prior thereto, Associate

General Counsel and Assistant Corporate Secretary,

Canadian Airlings Corporation
RYAN M. KUBIK Treasurer Advisor, Corporate Finance, EnCana Corporation from April, 400
Calgary, Alberta 2002 to August, 2002 and prior thereto, Associate Director,

Treasury, PanCanadian Energy Corporation
Notes:

(1) Includes 300 Units over which Mr. Coutu exercises control or direction.
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Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth information concerning the total compensation paid, during each of the last
three financial years, to the Officers during the financial year ended December 31, 2002:

Long Term
Annual Compensation Compensation
Awards Payouts
Securities | Restricted
Under Shares or
Other Annual | Options/ | Restricted All Other
Name and Salary Bonus Compensation SARs Share LTIP Compensation
Principal Position Year 3 8] [63] Granted Units Payouts ()
C.E. (CHUCK) 2002 nit @ nil 99,500 " 15,000 nil nil nil ®
g;!ULTZ " 2001 | 365,370 o 110,000 62,933 nil nil nil 306,300
airman o 113,780 i . i i nil
the Board of 2000 nil nil nil nil
Directors
MARCELS- 2002 | 300,000 | 140,000 Y | 71,893 156,000 nil nil nil®
COUTU 2001 100,000 nil 36.271© nil nil il nil
President and 2000 n/a ’ na n/a n/a n/a
Chief Executive n/a n/a
Officer
TRUDY M, 2002 43,750 | 44,0007 15443 ® 20,000 il nil i@
CURRAN 2001 n/a wa n/a n/a n/a na wa
General Counsel 2000 wa n/a n/a a wa
and Corporate n/a n/a
Secretary 7
RYAN M, 2002 | 41667 | 20000"" | 14,0391 15,000 nil nil nil®
KUBIK 2001 wa n/a wa n/a n/a n/a /a
Treasurer 2000 n/a a wa nja a wa wa
Notes:
) Options issued and amounts paid to Mr. Shultz in his capacity as Chairman of the Board of Directors.
) Includes payments (exclusive of GST) made by COSII in 2001 pursuant to a Consulting Services Agreement dated effective as of

January 1, 2001 between COSII and Mr. Shultz (which agreement was terminated in October 2001), and in 1999 and 2000 pursuant to
a Consulting Services Agreement dated as of June 20, 1996 among COSII, Mr. Shultz and Dauntless Energy Inc., a corporation
controlled by Mr. Shultz.

3) Includes the amount of the aggregate payment received by Mr. Shultz on (i) the termination on July 5, 2001 of the Trust Unit
Incentive Plan of Canadian Oil Sands Trust (“COST”), being a predecessor to the Trust, such payment being equal to the fair market
value of each of the 15,000 unit appreciation rights held by Mr. Shultz under such plan at the date of its termination, and (ii) the
termination in October 2001 of the Consulting Services Agreement dated effective as of January 1, 2001 between COSII and Mr.
Shultz pursuant to which Mr. Shultz furnished his services as Chairman.

4) Perquisites and other personal benefits received did not exceed the lesser of $50,000 and 10% of the total annual salary and bonuses
for any of the named executive officers in any of those years.

5 Mr. Coutu was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer on August 24, 2001.

6) Mr. Coutu received 900 Units valued at $36,271 in 2001 and 1,800 Units valued at $71,893 in 2002 as compensation in lieu of the
payment of benefits. See "Employment Agreements" below.

©)) Ms. Curran became an employee of Canadian Oil Sands Limited on September 16, 2002. Prior to that date, she was an employee of
EnCana Corporation ("EnCana") and provided services on behalf of EnCana to the Trust and COSL in her capacity as an employee of
EnCana.

®) Ms. Curran received 440 Units valued at $15,443 in lieu of the payment of benefits. See "Employment Agreements" below.
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9 Mr. Kubik was appointed Treasurer on September 1, 2002.
10) Mr. Kubik received 400 Units valued at $14,039 in lieu of the payment of benefits. See "Employment Agreements" below.

(11) Bonuses paid or accrued for payment in respect of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

Compensation of Other Officers

Mr. Douglas B. Olson was appointed Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of COSL on November 9,
2001 and resigned from this position on October 25, 2002, immediately prior to the termination of the
Administrative Services Agreement. Throughout this period, Mr. Olson was a full-time employee of EnCana and
was remunerated exclusively by EnCana. Prior to September 16, 2002, Ms. Trudy M. Curran, General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary of COSL, was a full-time employee of EnCana and was remunerated exclusively by EnCana.
During these periods, the Trust and COSL received the benefits of Mr. Olson's and Ms. Curran's services pursuant to
the Administrative Services Agreement between EnCana and COSL described below under the heading
"Management Contracts — Administrative Services Agreement”. Included among the services for which COSL paid

fees to EnCana under the Administrative Services Agreement were the day-to-day manageria} services of Mr. Olson
and Ms. Curran.

Directors' Compensation

Effective July 5, 2001, each of the directors except Mr. Coutu receives an annual retainer of $15,000 plus
$1,000 for each Board of Directors or committee meeting attended. The chairperson of any committee of the Board
of Directors receives an additional retainer of $2,000 per annum. Fach director is also compensated for all
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred that are incidental to attending a Board or committee meeting. In July,
2002, the Chairman of the Board of Directors (Mr. Shultz) was granted 15,000 options to acquire Units and each
other director was granted 7,500 options to acquire Units.

For the period January 1, 2002 through December 31, 2002, Mr. Shultz, as Chairman of the Board of
Directors, received a retainer of $90,000 per annum. In addition to this retainer as Chairman of the Board of
Directors, he receives meeting fees, but not the $15,000 retainer.

Employment Agreements

The terms of Mr. Coutu's service as Chief Executive Officer of COSL are governed by an Executive
Employment Agreement dated as of August 24, 2001 between Mr. Coutu and COSL. Mr. Coutu's remuneration
under this agreement consisted of an annuat salary of $300,000 plus a bonus targeted at 30% of annual salary, an
annual grant of Units in lieu of receiving benefits such as health or dental coverage or pension payments, and certain
perquisites and other benefits having an annual aggregate value of less than 10% of Mr. Coutu's annual salary. Mr.
Coutu's annual base salary is subject to annual review. Effective September 1, 2002, Mr. Coutu's base salary was
increased to $315,000. If COSL terminates the agreement at any time otherwise than for cause, it will become
obligated to pay to Mr. Coutu a cash amount equal to 2.5 times his base annual salary, annual target incentive bonus
and value of benefits and perquisites calculated as 22% of annual salary, and to provide for the costs of professional
outplacement services to a combined maximum cost of $25,000 for a maximum period of six (6) months following
termination of employment.

In the event of a "change of control" or "constructive dismissal" (as defined in the agreement), Mr. Coutu
shall have the right to terminate his employment with COSL at any time within 180 days thereafter upon 30 days'
prior written notice, in which case he shall be entitled to the same severance payment and outplacement services as
would be payable by COSL in the event that it terminated Mr. Coutu's employment without cause. The agreement
generally defines a "change of control” to include: (a) the sale to person not affiliated with the Trust or COSL, or
their subsidiaries, of assets having a value greater than 50% of the fair market value of the consolidated assets of
such parties prior to such sale; and (b) any change in the holding of Units or COSL Shares by a person not affiliated
with the Trust or COSL as a result of which such person, jointly or in concert with others, is in a position to exercise
effective control of the Trust or COSL. A person or group of persons holding more than 30% of the outstanding
Units, or shares of other securities which would entitle such person(s) to cast at least 30% of the votes attaching to
all shares of COSL that may be cast for the election of directors of COSL shall be deemed to be in a position to
exercise effective control of the Trust or COSL, as the case may be, (unless such person(s) holds such Units or other
securities in the ordinary course of business as an investment manager and is not using such holding to exercise
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effective control). The agreement defines "constructive dismissal” to include a material decrease in the title,
position, responsibilities, powers or reporting relationships of Mr. Coutu; a reduction in his annual salary, a
requirement to relocate to another city, or any material reduction in the value of his employment benefits (other than
the annual target incentive bonus).

No other Officer has a formal employment agreement with COSL or the Trust.
Incentive, Benefit or Actuarial Plans

Neither the Trust nor COSL has long term incentive, benefit or actuarial plans in place.
Trustee's Compensation

The Trustee was paid $69,358.30 in fees plus an additional $20,975.48 as reimbursement for expenses for
the financial year ended December 31, 2002,

Liability Insurance for Directors and Officers

COSL maintains directors' and officers' liability insurance coverage against losses arising from an
obligation on the part of COSL (and the Former Managers) to reimburse directors and officers, where permitted, and
for direct indemnity of directors and officers where corporate reimbursement is not permitted by law. The insurance
protects COSL against liability (including costs), subject to standard policy exclusions that may be incurred by
directors and/or officers acting in such capacity for COSL or one of the Former Managers. All directors and officers
of COSL are covered by the policy and the amount of insurance applies collectively to all.

The premium of $271,765 for directors' and officers' liability insurance has been prepaid until May 1, 2003
for the ongoing directors' and officers' liability coverage, and until July 5, 2008 in respect of a run-off policy
purchased to cover the directors and officers of COSII and AOSH prior to the merger of COST and Athabasca OQil
Sands Trust on July 5, 2001 to form the combined Trust. No allocation of premium was made to directors as a
group or officers as a group. The amount of insurance purchased is $50 million in any one year for any combination
of losses involving corporate reimbursement and/or direct indemnity of directors and officers. Losses are subject to
a deductible of $250,000 for corporate reimbursement with no deductible for indemnification of directors and
officers. At the date hereof, COSL intends to renew such directors and officers liability insurance subject to market
availability.

Indebtedness of Directors and Officers

None of the directors, Officers or nominees for election as directors of COSL are, as at the date hereof, or
were at any time during the financial year ended December 31, 2002, indebted to the Trust or COSL.

-14-
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Report on Executive Compensation

(‘ The Board of Directors establishes remuneration for each of the Officers on an individual basis. In making

.. these determinations, the Board of Directors considers the individual’s performance, experience and education and
the Trust's performance, as well as market demand for the positions and the functions being provided. In 2002, the
compensation of the President and Chief Executive Officer was determined to a large extent on the Trust's
performance and the achievement of individual and corporate objectives established by the Board of Directors with
the President and Chief Executive Officer. As COSL has moved to having its own staff, the use of corporate and
individual objectives is being expanded beyond the President and Chief Executive Officer to the other officers and
employees. For the officer group, the Trust's performance and achievement of corporate objectives is a very
important component in determining the officers' individual remuneration. For the year ended December 31, 2002,
the Chairman of the Board of Directors was compensated based on a competitive annual retainer for the services of a
non-executive Chairman and for the time commitments, responsibilities and duties that the Chairman spent in
performing his duties as Chairman of the Board of Directors.

This Report is submitted on behalf of the Board of Directors.

C.E. (Chuck) Shultz

Marcel R. Coutu

E. Susan Evans

The Right Honourable Donald F. Mazankowski
Wayne M. Newhouse

Watter B. O'Donoghue

Wesley R. Twiss

John B. Zaozimy

Update on Unit Option and Distribution Equivalent Plan and Senior Employee Purchase Plan

At last year's annual and special meeting of Unitholders, Unitholders approved a Unit Option and
Distribution Equivalent Plan (the "Option Plan") and a Senior Employee Purchase Plan (the "Senior Employee
Plan"), which contemplated the issuance of preferred shares of COSL. As indicated in the Management Proxy
Circular for the 2002 meeting, the full implementation of these plans was conditional on the receipt of acceptable tax
opinions or rulings, and Management reserved the right not to implement the plans in full if it was not in the best
interests of Unitholders or the Trust to do so. As COSL was not able to obtain the tax ruling that it originally sought
regarding these plans, Management decided only to issue options to purchase Units under the Option Plan. The
component of the Option Plan whereby preferted-shares-were-to-be-issued-to-provide compensation approximately———-——
equivalent to the distributions paid to Unitholders in respect of Units not yet issued under the Option Plan was not
implemented. In reassessmg the value to the individuals receiving the preferred shares and, more importantly, the
administrative complex1ty and cost of implementing the preferred share component of the Option Plan and the
Senior Employee/ Plan, the Board of Directors determined that the Senior Employee Plan should not be implemented
and; in fact, Eefcancelled and decided to amend the Option Plan to delete the distribution equivalent components of
such option plan. As a result, effective February 19, 2003, all references in the Option Plan to the issuance of
preferred shares are deleted and only the existing provisions regarding the issuance of unit options remain. The
Senior Employee Plan was terminated effective February 19, 2003.

Recognizing that there was an overall impact on the compensation received by individuals who are
employees or directors of COSL as a result of this decision, the Board of Directors has determined that it will
instead compensate such individuals through an alternative plan that looks at the individual employee's performance
or the time commitments undertaken by the board member, as applicable, and includes in the compensation
calculation a formula that considers the distributions that such individual would have received on the options that
such individual holds if the preferred shares had been issued at the time that the options were granted. The net
impact on Unitholders of the decision to cancel the Senior Employee Plan and to amend the Option Plan by deleting
all provisions relating to the issuance of preferred shares as outlined above and instead for COSL to make a cash

N
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payment to its employees and directors as outlined above is expected to have no dilution impact to Unitholders and
should be cash neutral or even cash positive to the Trust.

PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The Units are listed and posted for trading on the Toronto Stock Exchange (the "TSX") under the trading
symbol "COS.UN". The following line graph and table assume a $100 investment on December 31, 1997, and
compare the change in the cumulative total return on the Units over the five-year period ending December 31, 2002
with the cumulative total return of each of the S&P/TSX Composite Index and the TSX Oil & Gas Producers Index
(assuming, in each case, reinvestment of all dividends) over the same period:

$250
$200 —A
$150
$100
$50
$0 Dec 31, 1997 Dec 31, 1998 Dec 31, 1999 Dec 28, 2000 Dac 31, 2001 Dec 31, 2002
—&—COS ---&--S&P/TSX— - - Producers
Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 29, Dec. 31, Dec. 31,
1997 1998 1999 2000 200t 2002
Canadian Oil Sands Trust” 100 71 106 133 195 202
S&P/TSX Composite Index 100 98 129 139 122 106
TSX Oil & Gas Producers Index 100 70 85 125 129 150
Notes:
§)) Based on the cumulative return on trust units of AOST, being the entity that survived the merger of COST and AOST to form the

combined Trust on July 5, 2001, for the period preceding the merger, and the cumulative return on the Units of the combined Trust for
the period following the merger.

INTEREST OF INSIDERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

Other than as disclosed in this Management Proxy Circular or in a prior information circular, no insider of
the Trust or COSL, nor the Trustee, nor any person nominated for election as a director of COSL, nor any associate
or affiliate of such persons, has had any material interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction of the Trust since the
commencement of the Trust's last financial year or in any proposed transaction which has materially affected or
would materially affect the Trust or any of its subsidiaries.
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Copies of prior information circulars of the Trust may be accessed at the website for the "System for
Electronic Data Analysis and Retrieval" maintained by the Canadian Securities Administrators at www.sedar.com.

Computershare Trust Company of Canada (formerly Montreal Trust Company of Canada) acts as both
Trustee and the transfer agent for the Units, and receives fees for its services in both capacities. In its capacity as
Trustee of the Trust, the Trustee is paid a reasonable fee in connection with the administration and management of
the Trust and is also reimbursed for all expenses properly incurred, as agreed by the Trustee and COSL.

The Trustee, on behalf of the Trust, holds all of the issued and outstanding COSL Shares.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
Management Agreement

Pursuant to the provisions of the Trust Indenture and the Management Agreement described above under
the heading "Background Information on the Trust and its Subsidiaries”, COSL, as successor by way of
amalgamation to the Former Managers, provides management services to the Trust. Under the Management
Agreement, in each quarter COSL is to be paid an amount equal to the sum of the following: (a) a fixed fee of
$125,000 per quarter; (b) all amounts payable by COSL to EnCana pursuant to the Administrative Services
Agreement (see below); (c) all amounts payable by COSL to EnCana pursuant to the Marketing Agreement (see
below); and (d) all other out-of-pocket and third party fees, costs and expenses reasonably incurred by COSL in
carrying out its obligations or duties under the Management Agreement.

Administrative Services Agreement

Pursuant to the Administrative Services Agreement dated as of July 5, 2001 between the Former Managers
and EnCana, formerly known as PanCanadian Petroleum Limited (the "Administrative Services Agreement"), from
July 5, 2001 to October 31, 2002 EnCana provided administrative and support services to each of the Former
Managers in connection with their respective businesses and assets as well as the undertaking and assets of the
Trust. These administrative and support services were generally categorized as follows: (a) operations and technical
services, including review, evaluation, monitoring and guidance with respect o capital and production plans and
budgets, business plans and technical matters; (b) accounting and financial reporting services; (c) treasury services;
(d) business development and planning services; (e) taxation related services; (f) services related to oil and gas
marketing strategy; (g) services related to property, liability and business interruption insurance; (h) investor
relations support services; (i) legal and secretarial services; and (j) office space and general office administrative
support services. EnCana also provided services to the Trust under the Administrative Services Agreement, which
services were generally categorized as follows: (a) legal and corporate secretarial services; (b) accounting and
financial reporting services; (c) treasury services; (d) services related to taxation matters; and (e) services related to
Unitholder distributions and other plans. EnCana also agreed to make available to the Former Managers and the
Trust, on an as required basis, the advice and services of qualified senior management of EnCana in respect of
strategic issues impacting the Trust. Services provided by EnCana under the Administrative Services Agreement
were subject to the supervision of the Board of Directors.

In consideration for its services under the Administrative Services Agreement, EnCana was entitled to a
quarterly base fee of $375,000 ($1,500,000 annually) as well as a variable fee per quarter equal to the percentage of
net revenue realized for such quarter calculated on a sliding scale from 0.3% to 0.5% based on the annual
distributions per Unit made to Unitholders. For these purposes, "net revenue" meant the production and other
revenues attributable to the Managers' interests in the Syncrude oil sands project plus net revenues from swap and
similar transactions, less operating costs and Crown royalties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Administrative
Services Agreement provided that the sum of the base and variable fee payable to EnCana for a one (1) year period
would in no event exceed $3,000,000. In addition to these quarterly fees, if EnCana provided administrative services
in respect of acquisitions or divestitures by the Trust or the Former Managers of a material interest in the Syncrude
project (or other material interests in oil sands projects or other oil and gas assets), or in respect of any debt or equity
offering by the Trust, COSL or the Former Managers (whether such offerings were public or private), EnCana was
entitled to be paid a transaction fee. Finally, EnCana was also entitled to payment of all reasonable out-of-pocket
and third party fees and expenses reasonably incurred in carrying out its obligations to provide administrative
services to the Trust and the Former Managers, subject, however, to certain restrictions including the obligation of
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EnCana to make payment, without entitlement to reimbursement, of the first $100,000 of third party professional
fees when expertise was required beyond that which could have been provided by EnCana personnel.

On June 19, 2002, EnCana, the Trust, COSL and the Former Managers announced that they had mutually
agreed to terminate the Administrative Services Agreement on or before December 31, 2002. The agreement was
terminated effective November 1, 2002 following COSL acquiring its own office space and hiring its own staff to
manage the Trust, its subsidiaries and their businesses. The preferred shares of the Former Managers that were
previously held by EnCana were redeemed on October 31, 2002. This redemption allowed COSL and the Former
Managers to complete a short form amalgamation on January 1, 2003. See "Background to the Trust and its
Subsidiaries". Following the termination of the Administrative Services Agreement, EnCana no longer supplied any
services to the Trust, COSL or the Former Managers other than ad hoc advice regarding past services and the
continued use of the accounting software system until the end of the first quarter of 2003 following completion of
the year-end audited financial statements of the Trust. COSL pays for such reduced services on a time and materials
basis. The anticipated aggregate cost of such services is anticipated to not exceed $50,000 for 2003.

Marketing Agreement

Pursuant to the Marketing Services Agreement dated as of July 5, 2001 between EnCana and the Former
Managers (the "Marketing Agreement”), EnCana markets all of the Syncrude Sweet Blend and other marketable
products obtained from oil sands or produced in association therewith attributable to the Trust's interests in the
Syncrude project ("Syncrude Products”).

For the period commencing February 1, 2002 to January 31, 2003, EnCana provided the Former Managers
the option to sell to EnCana the Former Managers' share of the Syncrude Sweet Blend produced by the Syncrude
project. In early 2002, the Former Managers elected to have EnCana purchase from the Former Managers, on a
monthly basis, all such Syncrude Sweet Blend at a deemed unit price, as determined pursuant to the agreement
between the Province of Alberta and the Syncrude participants providing for Crown royalty payments and EnCana
was not entitled to receive any other marketing fee under the Marketing Agreement in respect of such Syncrude
Sweet Blend. The term of such deemed unit price sale arrangement ended on January 31, 2003 at EnCana's election.
Upon the reversion of the marketing services to the third party market purchases commencing February 1, 2003,
EnCana is entitled to the following fees in respect thereof:

(a) $0.05 for each barrel of Syncrude Sweet Blend marketed and sold on or after February 1, 2003;
(b $0.055 for each barrel of crude bitumen or other liquid crude products sold by the barrel; and
©) a reasonable fee in respect of all other oil sands products.

As part of the acquisition of the additional 10% interest in Syncrude by the Trust in February 2003, the
additional volumes from such interest were included in this agreement. In any event, there is a minimum monthly
fee of approximately $33,333 payable to EnCana for these marketing services in respect of the aggregate 31.74%
interest in Syncrude now held by the Trust through its subsidiaries. Prior to the termination of the Administrative
Services Agreement, this minimum monthly fee had been approximately $16,668. EnCana is also entitled under the
Marketing Agreement to be reimbursed for its reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses.

The initial term of the Marketing Agreement ends June 30, 2006, at which time the Marketing Agreement
will automatically renew for successive three (3) year terms unless terminated by either of COSL or EnCana by

written notice delivered not less than ninety (90) days prior to the end of the initial term or any renewal term, as _

applicable. EnCana may also terminate the agreement by delivery, to COSL, of six (6) months' prior written notice”
of termination. .

In addition to the foregoing, the Marketing Agreement is terminable by written notice given by either of
COSL or EnCana in certain circumstances set forth in the agreement, subject, however, to the payment of
termination fees by COSL in certain instances. In general terms, if the Marketing Agreement is terminated as a
result of certain defaults or matters attributable to COSL or the Trust, or in certain other circumstances (including
where the Trust is terminated and the affairs of the Trust are wound up, or where all or substantially all of the assets
of the Trust are sold, transferred or otherwise disposed of, or upon ninety (90) days' prior written notice of
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termination being given to EnCana other than as noted above), then EnCana has the right to be paid an amount equal
to:

(a) all fees and amounts owing to it under the Marketing Agreement at the time of termination; and

) an amount representing liquidated damages equal to the net present value of the estimated
marketing fees which would have been payable (i) if terminated during the initial term, until the end of the initial
term (with 2 minimum amount payable of at least one year's fees), or (ii) if terminated during a renewal term, for the
immediately following year.

Finally, if the Marketing Agreement is terminated by COSL within one hundred eighty (180) days
following a hostile change of control of the Trust, then the fees payable to EnCana on termination (calculated as
above) shall be determined by using the time period from the date of termination until the date that is three (3) years
afier the date of termination, or the balance of the time period from date of termination until the end of the initial
term, or renewal term, as applicable, whichever is greater. COSL may, without payment of a termination fee,
terminate the agreement on ninety (90) days' prior written notice to EnCana following a change of control affecting
EnCana provided that such notice is delivered within 180 days following such change of control.

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Corporate governance relates to the activities of a board of directors, the members of which are elected by
and are accountable to their constituent securityholders, and the evaluation of the role of the individual members of
management who are appointed by the board of directors and who are charged with the day-to-day management of
the issuer.

In 1995, the Toronto Stock Exchange Committee on Corporate Governance in Canada issued a series of
guidelines (the "TSX Guidelines") relating to effective corporate governance. In 2002, the TSX proposed
amendments to the TSX Guidelines (the “TSX Proposals™) aimed at further improving compliance and corporate
governance generally. The Trustee, the Board of Directors and Management all consider good corporate governance
to be central to the efficient and effective operation of Canadian corporations and have addressed each of the TSX
Guidelines and, where deemed appropriate, the TSX Proposals, as well as providing additional commentary on
corporate governance matters, in Schedule A hereto, bearing in mind the particular nature of the business of the
Trust and its subsidiaries. The chart set forth in Schedule A summarizes the status of the Trust's corporate
governance policies in relation to the TSX Guidelines.

The Trust, as a trust, does not have officers and directors. Instead, the Trust is governed, for the most part,
by its operating subsidiary and such subsidiary's board of directors. References to "the Board" or "the Board of
Directors" are to the boards of directors of COSL, COSII and AOSII for the period ended December 31, 2002.
Commencing on January 1, 2003, following the amalgamation of AOSII, COSII and COSL, reference is to COSL's
Board. Given the provisions of the Trust Indenture and the role of COSL thereunder and under the Management
Agreement, some of the TSX Guidelines are believed to be applicable to COSL only in part, bearing in mind the
overall intent of the TSX Guidelines.

For the purposes of the TSX Guidelines, an "unrelated director" is a director who is independent of
Management and is free from any interest and any business or other relationship which could, or could reasonably
be perceived to, materially interfere with the director's ability to act in the best interests of the Trust, other than
interests arising from securityholding. The TSX Guidelines consider an "outside" director to be a non-management
director. All directors, notwithstanding the manner in which they were nominated, are required to act in the best
interests of the Trust. The TSX Proposals, if adopted as presently drafied, could change this definition of
"unrelated". While the Board generally supports the initiatives contained in the TSX Proposals, the Trust and COSL
believe that the new definition of "unrelated” does not properly analyze historical relationships with former officers
of major service providers to determine whether, in fact, a potential conflict or bias exists and have made such
submissions to the TSX as part of the TSX's request for comments on the draft proposals. Under the current draft
TSX Proposals, Mr. Wesley Twiss would be considered "related” only because be was a former officer of
PanCanadian Petroleum Limited, a predecessor to EnCana, which company was a major service provider to the
Trust and its subsidiaries. In the Board's view, this restriction does not properly reflect the fact that Mr. Twiss has
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no current ties or affiliations to EnCana, nor has he had any affiliations with EnCana since May 2002. As a result of
this, the Board considers Mr. Twiss to be "unrelated”.

The Board of Directors is able to function independently of Management, and retains all powers that are
not expressly delegated to Management.

EFFECTIVE DATE

Unless otherwise specified, the information set forth in this Management Proxy Circular is given as of
March 10, 2003.

INQUIRIES

Inquiries may be directed to the proxy solicitation and information agent, Valiant Trust Company, as
follows:

Valiant Trust Company
510, 550 — 6th Avenue S.W.
Calgary, Alberta T2P 0S2

Telephone: (403)233-2801
Fax: (403) 233-2857

E-mail: valiant@telusplanet.net
Toll-Free: 1-866-313-1872

APPROVAL AND CERTIFICATION
The contents and mailing of this Management Proxy Circular have been approved by the Directors.

The foregoing contains no untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a material fact that
is required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances in which
it was made.

DATED at Calgary, Alberta this 8th day of March, 2003.

CANADIAN OIL SAND TRUST,
by its Manager, Canadian Oil Sands Limited

(signed) (signed)
By: Marcel R. Coutu By: Trudy M. Curran
President and Chief Executive Officer General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
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SCHEDULE A

TSX GUIDELINES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINE

ALIGNMENT

COMMENTARY

The Board of Directors should
explicitly assume responsibility for
stewardship of the Trust, and
specifically for:

(a) adoption of a strategic planning
process, and approval of a
strategic plan which takes into
account, among other things the
opportunities and risks of the
business;

Yes

The Board participates in strategic decisions
affecting the Trust and its subsidiaries
through the review of strategic issues,
including risks such as the impact of the
Kyoto Protocol and opportunities such as
acquisition of additional interests in
Syncrude, annual forecasts and capital
budgets, and by providing advice to the
officers of COSL. Annually, the Board
adopts strategic plans and goals for the Trust
and its subsidiaries and then monitors
management's progress in respect of such
goals. Management participates in the
Syncrude project owner committees which
determine the long-term plans, strategies and
budgets for that project. The President and
Chief Executive Officer of COSL is also the
Chairman of the owners' management
committee for the Syncrude project.

(b) identification of principal risks,
and implementing appropriate
systems to manage these risks;

Yes

Based on advice from management, the
Board identifies the significant risks facing
the Trust and its subsidiaries and directs
management to implement processes to
reduce such risks where possible. Further
discussion of the risks and management's
mitigation of such risks is outlined in
management's discussion and analysis in the
Trust's Annual Report.

(c) succession planning, including
nominating and training and
monitoring senior management;

Yes

This provision is embedded in the terms of
reference for the Corporate Governance and
Compensation Committee of the Board. The
Committee reviews the staffing of COSL
and succession planning and then reports to
the Board seeking approval of the Board
where necessary or appropriate in relation to
these matters. The Corporate Governance
and Compensation Committee and the full
Board meet annually regarding succession
planning,.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINE

ALIGNMENT

COMMENTARY

(d) communications policy; and

Yes

In 2002, the Board approved specific
policies which identify the individuals
authorized to speak on behalf of the Trust
and its subsidiaries. The policies set out
guidelines for management's dealings with
analysts and the public, and contains
measures aimed at preventing selective
disclosure. The policies are to be reviewed
at least annually or, where changes in
legislation or circumstances warrant, at
shorter intervals. The policies also focus on
having full and equitable access for all
Unitholders and potential investors to
material information regarding the Trust and
its subsidiaries. In the past year, the Board
authorized the use of quarterly guidance
documents to better inform Unitholders and
potential investors as to management's
expectations for the upcoming quarter and-
year. The Trust has also made extensive use
of the Trust's website and press releases
aimed at ensuring timely and full disclosure
of material information. Management is
required to obtain Board approval for the
release of major disclosure documents, such
as the annual report and quarterly financial
information.

(e) integrity of internal control and
management information
systems.

Yes

This provision is contained within the scope
of responsibilities outlined in the terms of
reference for the Audit Committee. The
Board receives regular reports from the
Audit Committee and the President and
Chief Executive Officer. The external
auditor attends regular meetings of the Audit
Committee. Following review and analysis
by the Audit Committee, the full Board
reviews and recommends the release of the
quarterly financial statements and reviews
and approves the annual financial
statements. The Board has implemented a
specific signing authority and contract
approval policy that enunciates the types of
commitments and the value of such
commitments that can be approved by
designated officers, retaining the approval of
major commitments and expenditures to the
prerogative of the Board. Appointment of
the external auditor of the Trust and COSL
is submitted for approval to the annual
meeting of Unitholders.




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINE ALIGNMENT COMMENTARY
Majority of directors should be Yes The Board consists of up to seven (7)
“unrelated". independent directors appointed by the Trust
on the basis of the vote of Unitholders at its
annual meeting pursuant to the Trust
Indenture.
Apply the definition of "unrelated Yes The Corporate Governance and

director” to each director in the
circumstances, disclose whether each
director is "related" or "unrelated”" and
the analysis as to how that conclusion
was reached.

Compensation Committee reviews the status
of each director and provides its assessment
to the Board. The Board has the
responsibility of determining whether a
director is "related” or "unrelated”. Outlined
below is the Board's assessment of the status
of its current directors and the analysis
regarding such determination:

Mr. Coutu is a related director for the
purposes of the TSX Guidelines. Mr. Coutu
is the President and Chief Executive Officer
of the Trust and therefore a management
director.

Applying the definition of "unrelated" set
out in the Statement of Corporate
Governance Practices, the Board determined
that Messrs.  Shultz,  Mazankowski,
Newhouse, O'Donoghue and Zaozirny and
Ms. Evans are all unrelated directors.

While under the proposed amendments to
the TSX Guidelines, Mr. Twiss would be
considered "related”, under the current TSX
Guidelines. However, in the Board's view,
Mr. Twiss is "unrelated” as he has no current
or recent affiliations to a major service
provider.

Information  regarding the  principal
occupations and recent employment history
of the directors that supports this conclusion
is set forth in the Management Proxy
Circular to which this Schedule A is
attached.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINE

ALIGNMENT

COMMENTARY

Appoint a Committee, composed
exclusively of outside directors, the
majority of whom are unrelated with
the responsible for proposing new
nominees and for ongoing assessment
of directors.

Yes

In June 2002, the Board established a
Corporate Governance and Compensation
Committee, one of whose functions is to
identify potential candidates for
directorships. In making this assessment,
the Committee considers the opportunities
and risks facing the Trust in its role as a
public entity and as a participant in the oil
and gas indusiry. Candidates who possess
skill sets that are advantageous to the Trust's
understanding of the oil and gas industry,
and oil sands in particular, the financial
markets, and government relations and these
areas’ interrelationships with the Trust and
its subsidiaries’ operations are viewed as
highly attractive candidates. Such
candidates are then referred to the Board and
subsequently to Unitholders for approval of
their appointments. Formal assessments of
directors are conducted by the Chairman and
Board members annually, while periodic
reviews are done on an informal basis. At
the end of each Board meeting, there is an in
camera session where members are able to
critique the performance of management
and/or the Board. All members of the
Corporate Governance and Compensation
Committee are unrelated directors.

Implement a process for assessing the
effectiveness of the Board of
Directors, its committees and
individual director contributions.

Yes

Frequent informal in camera sessions are
held at Board meetings addressing the
effectiveness of the Board, its committees
and individual member contributions. The
Chairman is also an informal liaison with
members of the Board and management in
this regard. In addition, there is an annual
formal evaluation of the Board, its
committees and individual directors as to
effectiveness and contributions by each
member, the committees and the Board as a
whole, as well as the performance of
management in assisting the Board with its
duties and responsibilities.
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( B CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINE

ALIGNMENT

COMMENTARY

6. Provide orientation and education
programs for new directors.

Yes

In advance of a person becoming a board
member, the Chairman and management
providle an overview of the time
commitments and responsibilities of a
director. COSL does not provide formal
education programs for new directors, but
does provide full orientation and information
as individual directors may request. In
addition, each director is provided with a
binder of materials which sets out the terms
of reference adopted by each Committee of
the Board, the Board itself, the Chairman of
the Board and the President and Chief
Executive Officer. Periodically directors are
also given materials relating to their duties,
roles and responsibilities and are advised of
new trends in corporate governance
practices.

7. Consider size of the Board of
Directors and undertake, where
appropriate, to establish a board size
which facilitates effective decision
making.

Yes

The Board has been reduced from nine (9)
directors to eight (8) directors this year. The
Board requires enough directors who have
extensive and diverse business experience in
the oil and gas industry and Canadian capital
markets to carry out the duties and
responsibilities of a public entity. Currently,
the Board feels that the knowledge and
breadth of experience of the eight (8)
nominees is sufficient to satisfy these
responsibilities. However, as new reserves
and corporate governance rules emerge, the
Board may consider adding additional
members to allow a more complete review
and discussion of these additional
responsibilities, where necessary.

8. Review compensation of directors and
ensure it realistically reflects the risks
and responsibilities involved in being
an effective director.

Yes

The terms of compensation for the directors
are determined by the Corporate Governance
and Compensation Committee with the
assistance of external consultants. The
recommendations of the Committee are then
provided to the Board for final approval
The compensation reflects the risks and
responsibilities assumed by the Board
members and the time commitments for each
member.




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINE

ALIGNMENT

COMMENTARY

9. Committees should generally be
composed of non-management
directors, and the majority should be
unrelated.

Yes

The Audit Committee is comprised of
four(4) directors, all of whom are unrelated.
The Corporate Governance and
Compensation Committee has three (3)
members, all of whom are unrelated.

10. Assume responsibility for developing
the Trust's approach to governance
issues and responding to the
guidelines.

Yes

The Corporate Governance and
Compensation Committee, all of whom are
unrelated, has formal terms of reference
which include this responsibility. The Board
as a whole reviews and approves the
Committee's  recommended  corporate
governance guidelines.

11. (a) Define limits to management's
responsibilities by developing
position descriptions for:

(i)  the Board of Directors; and

Yes

Written terms of reference for the Board
were adopted in 2002 and specifically
provide that the Board is responsible for the
business and affairs of the Trust and COSL.
In fulfilling its mandate, the Board meets at
least quarterly to review financial
performance, consider any distributions to
Unitholders and  authorize  capital
transactions.

(i) the Chief Executive
Officer.

Yes

In the fall of 2002, the Board formally
adopted terms of reference that outline the
responsibilities of the President and Chief
Executive Officer. In addition, the Board, in
conjunction with the Corporate Governance
and Compensation Committee  and
management input, establishes annual
objectives and monitors these objectives on
a regular basis.

(b) The Board of Directors should
approve management's corporate
objectives.

Yes

The Board, at least annually, approves
management’s corporate objectives by
adopting the strategic plan and confirming
the Chief Executive Officer's written
objectives for the ensuing year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINE

ALIGNMENT

COMMENTARY

12.

Establish structures and procedures to
enable the Board of Directors to
function independently of
management.

Yes

The Chairman is appointed by the Board, the
majority of whom are outside, unrelated
directors. There is also an in camera session
held at the end of each Board meeting such
that full discussion without management can
occur. The Board also has the power to hire
independent consultants and advisors and
has done so in the past in regards to
executive compensation.

13.

Establish an audit committee
comprised only of unrelated directors
with a specifically defined mandate,
direct communication channels with
auditors and oversight for
management reporting on internal
control.

Yes

The Audit Committee consists of four (4)
Directors, all of whom are unrelated. The
Audit Committee regularly reviews quarterly
and annual financial statements, and meets
regularly with the external auditor. The
Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Twiss
who has more than ten (10) years financial
experience. Each member of the Audit
Committee is considered to be financially
literate.

14.

Implement a system to enable
individual directors to engage outside
advisers at the Trust's expense and
subject to approval of an appropriate
committee.

Yes

The independent directors are free to engage
outside advisers at COSL's expense and have
done so in the past. Such engagement is
subject to approval of the Chairman of the
Board or the Board as a whole.




APPENDIX I
A. Amendments Reducing the Quorum for Special Resolutions (the “Quorum Amendment”)
BE IT RESOLVED as a Special Resolution that:

1. All amendments to the Amended and Restated Trust Indenture dated as of July S5, 2001 (the "Trust
Indenture") between Computershare Trust Company of Canada and Canadian Oil Sands Limited ("COSL"), as
successor in interest to Athabasca Oil Sands Investments Inc. and Canadian Oil Sands Investments Inc. (the "Former
Managers") to delete all references in Section 10.6 to “20%” shall be replaced with “10%”.

2. The Trustee and the Board of Directors of COSL are hereby authorized to effect all such further and
consequential amendments to the Trust Indenture and other relevant agreements and to cause all such further
agreements to be entered into and such further documents to be executed or amended as they may consider
necessary or desirable to give effect to and fully carry out the intent of this Special Resolution.

3. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board of Directors of COSL may, without further approval of the
Unitholders, revoke this Special Resolution at any time prior to the implementation thereof, if the directors
determine in their sole opinion that such revocation is in the best interests of the Unitholders.

4. The Trustee and/or any one director or officer of COSL be and are hereby authorized for and on behalf of
the Trust or as may otherwise be required, to execute and deliver any agreements, documents, instruments and other
writings (including a supplemental trust indenture and/or an amended and restated trust indenture) and to cause all
such documents, instruments and other writings to be executed and delivered and to cause all such acts and things to
be done, all for and on behalf of the Trust or COSL, as such director or officer may consider necessary or desirable
to give effect to and fully carry out the intent of the foregoing resolution and the matters authorized hereby.

B. Amendments Allowing Electronic Voting by Unitholders (the “Electronic Voting Amendment”)
BE IT RESOLVED as a Special Resolution that:

1. All necessary amendments to the Trust Indenture to allow electronic voting by Unitholders to allow
electronic voting by Unitholders, including without limitation, the amendments set out in the Management Proxy
Circular relating to allowing electronic voting by Unitholders be and are hereby approved.

2. The Trustee and the Board of Directors of COSL are hereby authorized to effect all such further and
consequential amendments to the Trust Indenture and other relevant agreements and to cause all such further
agreements to be entered into and such further documents to be executed or amended as they may consider
necessary or desirable to give effect to and fully carry out the intent of this Special Resolution.

3. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board of Directors of COSL may, without further approval of the
Unitholders, revoke this Special Resolution at any time prior to the implementation thereof, if the directors
determine in their sole opinion that such revocation is in the best interests of the Unitholders.

4. The Trustee and/or any one director or officer of COSL be and are hereby authorized for and on behalf of
the Trust or as may otherwise be required, to execute and deliver any agreements, documents, instruments and other
writings (including a supplemental trust indenture and/or an amended and restated trust indenture) and to cause all
such documents, instruments and other writings to be executed and delivered and to cause all such acts and things to
be done, all for and on behalf of the Trust or COSL, as such director or officer may consider necessary or desirable
to give effect to and fully carry out the intent of the foregoing resolution and the matters authorized hereby.
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C. Amendments Allowing the Issuance of Convertible Debentures (the “Convertible
Securities Amendment”)

BE IT RESOLVED as a Special Resolution that:

1. Amendments to the Amended and Restated Trust Indenture dated as of July 5, 2001 between
Computershare Trust Company of Canada and COSL, as successor to the Former Managers, as amended
(the “Trust Indenture™), in substantially the form set forth below be and are hereby approved:

(a) Section 1.1 of the Trust Indenture is amended by:
() adding the following provision between Subsections (x) and (y) thereof:

“(x.1) “Exchangeable Security” means a unit, share or other security, issued
by the Trust or an affiliate of the Trust, which is convertible into,
exchangeable for, or carries the right of the holder to purchase or
otherwise acquire (or of the issuer of such security to cause the
purchase or acquisition of) Trust Unit(s) or unit(s), share(s) or other
security(ies), issued by the Trust or an affiliate of the Trust, which are
convertible into, exchangeable for, or carry the right of the holder to
purchase or otherwise acquire (or of the issuer of such security to cause
the purchase or acquisition of) Trust Unit(s); and for greater certainty,
an Exchangeable Security includes a debt security;”; and

(ii) deleting Subsection (hh) and replacing it with the following:

( “(hh)  “Offering” means an offering of Trust Units, other securities issued by the Trust

(including Fxchangeable Securities) or any other rights to acquire Trust Units on
a public or private basis pursuant to Offering Documents in Canada or
elsewhere;”.

(b) Section 3.2 of the Trust Indenture is amended by deleting it in its entirety and replacing it with the
following:

“3.2 Offerings of Trust Units and Other Securities

Trust Units, including rights to acquire Trust Units, and other securities of the Trust,
including Exchangeable Securities, may be offered pursuant to Offering Documents on terms and
conditions and at such time or times as the Manager may determine”.

(c) Section 3.3 of the Trust Indenture is amended by adding to it the following Subsection:

"(r) Concurrent with the issuance of any Exchangeable Securities, the Trust shall enter into
such agreements, including indentures, exchange agreements and exchangeable security
support agreements, as may be necessary or desirable to properly provide for the terms of
the Exchangeable Securities, including voting rights at meetings of Unitholders, coattail
provisions for the Trust Units in the event of a non-exempt take-over bid for the
Exchangeable Securities and the conversion, exercise, redemption or exchange of such
Exchangeable Securities for Trust Units (including the conditional and automatic
conversion, exercise, redemption or exchange of such Exchangeable Securities in the
event of a take-over bid for the Trust Units.”
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(d) Section 7.2 of the Trust Indenture is amended by:

(i) deleting “and” at the end of subsection (q) and inserting *; and” in the place of “.”at the end of
subsection (r) and adding the following after subsection (r):

“(s) to issue Trust Units and other securities of the Trust (including securities
convertible into or exchangeable for Trust Units or other securities of the Trust,
or warrants, options or other rights to acquire Trust Units or other securities of
the Trust).”; and

(i) deleting the last sentence of Section 7.2 in its entirety.
(e) Section 8.2 of the Trust Indenture is amended by:

(i) deleting Subsection (a) in its entirety and replacing it with the folowing:

“(a) the issuance of Trust Units or other securities of the Trust. including

Exchangeable Securities, in any circumstances such as private placements,
distributions to the public, distributions to Unitholders or distributions pursuant
to incentive plans;”; and

(ii) deleting subsection (e) in its entirety and replacing it with the following:

“(e) any or all matters relating to the offering of Trust Units, rights to acquire Trust
Units or other securities of the Trust, including Exchangeable Securities,
including: (i) ensuring compliance with all applicable laws, (ii) all matters
relating to the content of any Offering Documents and the accuracy of the
disclosure contained therein, including the certification thereof, (iii) all matters
concerning the terms of the Material Contracts, and (iv) all matters concerning
any underwriting or agency agreement providing for the sale of Trust Units or
such other securities.”

2. The Trustee and the Board of Directors of COSL are hereby authorized to effect all such further and
consequential amendments to the Trust Indenture and other relevant agreements and to cause all such further
agreements to be entered into and such further documents to be executed or amended as they may consider
necessary or desirable to give effect to and fully carry out the intent of this Special Resolution.

3. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board of Directors of COSL may, without further approval of the
Unitholders, revoke this Special Resolution at any time prior to the implementation thereof, if the directors
determine in their sole opinion that such revocation is in the best interests of the Unitholders.

4, The Trustee and/or any one director or officer of COSL be and are hereby authorized for and on behalf of
the Trust or as may otherwise be required, to execute and deliver any agreements, documents, instruments and other
writings (including a supplemental trust indenture and/or an amended and restated trust indenture) and to cause all
such documents, instruments and other writings to be executed and delivered and to cause all such acts and things to
be done, all for and on behalf of the Trust or COSL, as such director or officer may consider necessary or desirable
to give effect to and fully carry out the intent of the foregoing resolution and the matters authorized hereby.
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@ Canadian Oil Sands

FORM OF PROXY

THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED BY THE MANAGER OF CANADIAN OIL SANDS TRUST AND WILL BE USED AT
THE ANNUAL AND SPECIAL MEETING OF UNITHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON TUESDAY, APRIL 22, 2003

The undersigned holder of trust units ("Units") of Canadian Oil Sands Trust (the "Trust") hereby appoints C.E.
(Chuck) Shultz, Chairman of the Board of Canadian Oil Sands Limited ("COSL"), or Marcel R. Coutu, President and Chief
Executive Officer of COSL, or instead of either of them, , as
the nominee of the undersigned, to attend and act for and on behalf of the undersigned at the annual and special meeting (the
"Meeting") of the Unitholders of the Trust to be held on Tuesday, April 22, 2003 at 2:30 p.m. (Calgary time) in the Glenview
Room, TELUS Convention Centre, 120 - 9th Avenue S.E., Calgary, Alberta, and at any adjournment thereof, and at every poll
which may be taken in consequence thereof, and to vote the Units registered in the name of the undersigned, with the same
powers that the undersigned would have if the undersigned was personally present at the Meeting or such adjournment thereof.
Without limiting the generality of the authorization and power hereby given, the undersigned hereby revokes any proxy
previously given and directs the nominee appointed hereunder to vote the Units as follows, and the trustee of the Trust (the
"Trustee") shall, where applicable, in turn vote the common shares of COSL in accordance with the decision of the
Unitholders:

1. Directing the Trustee to vote the common shares of COSL so as to appoint [ 1 FOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the auditor of COSL for the ensuing year
at a remuneration to be fixed by COSL and approved by the directors [ ] WITHHOLD FROM VOTING

thereof;,
2. Appointing PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the auditor of the Trust for the [ ] FOR

ensuing year at a remuneration to be fixed by COSL and approved by the

directors thereof; [ 1 WITHHOLD FROM VOTING
3. Directing the Trustee to vote the common shares of COSL so as to elect as [ ] FOR

directors of COSL all of the nominees of the Trust, as described and set
forth in the Management Proxy Circular of the Trust dated March 10, 2003, { ] WITHHOLD FROM VOTING
and to fill any vacancies among the directors of COSL that may arise
between the Meeting and the first meeting of the Unitholders thereafter that
considers the election of directors, by appointing to any such vacancy a

person selected by COSL;
4. Approving the special resolution regarding the Quorum Amendment to the [ 1 FOR

Trust Indenture, as described and set forth in the Management Proxy

Circular of the Trust dated March 10, 2003; [ 1 AGAINST
S. Approving the special resolution regarding the Electronic Voting [ ] FOR

Amendment to the Trust Indenture, as described and set forth in the

Management Proxy Circular of the Trust dated March 10, 2003; [ 1 AGAINST
6. Approving the special resolution regarding the Convertible Securities [ ] FOR

Amendment to the Trust Indenture, as described and set forth in the

Management Proxy Circular of the Trust dated March 10, 2003; and [ 1 AGAINST
7. On any other business that may properly come before the Meeting or any adjournment or adjournments thereof, in

such manner as the proxyholder may determine in his or her discretion.



This form of proxy confers on the nominees named herein discretionary authority with respect to amendments or
variations of those matters identified in the accompanying Notice of Annual and Special Meeting of Unitholders (the "Notice
of Meeting™) dated March 10, 2003 or any other matters that may properly come before the Meeting or any adjournments
thereof. This proxy also authorizes the Trustee to replace any nominee identified above for election as a director of COSL if
such nominee is unable or not willing to serve as a director. As at March 10, 2003, neither the Trustee nor COSL knows of any
such amendments, other matters or anticipated replacements.

The Units represented by this proxy will be voted on the matters listed above and identified in the Notice of
Meeting in such manner as the Unitholder giving this proxy may have specified by marking an "X" in the spaces
provided above for that purpose. If no choice is specified hereon as to the manner in which the Units represented by
this proxy are to be voted with respect to any matter listed above and identified in the Notice of Meeting, then all such
Units will be voted "FOR" each such matter.

A Unitholder entitled to vote at the Meeting has the right to appoint a person (who need not be a Unitholder) to
attend and act for and on behalf of such Unitholder at the Meeting other than the persons designated as nominees in
this form of proxy. To exercise this right, the Unitholder should insert in the name of such person in the blank space
provided above.

This proxy is solicited on behalf of the Trustee by the management of COSL pursuant to the terms of the
Management Agreement dated July 5, 2001 between the Trust and COSL.

To be effective, proxies must be received by Computershare Trust Company of Canada, 100 University
Avenue, Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2Y1 (Attention: Proxy Department) not less than twenty-four (24) hours before the
time set for the holding of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof. Proxies may be revoked at any time prior to their
use.

DATED this day of , 2003.

Name of Unitholder (please print)

Signature of Unitholder (or duly authorized person)
NOTES:

1. This proxy must be executed by the Unitholder or by his or her attorney duly authorized in writing or, if the Unitholder is a corporation,
under its corporate seal by a duly authorized officer or attorney thereof indicating the capacity under which such officer or attorney is
signing.

2. Proxies not dated in the space provided will be deemed to bear the date on which the accompanying Management Proxy Circular was
mailed to Unitholders.

3. The name of the Unitholder must appear exactly as it is shown on the affixed label. If Units are held jointly, any one of the joint owners
may sign.

4. If Units are registered in the name of an executor, administrator, trustee or similar holder, such holder must set out his or her full title
and sign the proxy exactly as registered. If Units are registered in the name of a deceased or other Unitholder, the Unitholder's name
must be printed in the space provided, the proxy must sign below the Unitholder signature and evidence of authority to sign on behalf of
the Unitholder must be attached to the proxy.
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@ Canadian Oil Sands NEWS RELEASE

For immediate release

Canadian Oil Sands provides tax information

Calgary, March 21, 2003 (TSX — COS.UN) —Canadian Oil Sands Trust (the “Trust”)
today announced that, for U.S. residents, the cash distributions paid by the Trust in the
2002 calendar year were 88.43 per cent taxable as ordinary income with the remaining
11.57 per cent tax deferred as return of capital or capital gain. The tax treatment of
distributions paid to Canadian unitholders was released on February 25, 2003.
Unitholders should note that the cash distribution payable on February 28, 2003 is taxable
in the 2002 year because the distribution relates to the period ended December 31, 2002.

A Canadian NR4 (non-resident) supplemental slip detailing the specific taxable amounts
will be mailed to the Trust’s non-resident unitholders. For any questions regarding this
form, please contact the Trustee and Transfer Agent, Computershare Trust Company of
Canada, at (403) 267-6555. For all other inquiries, please contact the Trust.

Canadian Oil Sands paid a total cash distribution of approximately US$1.30, or Cdn
$2.00, per Trust unit to unitholders in 2002. A detailed breakdown of the distributions is
available at www.cos-trust.com.

Income Tax consequences of participating in the Trust’s Premium Distribution,
Distribution Reinvestment and Optional Unit Purchase Plan (“DRIP”)

In order to assist unitholders in understanding the Canadian federal income tax treatment
of the Premium Distribution option of the DRIP, the Trust has posted on its Web site at
WwW.cos-trust.com a memo from the Trust’s external tax counsel explaining the tax
consequences of participating in the DRIP. Unitholders are advised to consult their own
tax advisors as to their particular income tax situation regarding all tax-related matters.

Canadian Oil Sands Trust is an open-ended investment trust that generates income from
its 31.74 per cent working interest in the Syncrude Joint Venture. The Trust currently has
approximately 80 million units outstanding, which trade on the Toronto Stock Exchange
under the symbol COS.UN. The Trust is managed by Canadian Oil Sands Limited.

Canadian Oil Samds Limited For further information:
Marcel Coutu
President & Chief Executive Officer Siren Fisekci

Manager, Investor Relations:
(403) 218-6228
investor relations(@cos-trust.com

Units Listed — Symbol: COS.UN
Toronto Stock Exchange

Web site: www,cos-trust.com




